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About Us

A member of the Sunshine Group, Watawala Plantations PLC (WATA) is an agri-business company focused on palm oil and
dairy operations. Apart from palm oil and dairy, the company also has a diversified portfolio of field crops including tea,

rubber, coconut and cinnamon among others. The company is Sri Lanka's largest and only RSPO (Roundtable on Sustainable
Palm Oil) certified palm oil producer.

Core Business Activities

GRI 2-6

Cultivation of oil palm and production and sale of palm oil

2 )

Cultivation
of Oil Palm

Palm Oil
Production

3 Estates with a total 120,000 MT Sale of crude palm oil,
extent of 3,393.27 Ha milling Capacity palm kernel oil and palm
kernel cake to bulk palm
oil buyers in Sri Lanka
K RSPO Certified Process /

Our presence along the palm oil value chain

Production of Fresh Milk

Dairy Sale
Farming of Milk
1732 Herd Automated 23,000 liters of Sale of fresh milk

strength milking parlour milk chilling and to bulk buyers of
storing capacity milk

Our presence along the dairy value chain
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Revenue Contribution FY 23/24

Palm Oil

83%

\(/ Lonach Estate

Q Ginigathhena
H‘ Watawala Dairy Farm

Milk
17%

Q

Udugama Region
7“( Nakiyadeniya 1,371.84 Ha & palm oil mill
# Homadola 668.85 Ha
T Talangaha 1,352.56 Ha




Non-core Business Activities

" Tea Cultivation
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Cinnamon Cultivation

W8 and Processing

The Group cultivates 136.46 Ha of high
and low grown tea across three estates.

E state T ea Extent
Homadola | Low Country5  4.2Ha
Tdangaha | Low Country | 11.26 Ha
Lonach U p Country 71 Ha

’, Coconut Cultivation

Coconut is cultivated on 27.68 Ha in
Homadola and Royston Estates and sold in
bulk to buyers across Sri Lanka.

aa
Asa Bungalow Rental
gog “4"9

WATA owns and operates two luxury
estate bungalows which is rented out to
foreign and local tourists.

o =
ﬁ Lonach #&=& Stokesland

Land Distribution by Crop

Tea 3%
Rubber 4%

Cinnamon 3%

Coconut 1%

The group's cinnamon cultivation extends
across 119.97 Ha of its four estates. The
Company also operates a cinnamon
peeling and processing facility at
Homadola Estate producing a variety of
cinnamon grades, cinnamon oil and
cinnamon cut quills for bulk buyers across
Sri Lanka.

@ Rubber Cultivation

Rubber is cultivated on 139.8 Ha across
two estates, Homadola and Nakiyadeniya.

The company operates a maize baling
center at Hulannuge. Maize silage is sold
to Group Company Watawala Dairy for
Cattle feed.

Oil Palm

89%
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Our Commitment to Quality

Our commitment to ensuring excellence in all aspects of our operation is reflective from the wide range of product and

process certifications and accreditations we have obtained. This commitment to excellence is one of our key differentiators.

RSPO certification for all three Fully automated,

estates and palm oil mill state-of-the-art DAIRYMASTER
milking parlour system

ISO 50001:2018

Energy Management Systems DAPH approved animal feed

Certificate for the palm oil mill manufacturer

ISO 45001:2018
Occupational Heath and Safety
certification for palm oil mill

ISO 14001:2015
Environmental Management
Systems
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Organisation Structure

Sunshine Holdings PLC BN 500, Prramid Wikmar Plantation

L

76.83% Sunshine Wilmar (Private) Limited

Watawala Plantations PLC
89.92% v

Watawala Dairy Ltd J

SBI Ven Holdings Pte. Ltd
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* |nstallation of vertical
SlarilipErs 1O mprove
presCess alficiend y of

L 4

2007708

¢ Aprarded Business
Supar Brand status

Our Journey
of Growth

paim oil mil
WATA's success is
characterized by its ability to 2006/07
make bold strategic moves o Expansion of all palm
and it's unrelenting focus on plantation w 201112

L Eurnn‘ln:-.lnnln!:_g 1}1
itate-cfi-the-art tea
factory im Lindula

driving quality. Key milestones
from our journey thus far are
highlighted below;

2004/05
& Caoflaboration with
Tata Teltley UK to
expand global reach

1992

* Incanporation af WATA
following privatization
of 22 Regional

h Planation companies

= Strategic joint venture
with TGBL of India

2013/14

¢ Welcomed Pyramid
Wilmar Plantations
{Pwit) Ltd &5 a third
jeunt venture partner

# |nstallation of Efluant
Trisatment .‘.1n|||1:,' with
bio-gas genaration
sysiem at the paim ol
il

4

2003./04

® |ntroduction of
“"Watawala Kahata"
tea brand

1996

L M.ﬁrlul‘_:_unﬂ'.u-:':l: DF
estates taken over by
Estate Management
Services (Pvy) Lid

201415

® |nstallation of steam
turbiineg at the patm ol
milll

k4

2002/03
¢ Obtained 150

2002:19%4 and HACCP
certification

1998

® Launch of Tea Brand
festa
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o Dibtamed 150
45001:2018 [OHAS)
for the Palm oil mill

* Established C5R
brand YWatawala
Kalarnn Mithuru

201718

* Watawala Dairy Ltd
COMmendes
commancial
operations

* Divested net asats of
LKR 1856 Bn relating
to wpcouniny biea
operations to Hatton
Plantations PLC

201518
* Entered into a
|eint-wenture

sgramment with PADC
Holdings, a subsidiary
of Dunton Asset
Management to set up
a USD § 11.5 Mn dairy
tarm project on
Lanach Estate

e i
| -I a

3

o g

2019/20

* |Launch of milk brand ©
Pride of Lonach®
bottled milk to retail
markat

* [Introduction of
‘Watawala Saru Pasa
COmpost

2020/21

= Obtained RSPO
certification for all
palm estabes

2021722

& Dbtained RSPO
cortification for palm
oil mill

* Expansion of Pride of
Lonach product
portiolio with the
introciuetion of Ghese
and low fat milk

* |neresss of produstion
capacity and
afficiency of all mill
through technology
upgraches

& Oibtained 150

50001:2018 -Energy

Management Systems

Certification for palm

ol mill

¥

2022/23

+ Obtained IS0
140012015 -
Environmantal
Management Systems
certification for Paim
Ol miill

* Implementation of
SAP Business One ERP
System

* implementation of
field data
managament,
checkroll and payment
system iHarvest Tar
agribusiness

* Launch of Watawala
Qoviya 10 support
farmers cultivate
vagetables

2023/24

# Opened a
state-of-the-art
cinmamon peeling
centre in Siokestand

* Commenced sale of
RSPO credits

= Oibtainad DaPH
approval for
manufacturing of

animal feed
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Our Social & Economic Impact

WATA contributes to the socio-economic development of Sri Lanka through its multi-faceted business operation as well as its

firm commitment to empowering rural communities across its value chains.

Direct Economic Impact

6 GRI 201-1

Statement of value added
As at 31 March (Rs.. Mn)

2023/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23
Total revenue 8,321 8,768 6,867 7,574
Other Income 61 (35) (156) (489)
Finance income 184 139 220 126
Gain on changes in fair value of 40 (132) (15) 14
biological assets
Administration and establishment (4,002) 4,675) (2,600) (3,587)
expenses
Value Addition 4,604 4,065 4,316 3,638

Sustainable livelihoods

WATA generates both direct and indirect employment opportunities with employment to 1,709 individuals in the Company.
In addition to creating livelihoods the company continues to invest in the socio-economic development of its communities

through ongoing community investments.

Total Payments to
Emplnyﬁni Rs, BE& Mn

indirpct Employmant

Tatal Payrments
i :upplinrs

Ra. 2,550 Min
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Distribution of Value Added

as, 1%
2%

1,347, 29%

\ 248, 5%
2.440, 53%

Import Substitution

WATA' core business activities, significantly contribute to
saving foreign exchange by supporting import substitution
in key industries including edible oils and fresh milk,

B T employess Bemursmstion and benaftial
. T Shard Hodders [Disdoanoh)

.huhm-dmuui- i #ion med deapd profity

B o v Geemmemenh (Taoas]

I Tothe provicess of debd caphal intarasl

Community Infrastructure

WATA continues to invest in its
communities, investing in social
infrastructure such as estate roads, housing
and sanitary and drinking water facilities for
estate communities. In FY 2023/24 WATA
invested Rs. 27 Mn in community

infrastructure.
Cine honrse Rs. 1.8 spent on
gonEbricted renovation of the
for an evtate padmgrove badminton
wiories court and gym
Rs. 1.1 Mn 1
onhospital T Rs- 19.4 Mn spent on
infrastructure rrml l!ilml!mlﬂlmﬂ
dpvadopmant

Rs. 1.5 Mn for a Rs. 1.% tona
Kowil renovation mew CEB transformer
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Awards and Accolades

WATA has been the recipient of a multitude of awards and accolades over the years, a true testament to our steadfast

commitment to excellence in all aspects of its operation.

2022/23

Graat Place To Wark Awrard Tor
Watawala Plantations PLC

2018/19

Great Place To Wark Award for
Watawala Drasry Limited,

2015/16

Gold Sward under

Large Category Manufacturing
Sector at the SLBCC (Sri Lanka
China Business Co-Operation
Council) Business Star Awards.

2013/14

Gold Bward at the S Lanka
Institute of Training and
Development (SLITAD) People
Development Award




Financial Highlights

Financial Performance
Revenue

Gross Profit Margin
Operating Profit

Profit before Tax

Net Profit

Basic Earnings per share

Cash flow from Operations

Interest Cover
Return on Equity (ROE)

Return on Capital Employed ( ROCE)

Financial Position

Total Assets

Total Debt

Total Shareholder Funds
Net Assets Per Share
Debt/Equity Ratio
Debt/Total Assets
Current Ratio

Quick Asset Ratio

Market/ Shareholder Information
Market Price per share on 31t March

Market Capitalization
Enterprise Value
Price Earnings Ratio
Dividend Payout
Dividend Per Share
Dividend Yield

WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024 15

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn
Rs. Mn

FY 2024/23
8,321
38%
2,661
2,766
2,345
11.60
3,786
34
38%
32%

9,431
533
6,189
30.44
9%
6%
2.28
1.82

88.70
18,033
18,059
7.65
103%
12.00
14%

Total Asset
Growth

FY 2022/23
8,768
40%
2,931
2,953
2,332
11.63
2,730
25
36%
37%

8,834
277
6,280
30.89
4%
3%
2.86
1.86

74.50
15,146
14,848
6.41
120%
14.00
19%

Market

%
-5%
-5%
-9%
-6%

1%
0%
39%
36%
6%
-14%

7%
92%
-1%
-1%

125%
100%

-20%
-2%

19%
19%
22%
19%
-35%
-14%
-26%

Capitalization

Growth



Marufactured
Capital

Imtaliectual
Capital

Sacial and
Relationship

Capital
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Non-Financial Highlights

Total employees

Payments to employees
Employee retention rate

Female representation

M rEcruits

Investment in traimng

Total training hours

Average training hours/employee
Waorkplace injuries

Urion represantation

Froperty, plant and equipment
Investrment in capex
Investment in automation and digitization

Average length of employee service

Raw material consumption
Energy consumption
Energy intensity

Water consumption

Solhid waste generation
Carbon footprint

Investmeant in community
Payments to suppliers
Proportional spending to local suppliers

Mo.

Rs. millicn
%

T

Mo,

Rs. million
Hours
Hours

Mo.

%

Rs. million
Rs, million
Rs. million

Years

MAT

Gl

GJ per unit
A3

MT

tCOZe

Rs. million
Rs. Million
o

2024/23

1.782
886
a9
34
35

2,609
106

6

2,556
290
13

18

33,812
211,526
138.88
33,788
63,510
15,601

27
2,550
a9

#
[



About the Report

Reporting
Frameworks
Adopted

Financial Reporting

® Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (SLFRS/LKAS)
issued by CA Sri Lanka

e Companies Act No. 7 of
2007

e Listing Rules of the Colombo
Stock Exchange (CSE)

e Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka

(SEC) Act No. 19 of 2021

Sustainability Reporting

e GRI Standards 2021-
Referencing Option

e |IRC International Integrated
Reporting Framework

Corporate Governance

e Listing Requirements of the
Colombo Stock Exchange

® Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance
issued by the CA Sri Lanka
and SEC
**..

%
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Watawala Plantations PLC and its
subsidiaries (herein after referred to
as the "Group”) present herewith its
9" Integrated Report, a balanced and
comprehensive review of the Group's
financial, social and environmental
performance and impacts during the

year.

Scope and Boundary
GRI 2-2

The report covers the operations of
Watawala Plantations PLC and its
subsidiary Watawala Dairy Limited.
Financial and sustainability data have
been collected from all operational
locations including subsidiaries and
presented in consolidated form. In
instances where consolidation is not
possible it is clearly stated thus at

the point of disclosure. We apply the
principle of materiality in determining
content for our Integrated Report.
This report therefore focuses on issues
that have a material impact on our
ability to deliver sustainable value to
shareholders and key stakeholders.
The process for determining material
issues is detailed on page 62 of this
Report, along with the material topics

on page 62.

Reporting Period and Frequency

GRI 2-3

This report covers the period from 1+
April 2023 to 31t March 2024 which is

the Group's annual reporting cycle and

builds on the Group's previous Annual

17

Report for the period ending 31st
March 2023.

Restatement of Information
GRI 2-4

There was no restatement of
information from the previous
reporting period April 1st 2022 to 31st
March 2023.

External Assurance
GRI 2-5

External assurance on financial
information contained in this report
has been obtained by independent
external auditor Messrs KPMG,
Chartered Accountants. The assurance
report is set out in page 150 of this

report.

Forward- looking statements

This report contains forward-looking
statements, which are based on
reasonable assumptions by the
management. However, there can be
no assurance that forward-looking
statements will prove to be accurate
and Watawala Plantations PLC
undertakes no obligation to update
or be accountable for forward-looking
statements in circumstances should

change.
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Navigating our Report

Throughout the report we have sought to describe how we have created value for
our stakeholders by leveraging our capitals. The following icons have been used to
highlight the capital-linkages and to improve readability

Financial

Intellectual
Capital

Capitals

Directors’ Responsibility

Feedback Watawala Plantations PLC's Board of Directors acknowledges ultimate
responsibility for ensuring the integrity of this Report. We hereby
confirm that this Report addresses all relevant material matters and

We value your feedback as fairly represents the Group's integrated performance. The Report is

B | © continuously approved and authorized for publication.
improve our reporting and

encourage your comments to: Signed on behalf of the Board,

Mr. Dhammika Laksiri

Financial Controller M""“‘f“"’r“'

Watawala Plantations PLC Sunil G Wijesinha
Phone: +94 11 477 2505

e-mail: dhammika.laksiri@

Chairman

) . 29t May 2024
sunshineholdings.lk




Chairman’s Message

FY 2023/24 was a challenging

year amidst a painful but essential
economic reform program
implemented by the Government

to stabilize a flailing economy.
Notwithstanding these challenging
conditions, your company performed
well, recording a PAT of Rs.. 2.3
Billion and declaring a total dividend
of Rs..15 per share for the financial
year ended 31 March 2024. The
resolute performance despite the
challenges is a testament to the
Group's dynamic strategy and

operational prowess.

Operating Context

After six consecutive quarters of
negative growth, Sri Lanka’s economy
displayed tentative signs of recovery
in 2023, with the economic reform
programme implemented by the Sri
Lankan authorities yielding notable
results, particularly towards the

latter part of the year. GDP recorded
positive growth in the third and

fourth quarters of 2023, resulting in
the annual contraction being limited
to 2.3% compared to the significant
contraction of 7.3% observed in 2022.
Domestic inflation meanwhile declined
significantly, reaching single digits in
July 2023 after the historically high
levels that prevailed in 2022. Foreign
exchange liquidity pressures eased
after the International Monetary Fund's
Extended Fund Facility (IMF-EFF)
approval in March 2023, continuing
import restrictions and increased
inflows from export proceeds, workers'
remittances and tourist earnings. The

gradual easing of liquidity conditions

supported the appreciation of the
Sri Lankan Rupee and stabilised the
exchange rate following significant
volatility in 2022. Meanwhile, Interest
rates were adjusted downward by
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL)
in response to easing inflationary

pressures.

The progress achieved in stabilizing
macroeconomic fundamentals is
commendable; however, as expected,
the reform programme has been
painful, with reverberating impacts on
the Group's operating environment.

Income tax and VAT rate adjustments

impacted disposable income levels,
negatively impacting demand
conditions in our key sectors. Sourcing
critical inputs such as animal feed
remained a challenge during the
early part of the year due to import
restrictions, although this settled with
the easing of restrictions. The removal
of these restrictions commencing
June 2023 meanwhile contributed to
a dampening of prices, particularly in
the palm oil sector. Upward revision
of energy prices also contributed

to higher energy costs across our
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operations.

Driving sustainable Growth

Having successfully overcome the
challenges of fertilizer and cattle feed
shortages in FY 2022/23, we shifted
our focus to increasing yields and
quality in our core operations during
the year. As discussed further in the
CEO's review, efforts to this end
resulted in notable yield increases in
oil palm and dairy segments during
the year. We have long understood the
need to diversify our revenue bases to
build resilience against economic and
regulatory uncertainties. Therefore,
efforts to develop a diversified pool
of crops continued during the year,
with resources being allocated to
ancillary crops such as tea, rubber,
coconut and cinnamon. We also
continued exploring opportunities

to move up the agri-business value
chain by establishing a state-of-the-
art Cinnamon Processing factory

in Udugama, Galle. In addition to
strengthening our presence in the
lucrative Ceylon Cinnamon segment,
we expect this initiative to play an
essential role in enhancing the quality
of cinnamon exports from the country
by setting a benchmark for smaller

producers.

Strategic interventions to the
management and operational
structure of Watawala Dairy
implemented during the previous
two years have also started to bear
fruit, with the company witnessing a
notable improvement in performance
during the year. With the Government
recognizing the dairy industry as a
priority sector for development, we
see significant growth potential. We
will continue investing in our dairy

operation to consolidate its market

position further.

ESG Focus

As a responsible corporate entity,
environmental, social and governance
considerations have always been a part
of our business strategy. An articulated
environmental sustainability policy and
specific environmental management
targets that go well beyond

regulatory requirements ensure that
environmental best practices are
incorporated into all aspects of our
operation. As an RSPO (Round Table
for Sustainable Palm Oil) certified
operation, WATA is committed to
conserving, protecting, and enhancing
ecosystems within and surrounding

its operations and ensuring oil

palm’s responsible cultivation and
processing. We do so by adopting
sustainable agricultural practices and
taking proactive action to preserve
the biodiversity in our surrounding
areas. Resource circularity is practised
extensively, and we produced over
1,618 tonnes of compost for our
plantations at our compost production
facility at Nakiyadeniya from organic
by-products from our dairy operation.
We are exploring novel technology

to improve our effluent management
system, thereby minimizing the
negative impact of Palm Qil Mill
Effluents (POME) on the environment.
We remain committed to moving
towards greener energy sources and
continue to explore renewable energy
sources to meet our energy needs.
96% of our energy requirement in

the palm oil milling operation is met
through biomass generated from fresh
fruit bunch waste. WATA commenced
the sale of RSPO credits during the

financial year and earned Rs.. 50
Million by sale of RSPO credits in FY
2023/24.

We reinforced our long-term
commitment to our communities,
including estate communities, during
the year with a structured “"CSR and
Village Integration Strategy” launched
during the year. This multi-faceted
strategy aims to create lasting bonds
with our communities through
impactful CSR and village integration
initiatives in healthcare, sports and
fitness, education and community
engagement. During the financial year
2023/24, such integration activities

benefited over 8,543 beneficiaries.

Governance Aspects

Strong governance is a hallmark of
our operation and has been one

of the key reasons for us to remain
resilient amidst volatility. During

the year, several changes to the
Corporate Governance landscape
were brought about by regulatory
authorities, including changes to
listing rules issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, revisions
to the Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
and the issue of SLFRS Sustainability
Standards by the institute of Chartered
accountants. The Board has carefully
reviewed these changes and plans to
comply with them in full by the dates

specified therein.

We also continued to strengthen our
governance and risk management
processes and practices. A critical
development during the year was
the appointment of an Internal Audit

& Compliance Officer at Sunshine



Holdings with an overall mandate

to strengthen governance and
compliance. In-house and external
training is also provided to employees
on various aspects of corporate
governance and risk management.
Meanwhile, several of our managers
have participated in overseas training
programmes in Malaysia as part of
our on-going efforts to incorporate
best practices into all aspects of our
operation.

Future Focus

As the economy gradually moves
beyond its recovery phase, the palm
oil and dairy industries have the
potential to play a significant role

in driving growth through import
substitution, employment generation
and value chain development.
Therefore, we are excited about our
prospects and remain focused on
driving sustainable growth to create
multi-stakeholder value. With ESG
considerations increasingly driving
consumer sentiments, our Iong-term
focus on sustainable practices ideally
places us to become the preferred
producer in the segments we operate

n.

A key constraint in

our growth trajectory,
however, is the

continuation of the ban

on oil palm cultivation.
While we face no immediate
threat due to the age of our
oil palm plantation, long-term
prospects not only for WATA
but also for the plantation
industry as a whole are impacted
by policy inconsistency regarding

oil palm cultivation. We therefore,
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once again urge the authorities to
consider science-based evidence

and take definitive policy action
accordingly. Other challenges prevail;
the proposed plantation sector wage-
hike will likely impact profitability in
the upcoming year. Meanwhile, with
WATA's current tax exemption on
agriculture income which expired on
31 March 2024, profitability will likely
be pressured further.

Acknowledgements

Finally, | sincerely appreciate my
colleagues on the board for their
unstinted guidance and support. On
behalf of the board, | congratulate
the group’s leadership team and

acknowledge their untiring efforts,

which enabled the group to
successfully navigate a challenging
year. To our employees, my heartfelt
appreciation for their inspiring
dedication and drive. Last but not
least, | take this opportunity to thank
all our valuable stakeholders, including
shareholders, customers, suppliers,
and other partners, for continuing to

believe in us.

JH‘M.T.-.--L.

Sunil G Wijesinha

Chairman

29 May 2024

“Strong governance
is a hallmark of our
operation and has
been one of the
key reasons for us
to remain resilient
amidst volatility”




CEO'’s Message

Dear Shareholder,

As discussed in detail in our
Chairman’s review, the operating
environment remained challenging
during the year, exerting significant
pressure on the Group's operations
and financial performance.
Notwithstanding these challenging
operating conditions, we remained
steadfast in our commitment towards
achieving operational excellence

and building long-term resilience.
Notable increases in both crop and
milk yields were achieved during the
year as a direct result of efforts to
enhance productivity and efficiency.
Our automation and our diversification
strategies will continue to reap
benefits in terms of higher revenue
and broader market presence in years
to come. Our sustainability ethos that
permeates through everything we

do meanwhile continued to enhance
stakeholder value whilst setting the

stage for future growth opportunities.

Financial performance

Amidst the challenging operating
conditions that prevailed during the
year, Group revenue decreased by 5%
to Rs.. 8,321 Million in FY 2023/24. The
dip in revenue was mainly on account
of a 9% decline in revenue in the
plantation sector. Despite a notable
increase in yields per hectare and total
crop during the year, revenue from the
oil palm sector declined to Rs.. 6,867
Million in FY 23/24 as compared to
Rs.. 7,574 Million in FY 22/23 due to a
sharp drop in palm oil prices during

the year. Dairy sector revenue on the

other hand increased by 22% to Rs..
1,454 million in FY 2023/24 supported
by an increase in both volume and

price.

Gross profits at Group level amounted
to Rs.. 3,155 Million, a 11% decline
compared to FY 2022/23. The decrease
was mainly due to lower margins in the
oil palm sector as a result of the sharp
decline in prices during the year. The
dairy sector meanwhile recorded a
notable improvement in margins due
to the increased availability of cattle
feed in the second half of the year and
the resultant reduction in cost and

increase in milk yield.

Operating margins continued to be
impacted by the decline in selling
price of palm oil and the inclusion of
the Social Security Contribution Levy

which came into effect in October

2022. Consequently, Group Operating

profits witnessed a 9% decline to

Rs.. 2,661 Million during the year.
Notwithstanding these challenges the
Group recorded a PAT of Rs.. 2,345
Million for the FY 2023/24 as compared
to a PAT of Rs.. 2,332 Million in FY
2022/23.

Strategic Focus in FY
2023/24

With declining prices and cost
increases continuing to pressure
margins in the palm oil segment, we
remained focused on maximizing
yields from our existing oil palm extent
through efficiency and productivity
gains. To this end we continued to
adopt agricultural best practices,
introducing several best practices
such as palm sanitization program

to enhance yields and quality of



our crops. As a result of these
efforts WATA recorded its highest
ever oil palm yield of 16.8 MT per
hectare during the financial year FY
2023/24. Several improvements to
mill infrastructure were also carried
out to increase processing efficiency
and product quality. Meanwhile, we
also continued with our efforts to
develop ancillary crops such as tea,
rubber coconut and cinnamon as
part of our ongoing diversification
drive. A key achievement during the
year was the opening of our state-of-
the-art cinnamon processing center
in Udugama, Galle. The cinnamon
processing center which follows good
manufacturing practices signifies
our foray into the cinnamon value-
added segment and is expected to
bring about significant returns in the

upcoming years.

In our dairy operation too we
continued to focus on improving yields
and quality by improving cattle health
and nutrition. During the year several
investments were made to improve
the conditions of cattle sheds to
further improve the living conditions of
cattle. Meanwhile, as part of our long-
term efforts to build a high-quality
replacement herd we expanded our
heifer herd during the year. Efficient
management of feed operations
remained a key focus amidst rising
feed prices and several improvements
were also carried out to increase
efficiency and better manage our feed

operations.

We also progressed on our digitization
drive during the year, with the
implementation of SAP Business One
HANA Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) platform and iHarvest, a locally
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developed plantation sector specific
digital platform. The implementation
of the ERP platform will enable us to
further streamline our operation with
access to critical real-time information
thereby resulting in significant cost
savings, greater transparency of
field operations, better planning of
operations and improved harvesting
cycles. The implementation of
"iharvest” meanwhile will connect

us to a growing digitally enabled
plantation eco-system to collectively
address common issues facing

the sector and drive the next-

level transformation in Sri Lanka's

agriculture sector.

Increasing labour productivity and
retaining skilled workers within

the industry remains a key priority
amidst growing concerns of labour
shortages. Accordingly, we focused on
targeted skill development programs
for employees at all levels in both

the plantation and dairy sectors.
Meanwhile, several team building
exercises were carried out throughout
the year to further enhance our

employee value proposition.

Outlook

With the Sri Lankan economy
starting to show tangible signs of
recovery towards the end of 2023,
we are confident of our prospects
for FY 2024/25 and beyond. The
stabilization of macro- economic
fundamentals is expected to reduce
inflationary pressures and positively
impact demand conditions in both
the plantation and dairy sectors

in the short to medium term. The
downward trend in fertilizer prices

too is encouraging and is expected

to positively impact our financial

performance in the forthcoming year.

Despite these positive developments,
policy inconsistency, particularly in
relation to the cultivation of oil palm
remains a key challenge, hampering
the significant growth potential of

the oil palm sector. We therefore

urge the relevant authorities to take a
holistic view of the industry, and take a

decisive step in the right direction.

Going forward we remain focused

on our multi-pronged strategy of
maximizing yields in core crops while
actively pursuing diversification
opportunities in growth industries such
as the dairy business and cinnamon
value-added business. We will also
continue to hone our operation to put
sustainability front and center of all we
do.
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Board of Directors

Mr. Sunil G. Wijesinha

Mr. V. Govindasamy

Mr. M. S. Mawzoon

Position Chairman Director Director

Status Non-Executive/Independent Non Executive/ Non-Executive/
Non-Independent Non-Independent

Age 74 Years 60 Years 53 Years

Qualifications/

MBA from Postgraduate

Holds a MBA from

Thirty one years experience in
various business industries.

Lanka

Past Chairman

Employers’ Federation of Ceylon

Chairman

Watawala Dairy Ltd.
RIL Property PLC

SC Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Director
BizEx Consulting (Pvt) Ltd.
Sampath Centre Ltd.

The Ceylon Chamber of Commerce

Deputy Chairman
Sunshine Holdings PLC

Chairman / Director

Healthguard Pharmacy Limited
Sunshine Healthcare Lanka Limited
Sunshine Consumer Lanka Limited
Watawala Dairy Limited

Sunshine Wilmar (Private) Limited
Sunshine Foundation for Good

Tata Communications Lanka Limited
TAL Lanka Hotels PLC

Ceylon Property Development Limited
Softlogic Life Insurance PLC

1990 Suwaseriya Foundation
Sunshine Tea (Private) Limited
Lanka Island Resorts Ltd.

BRSIness Ins‘titutei of Marjagement, University of Hartford, USA.
. University of Sri
Experience Jayawardenapura. Bachelor of Science in
Electrical Engineering,
Fellow Member of the University of Hartford,USA.
Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants Fellow Member of the Institute of
(UK). Certified Professional Managers of Sri
Lanka.
Fellow Member of the
Institute of Management
Services (UK).
Associate Member of the Institution of
Engineers, Sri Lanka.
Other Key Past President Past Chairman Managing Director
Positions National Chamber of Commerce of Sri | Employers Federation of Ceylon Pyramid Wilmar (Pvt)Ltd.

Pyramid Wilmar Oils & Fats (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

Chairman / Director

Pyramid Wilmar Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.
Wressle Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.

Pyramid Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.
Sunshine Wilmar (Pvt) Ltd.
Watawala Dairy Limited

Joyspree Lanka Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Gama (Pvt) Ltd.

Perennial Real Estate Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
P R E H Properties (Pvt) Ltd.
Shangri-La Hotels Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
Shangri-La Investments Lanka (Pvt)
Ltd.

One Galle Face Property
Management (Pvt) Ltd.

The Phone Company (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Qils and Logistics (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Qil Mills (Pvt) Ltd.

Pyramid Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd.
Forture Green (Pvt) Ltd.

Melsta Gama (Pvt) Ltd.




Mr. S. G. Sathasivam

Director
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Mr. H.D. Abeywickrama

Director
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Mr. M.R. Rao

Director

Non-Executive/
Non-Independent

Non-Executive/Independent

Non-Executive/ Non- Independent

46 Years

63 Years

72 Years

Holds a MBA from Kellogg School of
Management, Northwestern University, USA

Graduated from the London School of
Economics & Political Science, UK

Graduate of the Air Command

& Staff College at Air University,
Maxwell Air Force Base, Alabama,
USA.

Graduate of the Royal College of
Defense Studies, London UK.

Master of Arts degree in International
Studies from King's College, the
University of London.

Master of Science degree in
Management from the Kotalawala
Defense University, Sri Lanka.

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Commerce graduate from Mumbai University.

Former President
Sri Lanka Chamber of Pharmaceutical Industry
(SLCPI)

Committee Member
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce (CCC)

Group CEO / Director
Sunshine Holdings PLC

Director

Healthguard Pharmacy Limited
Sunshine Healthcare Lanka Limited
Lina Manufacturing (Private) Limited
Lina Spiro (Private) Limited

Norris Canal Properties (Private) Limited
Sunshine Packaging Lanka Limited
Sunshine Consumer Lanka Limited
Sunshine Wilmar (Private) Limited
Lamurep Investments Limited
Lamurep Properties Limited
Sunshine Tea (Private) Limited

Century Properties Limited

Director

Watawala Dairy Limited
Brandix Lanka Limited
Capitol Towers Limited

Director

Shree Renuka Sugars Limited

Adani Wilmar Limited

Gokak Sugars Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
Sumeru Global Holdings and Services (Private) Limited
Sumeru Software Solutions (Private) Limited
Pyramid Lanka (Private) Limited

Pyramid Wilmar (Private) Limited

Pyramid Wilmar Oils & Fats (Private) Limited
Wilmar Tea Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

Perennial Real Estate Lanka (Private) Limited
PREH Properties (Private) Limited

Sunshine Wilmar (Private) Limited

Orion Fund Pte. Ltd..

Orion Fund Il Pte. Ltd.

Art of Living Foundation Ltd.., Australia

Commissioner
PT Gold Energy Mines Ltd..

Trustee
The Art of Living, India
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Mr. A. R. Rasiah

Mr. M. R. Mihular

Mr. M. T. Siddique

Position Director Director Director

(Appointed w.e.f. 12 Dec 2023)" (Appointed w.e.f. 12 Dec 2023)
Status Non-Executive/Independent Non-Executive/Independent Non-Executive /Independent
Age 78 Years 67 Years 34 Years

Qualifications/

Fellow Member of the Institute of

Fellow Member of the Institute of

Holds a Bachelor's (Honours) in Finance

Director

Sunshine Tea (Pvt) Ltd.

Gestetner of Ceylon PLC

Clindata Lanka (Pvt)Ltd.

Synteract Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

Fintek Managed Solutions (Pvt) Ltd.
E. B. Creasy & Co. PLC

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
Company PLC

Gordon Frazer Bosanquet and
Skrine Limited

Century Properties Limited

Director

Melstacorp PLC

Sunshine Holdings PLC
Sunshine Tea (Pvt) Ltd.
LTL Holdings Ltd.

DAMRO Holdings Ltd.
Nestle Lanka Limited
Agility Innovation (Pvt) Ltd.

Past Positions

Chairman-Middle East and South
Asia Regional Board at KPMG,
Director at the International
Accounting Standards Board,
Director at The International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants,
President & Member at Chartered
Institute of Management
Accountants (Sri Lanka), Managing
Partner at KPMG Sri Lanka,
Managing Partner at KPMG
Maldives, and Member-Global
Council at KPMG International Ltd..

Business Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka | Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and Accounting from the University of
Experience and is a Fellow Member of the Nottingham. Member of the Association
Finalist of the Institute of Chartered | Chartered Institute of Management | of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Management Accountants (UK) Accountants (CIMA) — UK. Associate Member at Sri Lanka Institute
Completed International Executive of Directors and Member at International
Forty year experience in Finance Education programs at INSEAD, Chamber of Commerce.
France, Harvard Business School
and the London Business School,
UK. Has over 45 years of industry
experience.
Other Key Chairman Chairman Director
Positions Hela Group of Companies Bairaha Farms PLC Pyramid Wilmar (Pvt) Ltd.

Fortune Green (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.
Melsta Gama (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Gama (Pvt) Ltd.

Alternate Director

Sunshine Wilmar (Private) Limited
Perennial Real Estate Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
P R E H Properties (Pvt) Ltd.

Chief Operating Officer

Pyramid Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

Pyramid Wilmar Oils & Fats (Pvt) Ltd.
Pyramid Wilmar Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.




Mr. A. Herath

"Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 12 Dec 2023)"
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Mr. N. B. Weerasekera

Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 18 Nov 2023)

Mr. L. C. Leong

Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 5 Dec 2023)

Non-Executive/Independent

Non-Executive/Independent

Non-Executive/Non-Independent

60 Years

64 Years

50 Years

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka, Chartered Global
Management Accountant, Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Colombo,

MBA from the University of Strathclyde in

the United Kingdom and a Master of Arts in
Financial Economics from the University of
Colombo. Has over 30 years of experience as
a Chartered Accountant.

Thirty nine years in Business Management and
Finance

Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of

Management Accountants, UK.
MA in Economics from University of Colombo

BSc (Hons) in Physics from the University of
Peradeniya

Bachelor of Accountancy - Nanyang
Technological University

Chartered Accountant - Institute of

Singapore Chartered Accountants

Former Ernst and Young (EY) Senior Partner
and Head of Consulting for Sri Lanka and
Maldives.

Director

Colombo Stock Exchange

Central Depository System (Pvt) Ltd.
SYNAPSYS Ltd.

Durdans Medical and Surgical Hospitals (Pvt)
Ltd.

Cargills Bank Limited

Senkadagala Finance PLC
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Corporate Management Team

Vish Govindasamy
(Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Professional with a distinguished
career spanning over several decades,
holds an MBA and a Bachelor of
Science in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Hartford, USA. He is
a Fellow Member of the Institute of
Certified Professional Managers of Sri
Lanka, highlighting his commitment to
excellence in management. At 60 years
old, he brings a wealth of experience
and expertise to our organization.

His previous roles include Chairman
of the Employers Federation of
Ceylon and the Ceylon Chamber

of Commerce. Currently, he serves

as Deputy Chairman of Sunshine
Holdings PLC and holds chairmanship
and directorship positions in
numerous companies, including
Healthguard Pharmacy Limited,
Sunshine Healthcare Lanka Limited,
and Watawala Plantations PLC, among
others. His extensive leadership

in various sectors underscores his
capability to steer our company
towards continued success.

Fergus Stanley

(Business Consultant, Watawala
Dairy)

Born on a dairy farm in Ireland and
with hands-on experience in setting up
a Dairy Farm in Estonia, Fergus is an
expert in Dairy Farming. He has over
30 years of experience in diary farms
and business engagements.

Dhammika Laksiri
(Financial Controller Watawala
Plantations & Watawala Dairy)
Dhammika is an experienced
finance professional with exposure

to plantations, manufacturing,
Information Technology and Assurance
& Advisory services for over 24 years.
He is a Fellow CA member with B.

Sc. (Accountancy) Sp. (Hons) from
University of Sri Jayewardenapura.

Gayan Dehideniya
(Senior HR Business Partner
- Watawala Plantations &
Watawala Dairy)

Gayan is an HR generalist with over

11 years of experience in multiple
industries. He gained experience in
construction, apparel manufacturing
and retail industries throughout his
career. His Masters in Human Resource
Management and Bachelors in Human
Resource Development provides

him with a solid background for his
career in the HR field. Exposure in
multiple industries has given him the
knowledge to understand and connect
with people at all levels.

Prasanna Premachandra
(Deputy General Manager -
Estate Operations, Watawala
Plantations)

Prasanna has over 26 years

of experience in Plantations
Management. Exposure to Tea
growing and manufacturing in Assam —
India and Kenya.

He holds a diploma in Human
Resources Management from London
Business School and qualified in
‘Plantation Accountancy and Financial
Management’ and ‘Language
Proficiency’ by National Institute

of Plantation Management. He is
presently reading for Bsc. In Business
Management at Open University of Sri
Lanka.

Thanushka Kaluwa Handi

(Senior Manager - Mill Operations,
Watawala Plantations)

Thanushka counts 18 years' experience
in the field of Process Engineering

in manufacturing organizations. He
holds a B.Sc. (Eng) from the University
of Moratuwa specialized in Chemical

& Process Engineering. He started

his career as a Management Trainee

at Pelawatte Sugar Industries Ltd. In
2005 and was appointed a Chemical
Engineer.

He joined Watawala in 2007 as

the Assistant Mill Engineer. He

holds a Diploma in Manufacturing
Management from NIBM, and is
presently reading for an MBA from the
University of Ruhuna.

Dimantha Samarasinghe
(Senior Manager - Homadola
Estate, Watawala Plantations)

Counts 28 years of experience related
to plantation industry both as a
planter and an industrialist. Started
the career as a Trainee Assistant
Manager and rose through the

ranks of Deputy Manager, Manager
and Senior Manager. He held the
position of General Manager at

AEN Palmoil Processing (Pvt) Ltd
before re-joining the plantations .He
has managed every value stage of
rubber and oil palm i.e from planting
,harvesting ,manufacturing to selling
of end product. Holds a Diploma in
Personal Management and Industrial
Relations and reading for an Msc. in
Management at Sir John Kotelawala
Defense University. Joined Watawala
in 2021.



Nilantha Senevirathne
(Manager — Nakiyadeniya Estate,
Watawala Plantations)

Comments the planting carrier as
management trainee with Watawala
Plantation from 2002 August and
reached to position as manager

in the year 2019 ,with having the
professional qualification NIPM
Diploma in Agriculture, Accounting
and Financial Management, Language
Proficiency with process with Advance
National Diploma in Human Resources
Management at NIBM.

Kolitha De Mel

(Mill Manager - Mill Operations)
Kolitha has over 20 year experience

in engineering & manufacturing
management in food processing both
locally & overseas. He holds a B. Eng.
in Electrical & Electronics from the
University of Pacific-Central America,
and an MBA & Executive MSc. in
Project management from Asia e
University, Malaysia. He started his
career at Camso Loastar as a Trainee
Engineer in 2001 and joined Watawala
in 2023 as the Mill Manager.

Positha Lokugamage
(Manager Corporate Affairs
- Watawala Plantations &
Watawala Dairy)

Holds a Bachelor of Business (BBUS)
Double Major in Marketing & Business
Management (Second Upper) from
the Edith Cowan University, Perth,
Australia.

Joined Sunshine Holdings PLC as an
Assistant Manager of Digital Marketing
(to manage digital platforms in
Healthguard Retail Stores), and moved
up the ladder to Head Marketing

for Healthguard with the overall
management of Brand marketing,
Digital & Exclusive Product Portfolio
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Management. (GNC, SWISSE, Oceans
Health, Swiss Energy). Joined Watawala
in 2022 to Head Corporate Brand
Management.

Asanke Ekanayake
(Manager - Talangaha Estate,
Watawala Plantations)

Asanke counts 16 years’ experience in
the plantation sector. He started his
career in 2008 as a Trainee Assistant.
Manager at the Houpe Estate,Kahawatte
managed by Kahawatte Plantations
PLC. He served as a Senior Assistant
Manager at Agalawatte Plantations
prior to joining Watawala Plantations

in 2017 as an assistant manager at the
Nakiyadeniya Estate. He holds a general
MBA from the Vern University, Croatia.

Kevin Jansz

(Business Analyst / Project
Manager - Watawala Plantations
& Watawala Dairy)

Kevin holds a B.Sc. in Business
Administration (Business Economics)
Sp. (First Class) from the University
of Sri Jayewardenepura, and an
MBA in Finance from the University
of Bedfordshire. He is also a CIMA
passed finalist.

He started his career at Moody's
Analytics Knowledge Services (now
Acuity Knowledge Partners), and
supported Buy-Side and Sell-Side Asset
Managers in the US and UK. He joined
Watawala in 2021.

Supun Priyantha Jayasekara
(IT Business Partner - Watawala
Plantations & Watawala Dairy)

Supun is an experienced IT professional
with over a decade of experience

with expertise across various sectors
including automobile, healthcare,

and plantations. Holding a Bachelor’s
degree in Information Technology

from the University of Colombo, he
possesses a strong foundation in his
IT career. His extensive exposure in
diverse industries equips him with the
capability to comprehend and resolve
a wide range of issues effectively.

Maheel De Silva
(Internal Auditor - Watawala
Plantations & Watawala Dairy)

Maheel is an experienced audit
professional counting over 20 years
of experience in Audit and Finance.
He currently serves as the Internal
Auditor. Maheel has a strong
background in aiding organizations
with the identification, understanding,
and assessment of risks, as well as
conducting internal audit functions.
He is a Passed Finalist of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri

Lanka and holds membership in the
Association of Accounting Technicians
(AAT) of Sri Lanka.

Lasantha Weerasinghe
(Manager - Royston Estate,
Watawala Plantations)

Holds all-round Management and
Administrative experience as an

Estate Superintendent, Manager
Operations, and Consultant in the
plantation industry for more than 30
years covering tea, rubber, coconut
and horticultural crops including up
and low country, black and green

tea manufacturing. Holds an M.Sc. in
Plantation Crop Management from the
University of Peradeniya, a B.Sc. (Hons)
in Plantation Management from the
Wayamba University.
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Corporate Management Team

A A

Vish Govindasamy Fergus Stanley Dhammika Laksiri
Acting Chief Executive Officer Business consultant, Financial Controller - Watawala
Watawala Dairy Plantations & Watawala Dairy

r

Gayan Dehideniya Prasanna Premachandra Thanushka Kaluwa Handi
Senior HR Business Partnerig — Watawala Deputy General Manager - Senior Manager — Mill
Plantations & Watawala Dairy Estate Operations, Watawala Plantations Operations, Watawala Plantations

J

Dimantha Samarasinghe Nilantha Senevirathne Kolitha De Mel
Senior Manager — Homadola Estate, ' ) Manager — Mill Operations,
Watawala Plantations Manager — Nakiyadeniya Estate, Watawala Plantations

Watawala Plantations
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V(7

Positha Lokugamage Asanke Ekanayake Kevin Jansz
(Manager Corporate Affairs - Manager - Talangaha Business Analyst / Project
Watawala Plantat_ions Estate, Watawala Plantations Manager - Watawala P[antations
& Watawala Dairy) & Watawala Dairy

-

Supun Jayasekara Lasantha Weerasinghe Maheel De Silva
IT Business Partnering - Watawala Manager — Royston Estate, Internal Auditor, Watawala Plantations
Plantations & Watawala Dairy Watawala Plantations & Watawala Dairy
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors holds the
ultimate responsibility for overseeing
the strategic direction, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk
management, and operations of the
Watawala Plantations PLC. Sound
corporate governance structures,
policies, systems, and processes, along
with regular reporting, facilitate the
fulfillment of these duties by the Board
while fostering a robust business
model that consistently delivers
sustainable value to stakeholders.
These governance mechanisms are
continuously refined to adapt to
external shifts in legal, regulatory,

and voluntary standards, as well

as internal needs, ensuring their
effectiveness in an ever-changing
operational environment. The Board

is tasked with creating a governance
framework to drive sustainable growth.
It sets the overall strategy to increase
the company’s long-term value and
oversees its execution. By offering
independent, informed, and effective
judgment and leadership in decision-
making, the Board ensures that
strategy, risk management, internal
controls, performance, and sustainable
development are seamlessly
integrated and appropriately

balanced.

Code of Conduct and
Ethics

The Company’s Code of Conduct
sets out the standard of conduct
expected of all employees. The
Board is not aware of any material
violations of any of the provisions

of the Code of Conduct and Ethics/
Standard of Conduct by any Director
or employee of WATA.

Our Governance
Structure

Changes impacting Corporate
Governance

e Listing Rule #9 on Corporate Governance by
the Colombo Stock Exchange with effective
dates for compliance set out for specific
provisions from 1st October 2023 to 1st
October 2024.

e |ssue of the revised Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance 2023 by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

* Issue of SLFRS Sustainability Standards by
the institute of Chartered accountants which
are effective for reporting periods beginning

on or before January 2025

® The Board has reviewed the changes
required to governance structures and
processes and plan to comply by the dates

specified herein.

Governance Framework

R lat Voluntary Standards, Internal
egulatory Codes & Frameworks Documents

e Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (SLFRS/LKAS)
issued by CA Sri Lanka

e Companies Act No. 7 of
2007

e Listing Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange
(CSE)

e Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka
(SEC) Act No. 19 of 2021

e Code of Best e Articles of
Practice on Association
Corporate
Governance issued * Board
by the Institute Charter
of Chartered e Code of
Accountants 2017 Conduct

e Integrated e Policy
Reporting framework

Framework

¢ Global Reporting
Initiative Standards




Key Governance Practices
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e Abalance of power established with a majority of non-executive directors of whom 5 are independent

® An Independent Non-Executive Director is the Chairman

¢ Annual rotation of a minimum of 1/3 of the Non-Executive Directors

e Shareholders have right to call for special meeting

Board Composition

Executive Directors 2
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Highlights 2023/24

Board Composition
The Board consists of 10 Directors, appointed by shareholders during the Annual General Meeting. Among them, there are
8 Non-Executive Directors, with 5 fulfilling the independence criteria outlined in Corporate Governance Listing Rule #9. This

composition of both executive and non-executive directors, along with a diverse range of skills and experiences, enables

impartial and well-informed discussions on matters brought before the Board.

No. of
Appointments
Shareholding Role AC RC RPTRC NGC PP L.
at Public Listed
entities
Mr. Sunil. G. Wijesinha 1 Chairman 1
Mr. V. Govindasamy ) )
Nil Acting CEO 3
Executive,
Mr. S. G. Sathasivam Nil Non-Indepen- 1

dent Director

) Non-Executive,
Mr. Sajaad Mawzoon )
Nil Non-Indepen- 0

dent

Non-Executive,
Mr. Thanveer Siddique Nil Non-Indepen- 0
dent

Non-Executive,

Mr. M. Ramachandra Rao Nil Non-Indepen- o
dent
Non-Executive,

Mr. Reyaz Mihular Nil 3

Independent

] Non-Executive, . ,_
Mr. Albert Rasiah 10,000 o o 3
Independent

Non-Executive,
Mr. Harsha Abeywickrama Nil Independent o & o

Non-Executive,

Mr. Arjuna Herath Nil Independent 1
) ) RPTRC - Related o
AC — Audit Committee ] NGC - Nominations
) ) Party Transaction
Chairman Member RC - Remuneration Com- i i and governance
) Review Commit- )
mittee ; Committee
ee

Appointments & Exits



Directors are appointed by the
shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM), following a formal and
transparent process. Appointments
are made based on recommendations

made by the Board of Directors.

The Nominations and Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations
to the Board in this regard having
considered the combined knowledge,
experience and diversity of the
Board in relation to the Company'’s
strategic plans and any gaps thereof.
In compliance with the Articles of
Association of the company, 1/3

of the Non-Executive Directors will
retire from office on a rotational
basis at each AGM. The Nominations
and Remuneration Committee
recommends the Directors for re-
election, and approval by the Board,
having assessed the Board's skill

and knowledge composition in
meeting the strategic demands of
the company. A director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
arisen since the previous AGM, will
offer himself for re-election at the
next AGM. All appointments and
resignations are communicated to the
CSE. Appointment communications

include a brief resume of the director.

Determining Independence
of Non-Executive Directors

For 2023/24, the Independence of the
Directors is determined by the Board
based on the annual declarations
submitted by the Non-Executive
Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rule 7 of the Colombo Stock
Exchange. This is replaced by the
Corporate Governance Rule #9 and

provisions relating to the new criteria
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for independence become effective on
1st October 2024 which will necessitate
changes in the classification of
Independent Directors due to age
related provisions. The reclassification
will be carried out by the date
specified in Rule #9.

All Directors qualify against the criteria
for independence as per Rule 7.10.4 of
the Listing Rules and the Board, based
on declarations submitted by the said

Directors has determined that they are

Independent Directors.

Role of the Chairman and
CEO

The separation of roles between the
Chairman and CEO ensures a balanced
distribution of power within the

Board. The Chairman’s responsibilities
encompass determining meeting
frequency, setting agendas, chairing
meetings, ensuring Board members
are adequately informed for decision-
making, and fostering effective
participation among all members. On
the other hand, the Chief Executive
Officer is tasked with executing
strategies within the established
policy framework and in adherence to

regulatory standards.

Role of the Company
Secretary

Company secretarial services are
rendered by Corporate Services
(Private) Limited, who oversee the
organization of meetings, distribution
of Board documents, minute-taking,
and submission of required filings.
They also provide crucial guidance to
directors concerning board protocols
and legal obligations related to

their roles. Furthermore, they are

entrusted with coordinating Annual

General Meetings, Extraordinary
General Meetings, shareholder
communications, and disclosures

to the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The appointment and dismissal of
Corporate Services (Private) Limited
are decisions made collectively by the

entire Board.

Board Subcommittees
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Audit Committee (Refer page 124 for Audit Committee Report)

Mandate:
* Reviews the integrity of financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards.

e Ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of the Companies Act and other relevant financial

reporting related regulations and requirements.
® Assess the External Auditor’s independence and performance.

® Review adequacy and effectiveness of risk management

Composition: 3 Independent, non-Executive Directors, of whom two are Chartered Accountants.

Remuneration Committee (Refer page 121 for Remuneration Committee Report)

Mandate: The Committee assists the Board in determining a suitable remuneration package.

Composition: 2 Independent, Non-Executive Directors, and 1 Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

Related Party Transactions Review Committee (Refer page 127 for Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report)

Mandate: To ensure on behalf of the Board that all Related Party Transactions of the Group are consistent with the Code
of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions issued by the SEC.

Composition: 3 Independent, Non-Executive Directors

Nomination and Governance Committee (Refer page 123 for Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report)

Mandate: To overseeing matters related to the nomination of Key Management personal including Directors, governance,

and board composition, ensuring alignment with regulatory requirements and best practices.

Composition: 3 Independent, Non-Executive Directors, 1 Non-Independent, Non-Executive director, 1 Non-Independent,

Executive director

Group Management Committee

Composition: members of the Corporate Management whose designations are given on pages 30-31

Managing conflicts of interest



Directors are required to declare their
business interests on appointment and
update thereafter and the Company
Secretaries maintain a register of
Directors’ Interests. Directors are
disclosed on page 25 to 29. Directors
do not participate in the meeting when
related party matters are discussed,
absenting themselves from the

Board room for the duration of the

discussion.

Related party transactions are
reviewed quarterly by the Related
Party Transactions Review Committee
who approve the transactions and
ensure appropriate disclosures in line
with regulatory requirements. Related

party transactions are disclosed in
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Note 36 to the financial statements on

page 220.

Effective Meetings

Board meetings are held quarterly in
accordance with an annual calendar
prepared by the Company Secretaries,
with provision for additional meetings
as maybe required. The agenda for
the meeting is determined by the
Chairman and the Company Secretary
with inputs where needed from the
CEOQ. Relevant Board papers are
circulated to the Directors seven days
prior to the meeting allowing sufficient
time for review and clarification.
Performance oversight, risk
management and review of financial

statements are regular items on the

agenda of the Board.

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
attend Board meetings on invitation
to make presentations and update the
Board on material issues that impact
the business. They are also available
for clarifications that may be required
by Board members. Board minutes are
circulated to members within 2 weeks

and are formally notified.
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Meeting Attendance

Attendance of Directors at meetings is given below,

Eligibility Attended aD:;t)iinte d :::ieg ned
Mr.S. G. Wijesinha ET::—I’QZ:utive/ Independent >
Mr. V. Govindasamy Non-Executive/ Non-Independent 5
Mr. M. S. Mawzoon Non-Executive/Non-Independent 5
Mr. N. B. Weerasekera Non-Executive/ Independent 3 18 Nov 2023
Mr. H. D. Abeywickrama Non-Executive/ Independent 5
Mr. M.R Rao Non-Executive/ Non-Independent 5 4
Mr. A. R. Rasiah Non-Executive/ Independent 5
Mr. C. L. Loo Non-Executive/Non-Independent 3 5 Dec 2023
Mr. S.G. Sathasivam Non-Executive/ Non-Independent 5 4
Mr. A Herath Non-Executive/ Independent 2 2 12 Dec 2023
Mr. M. R. Mihular Non-Executive/ Independent 2 2 12 Dec 2023
Mr. M. T. Siddique Non-Executive/ Independent 2 1 12 Dec 2023

Induction & Training for
Directors

On appointment, Directors are
provided with an orientation pack
with all relevant external and internal
regulation documents and a tour of
the estate, palm oil factory premises
and dairy farm. The Board of Directors
recognize the need to keep abreast
of current developments affecting

the sector both globally and locally
with reference to regulatory changes

and the country’s economy. They

undertake training and professional
development by attending seminars
workshops/conferences, participating
as speakers at events, using web-
based learning resources and reading

regulatory updates etc

Evaluations

Appraisal of CEO
The performance of the Chief

Executive Officer is evaluated

twice a year, via a mid-year and

year-end appraisal by the Board
against predetermined goals and
criteria which are agreed and set
with the CEO at the beginning of
the year. Remuneration is based on

performance.

Board Evaluations

The Chairman evaluates the Board
Members, and their independence
periodically.




Remuneration Policy

The Board is assisted by the
Remuneration Committee in
determining remuneration of
Directors. The level of remuneration
reflects the experience and level of
responsibilities undertaken by the

Director concerned.

Accountability & Audit

The Board approved the quarterly
reports prior dissemination to

the public through the CSE and

the corporate website. The Audit
Committee reviews the financial
statements and recommends the
financial statements for approval by
the Board. The following reports set
out further information required by the
Code:

The Directors’ Report on page 129
(including the declaration that the

company is a going concern)

The Statement of Directors’
Responsibility on page 129

Report of the Auditors on page 150-
154

External Auditor

The External Auditor is appointed

by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting. The Audit
Committee monitors and reviews the
External Auditor’s independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness

of the audit process considering
relevant professional and regulatory
requirements.

Assignment of non-audit services to
External Auditors is reviewed by the
Audit Committee who determine
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whether the potential impairment of
independence and objectivity of the
External Auditor in carrying out his

duties and responsibilities.

Oversight of Subsidiaries

Chairman and other directors sit

on the Boards of subsidiaries and
provides feedback to the main Board
on matters of concern.

Finance and Human Resources
functions have regular meetings with
heads of corresponding functions

in the subsidiaries to ensure
harmonization and sharing of best
practice.

Internal audit co-ordinates with
internal auditors of the respective
subsidiaries to ensure that audits

are conducted in line with expected
standards and in line with the agreed

audit plans.

Relations with Shareholders

The Group engages with Shareholders
through multiple channels. These
include the Annual General Meeting
(AGM), annual report, interim financial
statements, the Company website and
via the CSE’s website. Shareholders
also have the opportunity to ask
questions, comment or make
suggestions to the Board through

the Company Secretaries and at

the Annual General Meeting. All
significant issues and concerns of
Shareholders are referred to the Board

with the views of the Management.

Constructive use of Annual
General Meeting (AGM)

Shareholders are encouraged

to participate at the AGM and

the Chairman, Board members

and Chairpersons of Board Sub-
committees are available for discussion
at the AGM and respond to questions
directed to them by the Chairman.
Additionally, KMPs of the Group are
also present to assist the directors in

this regard.

Notice of the AGM, the Annual

Report and Accounts and any

other resolution together with the
corresponding information that may
be set before the shareholders at the
AGM, are circulated to shareholders
minimum 15 days prior to the AGM.
Separate resolutions for each item

of business, facilitating voting on

each of such issue, separately. Voting
procedures at the AGM are circulated
to the shareholders in advance. The
Company has an effective mechanism
to record and count all proxy votes
lodged for each resolution. In the
event there are a significant proportion
of the votes cast against a resolution,
the Board will take steps to understand
the reasons behind the vote results
and determine if any actions are

required.

Given below is the status of
compliance with the CSE Listing Rules
—section 7-10 and the Code of Best
Practice on Corporate Governance
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka in 2023.
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Reference to Corporate Governance How we Comply Compliance
ICASL Code & Principle Status
CSE Listing
Al The Board
Held every quarter and special meetings held as and
A1 Board Meetings va P g |
when necessary.
¢ Focus on developing strategies for business
development and to provide guidance to the
management
e Sets the budget for the financial year and reviews
Al.2 Role of the Board progress at the monthly meetings. ¥
e Approving capital expenditure
e Ensures that effective internal control and risk
management framework is in place
The Board seeks independent professional advice
. ) when deemed necessary, particularly before making
Compliance with laws and o ] T )
. any decisions which could have a significant impact
access to independent the C
on the Company.
A.13 professional advice pany v
Further the Board is always mindful of the new laws/
regulations which are implemented and ensures
compliance with same.
Access to advice from the
Company Secretary
A4 All directors have access to the advice of the 7
: Indemnifying the Board, Company Secretary.
Directors and key
management personnel
i Board comprises mainly of independent professionals
Independent judgment of ) o ) :
A15 . who in turn exercise independent judgement in |
the Directors . . . .
discharging their duties.
Regular Board meetings and sub-committee
Alb Dedicating adequate time meetings are scheduled well in advance and Board 7
’ and effort papers circulated 1 week prior to the meetings,
giving adequate time to prepare.
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Resolutions are passed for all Board approvals and

A7 Calls for resolutions i
minutes are kept.
At the time a Director is appointed a letter confirming
such appointment together with details on the duties
of a Director in terms of the Act and Listing Rules are
A18 Training of Directors forwarded to them.
All Directors have considerable experience in
the industry. Relevant local and foreign training
opportunities are made available.
Segregation of Roles of )
A.2.0 . Please refer Chairman and CEO on page 37.
Chairman & CEO
The Chairman ensures that meetings are conducted
. in an orderly manner and that each Board Member
A.3 Chairman’s Role o i
and Member of staff is given an opportunity to
present his views/ concerns on matters.
Members of the Board and Management have
A4 Financial Acumen sufficient financial knowledge and thus are able to
provide guidance on financial matters.
A5 Board Balance
Presence of Non-
A5/ Executive Directors
A5.2/A5.3 &
A55 Independence of Non- Please refer details in page 37.
Executive Directors
Annual Declaration of
AS4 Annual declarations citing their independence is
Independence by the )
) ] obtained by the secretary annually.
Non-Executive Directors
Alternate Director to a ) )
A5.6 ) ) No Alternate Directorships at 31 March 2024.
Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent ) )
A5.7/5.8 No Senior Independent Director.

Director
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Chairman meeting

When required the Executive Directors and Members

A5.9 with the Non-Executive i
) of staff are excused from meetings
Directors
) Concerns of Directors are recorded in minutes even
A.5.10 Recording concerns . )
in the case of disagreement.
Ab Supply of Information
Obligation of the
Ab1 Management to provide Board Papers and Committee papers are provided at
o appropriate and timely least one week before the meeting
information
Board papers to be i .
. ) Board papers are provided one week prior to the
Ab.2 provided 7 days prior to )
] Board meeting.
Board Meeting
A7 Appointments to the Board
o All new appointments are informed to the CSE as per
Nomination and o ) )
) existing regulations. Appointments are undertaken
Governance Committee ) ]
AT /AT2 by the Board of Directors. The Board's skills and
and the assessment of ) o }
N knowledge is assessed periodically and informed to
composition of the Board .
the Directors.
Disclosure pertaining to any new appointments are
) made to the CSE within two market days from the
A73 Disclosure of ) . .
Aoboint tofaN date of such appointment. The disclosure includes a
ointment of a New
DPp . brief profile of the Director and whether the Director
irector
is an Independent/ Non-Executive / Executive
Director.
A8 Re-election
1/3 of the Non-Executive Directors will retire
from office on a rotational basis at each AGM.
A8.1/A8.2 Re-election The Nominations and Governance Committee
recommends the Directors for re-election, and
approval by the Board.
) ) In the event of a resignation, a letter of resignation is
A.8.3 Resignation . )
provided by the Director.
A9 Appraisal of Board Performance
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A91/A9.2/

Appraisals of the Board The Board's skills and knowledge is self-assessed and 7
A9 3/A9 4 and the sub committees by Chairman.
A.10 Disclosure of Information in Respect of Directors

Profiles of the Board ) )
} The names of the Directors of the Board and their
A.10.1 of Directors and other ; ) |
) . profiles are given on page 26-29
related information

A1 Appraisal of Chief Executive Officer
Setting of the annual The performance of the CEQO is reviewed twice a year
AT1.1/A11.2 targets and the appraisal by the Board based on the strategic targets set for |
of the CEO the year.
B. Directors’ Remuneration
B.1 Remuneration Procedure
Refer Directors’ Remuneration on page 185
B.1.1
Set up a Remuneration
Committee with agreed The Report of the Remuneration Committee on M
terms of reference pages 121 - 122 gives the composition of the
Committee and a description of its activities during
the year.
B.1.2
Remuneration Committee
to consist of Non- Consists of 3 Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors only
B.1.3
List names of
Remuneration Committee Please refer page 36 |
in Annual Report
B.14 Determination of the Remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is
remuneration of the Non- decided by the Board in consultation with the |
Executive Directors Chairman.

B.2 The Level & Makeup of Remuneration
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The level and makeup
B.21/B.2.2/ of the remuneration of Remuneration levels have been designed to attract,
B.2‘3/B.2‘4 Directors and comparison retain and motivate Directors while remaining within
T of remuneration with the industry standards.
other companies
No performance-based remuneration since the
Performance based ) ) i )
B.2.5 . Executive Directors do not get involved in day to day
remuneration .
operations.
B.2.6 Executive share options No share options offered.
Designing schemes of : .
Refer the Report of the Remuneration Committee on
B.2.7 performance-based
. page 121
remuneration
B.3 Disclosure of Remuneration
531 Report of the Remuneration Committee on page 121
- Disclosure of
Remuneration Notes 9 and 36.2 in the financial statements on page
121

C. Relations with Shareholders

Annual General Meeting

CA1 Constructive use of AGM and Conduct of Meetings
) . Notice of Meeting, the Agenda for the Annual
Dispatch of Notice of i
General Meeting and the Annual Report are
C.11 AGM and related papers i .
circulated to shareholders prior to 14 days as
to shareholders ) : .
required by the Articles of Association and the Code.
Separate resolution for .
i Separate resolutions are passed for each matter
C1.2 substantially separate
) taken up at the AGM
issues.
Accurate recording and
c13 counting valid proxy Valid proxies are listed together with the number of
o appointments received for shares held by the shareholder appointing the proxy.
general meeting
Availability of Chairman of The Chairmen of the Board Committees are present
C14 Board Committees at the to answer any queries of the shareholders directed to

them by the Chairman of the Company.
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Summary of Notice of
General Meetings and o )
: A summary of the procedure on voting is given in the
C.1.5 procedures governing i ) )
i Notice of Meeting.
voting at General
Meetings
C2 Communications with shareholders
The AGM and EGM (if any) are used as the method
for communicating with the shareholders.
All quarterly and annual financial information and
other important matters as required for by the Act
and the Listing Rules are shared by way of disclosures
through the CSE.
Communications with The Company Secretaries/ Registrars are the main
C21toC27 !
Shareholders contact people for the shareholders.
All major concerns of the shareholders are brought
to the notice of the Board at the AGM and at Board/
Sub-committee meetings.
All queries of shareholders are answered at the AGM
and all shareholders are given the opportunity to
express their views/concerns.
C3 Major & Material Transactions
There were no matters which were identified as Major
Transactions during the year as such no disclosure
Disclosure of Major has been made in this regard.
C31&C32 . 4]
Transactions In the event there are Major Transactions, relevant
disclosures and relevant shareholder approvals are
obtained.
D. Accountability & Audit
D.1.1 Annual Report Refer Accountability & Audit on page 41 |
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In preparing annual and quarterly Financial
Statements, the Company complies with the
requirements of the;
Interim and price sensitive « Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,
D.1.2 reports to public and e Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and
regulators e Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The annual and interim Financial Statements were
published within the time periods prescribed by the
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
D13 Director/CEO/FC Directors’ and Financial Controller’s responsibility
o Declaration statement
o4 Directors’ Report Refer Annual Report of the Board of Directors on
declarations page 116.
Refer the following:
Statements on
responsibilities for ¢ Statement of Board responsibility for preparation
D.1.5 preparation of financial of financial statements — page 129
statements and internal ) ) )
ol e Statement from Auditors on their reporting
contro
responsibilities — page 153
. . Refer annual report pages from 19 to 23 which
Management discussion & _ _ _ _
D.1.6 i provides a comprehensive management discussion
analysis
y and analysis of the Group's operations
) ) Shareholders will be informed of a serious loss of
D.1.7 Serious loss of capital o i
capital in the event it happens.
Refer the following disclosures on Related Party
Transactions:
¢ Relates Party Transactions Review Committee
D.1.8 Related Party transactions Report on page 127
e Annual Report of the Board of Directors on page
116
¢ Note 36 to the financial statements
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D.2 Risk Management & Internal Control
Monitor, review and
report on financial,
D.2.1 operational and M
compliance risk and
internal control systems
Confirm assessment of
D.2.2 the principal risks of the The following reports provide details on compliance M
company with these requirements:
D.2.3 Internal Audit * Risk Report on page 71-74 o
e Risk & Internal Control on page 125
Require Audit Committee
to carry out reviews of & ¢ Audit Committee Report on page 124 -
D.24
Board responsibility for
disclosures
Compliance with
D.25 Directors’ responsibilities |
as set out by the Code
D.3 Audit Committee
Establish an Audit
D.3.1 Committee comprising Audit Committee comprises 3 non-executive
wholly of Non-Executive directors of whom 3 are independent. Refer Audit |
directors of which at least Committee on page 124.
2 must be independent
D.32 Written Terms of The Audit Committee has a written Terms of
Reference for Audit Reference summarized in the Audit Committee |
Committee Report on page 124.
D33 . The Audit Committee Report with required
Disclosures ) ) |
disclosures are given on page 124.
D.4 Related Party Transactions Review Committee
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E. Institutio

E. 1.1

nal Investors

Institutional investors

D.4.1/D.4.2/ Refer
D43 Related Party Transactions ¢ Related Party Transactions Review Committee on
Review Committee page 127
e Report of the Related Party Transactions Review
9.32 Committee on page 127
D.5 Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
Board declaration for
D.5.1 compliance with Code Refer Code of Ethics on page 34.
) o ) Material and price sensitive information is promptly
D.5.2 Price sensitive information ) )
disclosed to the CSE by the Company Secretaries.
553 Monitor Share purchase Refer the Related Party Transactions Committee
o by Directors/ KMPs Report on page 127.
Refer the Chairman’'s Message on Corporate
D54 Chairman’s statement Governance on page 20 and The Board of Directors’
Statement on Internal Controls on pages 19 to 20.
The Corporate Governance Report on pages 39
Corporate Governance o i ]
D.6 } to 41together with its Annexes comply with this
disclosures .
requirement.

The proxies of the major institutional investors, such

as the major shareholder are obtained.

E2

Evaluation of Governance

Disclosures

F. Other Investors

Investing and divesting

decision

Information required for evaluation of governance

structures is provided in the Annual Report.

We seek to provide sufficient information to investors
through the annual report, quarterly financial
statements and announcements to the CSE to assist
investors with their investment and divestment

decision.
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F.2.

G.1

H

Encouraging shareholder

participation

Identify connectivity and

related cyber risks

Environment, society and
governance

Refer Shareholder Relations on page 41

G. Internet of things and cyber security

We proactively update firewalls and take precaution

against cyber security threats.

H. Environment, Society & Governance

Refer ESG Reporting from page 66 to page 68

H.1

Consider the impact

of sustainability risks
and opportunities in
the business model,
operations and short,
medium and long term
plans to build resilience
and report the same to
the Board.

We consider the impact of sustainability related risks
and opportunities.

H.2

I. Special Co

Continuously engage
with and consider the
views of its stakeholders
to better understand and
manage the company'’s
sustainability/ ESG risk
and opportunities.

Listed entities shall
establish and maintain
policies relating to its
governance and disclose
the fact of existence of
such policies together
with the details relating
to the implementation of
such policies by the entity
on its website.

nsiderations for Listed

Listed entities shall
establish and maintain a
formal policy governing
matters relating to the
board of directors.

The Company continuously engages with its
stakeholders to consider the views and manage
concerns to manage its reputation and to preserve its
social license to operate.

Companies

Policies are being reviewed and revised prior to
publishing their details on the Company’s website.
We expect to have this completed by the effective
date specified by the CSE which is 1st October 2024.
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Section 9 — Corporate Governance

Rule Ref Disclosure Requirement Page Ref.
Statement confirming the extent of compliance with the 42-51
Corporate Governance Rules

9.1.3

9.2.2 Any waivers from compliance with the Internal Code of business Effective 1%t October 2024
conduct and ethics or exemptions granted

9.2.3() List of policies in place as per Rule 9.2.1, with reference to website Effective 15t October 2024

9.2.3 (ii) Any changes to policies adopted Effective 1% October 2024

The policy on effective communication and relations with shareholders

and investors

The contact person for such communication
9.4.2 41

The policy on relations with shareholders and investors on the
process to make all Directors aware of major issues and concerns of

shareholders

Confirmation on compliance with the requirements of the Policy on

matters relating to the Board of Directors. If non-complied reasons for 36
9.5:2 the same with proposed remedial action.
9.6.3 Report of SID demonstrating the effectiveness of duties Not applicable
9.6.4 Rationale for appointing SID Not applicable
Statement on Directors and CEO satisfying Fit and Proper Assessment
975 Criteria 123

Any non-compliance/s and remedial action taken

9.8.5 Names of Directors determined to be ‘independent’ 36
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9.10.4 Directors details

name, qualifications and brief profile
— nature of his/her expertise in relevant functional areas

— whether either the Director or Close Family Members has any

material business relationships with other Directors
— whether Executive, Non-Executive and/or independent Director
— total number and names of companies in Sri Lanka in which the
Director concerned serves as a Director and/or KMP stating 26-29
whether listed or unlisted, whether functions as executive or non-
executive (If the directorships are within the Group names need
not be disclosed)

— number of Board meetings attended

— names of Board Committees in which the Director serves as

Chairperson or a member
- Attendance of board committee meetings

— TOR and powers of SID
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9.11.6 Nominations and Governance Committee Report Effective date 1%t October
2024

- Signed by Chairperson

— Names of chairperson and members with nature of directorship

— Date of appointment to the committee

- Availability of documented policy and processes when nominating
Directors

— Requirement of re-election at regular intervals at least once in 3
years

— Board diversity

— Effective implementation of policies and processes relating to
appointment and reappointment of Directors

— Details of directors re-appointed

— Board Committees served Date of first appointment Date of last
re-appointment

— Directorships or Chairpersonships and other principal
commitments, present and held over the preceding three years

— Any relationships — close family member, more 10% shareholding

— Performance of periodic evaluation of board

— Process adopted to inform independent directors of major issues.

— Induction / orientation programs for new directors on corporate
governance, Listing Rules, securities market regulations or negative
statement

— Annual update for all directors on corporate governance, Listing
Rules, securities market regulations or negative statement

— Compliance with independence criteria

- Statement on compliance with corporate governance rules, if non-
compliant reasons and remedial actions

9.12.8 Remuneration Committee Report
— Names of chairperson and members with nature of directorship
— Remuneration policy
121-122

— The aggregate remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive

Directors.
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9.13.5 Audit Committee Report
— Names of chairperson and members with nature of directorship
— Status of risk management and internal control — company and
group
— Statement on CEO and CFO assurance on operations and finances
— Opinion on compliance with financial reporting requirements,
information requirements Listing Rules, Companies Act, SEC Act 124-126
and any other requirements.
— Availability of formal Audit Charter
— Internal audit assurance and summary of the work internal audit
— Details demonstrating effective discharge of functions and duties
— Statement on external auditors’ assurance on their independence
— Confirmation on determining auditor’s independence
9.14.8 (1) Related Party Disclosures
Non-recurrent RPT exceeding 10% of the Equity or 5% of the Total
Assets, whichever is lower (in the specified format)
— Name of the RP Relationship bg 220
- Value of RPT
— Value as % of equity and total assets
— Terms and Conditions
- Rationale
9.14.8 (2) Recurrent RPT exceeding 10% of the gross revenue/income (in the
specified format)
— Name of the RP Relationship
— Nature of RPT pg 220
- Value of aggregate RPT
— Value as % of gross income
— Terms and Conditions
9.14.8 (3) Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report
— Names of the Directors comprising the Committee
127-128

— Statement that committee has reviewed RPTs and communicated

comments/observations to the Board

— Policies and procedures adopted by the Committee
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9.14.8 (4)

Affirmative declaration by the Board of Directors on compliance

with RPT Rules or negative statement to that effect.

127

9.16

Additional disclosures by Board of Directors Declaration on following.

— All material interests in contracts and have refrained from voting on

matters in which they were materially interested

— Reviewed of the internal controls covering financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and obtained
reasonable assurance of their effectiveness and successful
adherence, and, if unable to make any of these declarations an

explanation on why it is unable to do so;

— Made themselves aware of applicable laws, rules and regulations
and are aware of changes particularly to Listing Rules and

applicable capital market provisions;

— disclosure of relevant areas of any material non-compliance with
law or regulation and any fines, which are material, imposed by any
government or regulatory authority in any jurisdiction where the

Entity has operations.

129
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The Strategic Report

Our Business Model

The model below depicts how we deliver value to our multiple stakeholders by strategically leveraging our capital inputs.

Value Drivers
Capital Inputs

Value Creation Process

Business Segments

Finamcial [:.IFI:E.'ll
Share rs’ funds - LEKR & 397 Mn

Debt: LK

(For more details refer Page34 - 56

Corporate Governance

Matural Capital
Land Extent; 4,824.34
Water use: 53,788 m3

Energy consumption: 21
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Responding to Our Stakeholders

Ongoing stakeholder engagement enables us to remain attuned to evolving stakeholder expectations and respond
proactively to these expectations. In determining which stakeholders to engage with, we place priority on those who most

impact and are most impacted by our operations. A high-level overview of the Group's stakeholder engagement activities

during the year is presented below:
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Determining Material Issues

Process to determine material topics
GRI 3-1

Material topics are those that impact our value creation process in the short, medium and long term. We have a systematic
approach to determining our material matters which involves assessing risks, opportunities and threats in terms of relative
importance to stakeholders and impact on our operations. The material issues thus identified and prioritized form the basis of
our strategy, risk management practices and reporting practices.

A comprehensive list of issues is
» e ' deoveloped based on our UNSDG
|dE ntlflcat ion policy commitments, our sustainability/ethical
accreditation criteria, business activities
and findings from stakeholder engagement.

Internal Analysis is carried out to assess
potential and real, positive and negative impacts
on human rights, our stakeholders, the
envirenment and the econamy.

Prioritization Maost impactful topics for disclosure aro
of issues prioritised and selected

Prioritized topics are approved by the senior
MEHEQFTHEHT rmansgement team including tha CEO and

Review Financial Controller
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Determining Material Topics

GRI 3-1 Process to determine material topics

Risk Management Processes GRI 3-2 List of material topics

® Selection of topics

The list of topi lected terial i
® I|dentifying key stakeholders . © st ot fopies selected o8 materiatis
given below.

® |dentifying impacts
Please note that our responses to
GRI 3-3 Management of Material

®  Prioritizing the topics

® Approval by senior management
PP y ° Topics is disclosed under the specific

disclosures, for which the page
1. As the first step, we reviewed the

numbers are provided in the GRI Index
topics from the GRI Standards

on page 132 of this report.
2021 and selected topics deemed

material by the CEO and the
senior management team. This
selection was based on our
UNSDG policy commitments, our
sustainability/ethical accreditation

criteria, and our business

activities.
2. Secondly, we identified our key

stakeholder groups and their Topic number Material topic

expectations. GRI 201 Economic Performance 2016
3. Thirdly, potential and real, positive

o GRI 301 Materials 2016
and negative impacts on human
rights and our stakeholders, the GRI 302 Energy 2016

environment and the economy

were identified. This impact GRI 303 Water and effluents 2018
assessment was influenced mainly

by the views of our regulators, GRI 304 Biodiversity 2016
employees, communities and
buyers, as understood by the GRI 305 Emissions 2016
senior management.
GRI 306 Waste 2020
4. Thereafter the most impactful
topics for disclosure were GRI 401 Employment 2016
prioritized and selected.
GRI403 Occupational Health & Safety 2018
5. Finally, the topics were approved
by the senior management team GRI'404 Training and Education 2016

including the CEO and Financial

Controller.
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Our sustainability commitments directly contribute to several of the United Nations Sustainabili-
ty Development Goals (UNSDGs).

1 Wil
POVERTY

T dil

LGENDIEH
EOULTTY

[HIRIETRY, INONETION
AHT IFRASTRLCTLRE

Community Integration

We prioritize the integration of local, small-scale suppliers into our
supply chain, thereby creating income opportunities for rural and
estate families, Mareover, the company actively invests in community
infrastructure and implemants varous community development
projects aimed at supporting fivelihoods, mproving community health,
and enhancing education. Through aongoing Corporate Social Invest-
maent (C51) projects, Watawsla Plantations PLC continues to suppaort
the surrounding estate community, demonstrating a steadfast commit-
ment to the well-being and prosperity of the areas in which it operates.

Gender Equality
in FY24, 34% of sur employess were female. We continue to work
towards creating an empowaring and supportive cutture for our fermale

employeas to thrive

Renewable Energy Drive

We contribute to dean enaergy through the implementation of renew-
pble energy projects, which power our business activities and efective-
Iy decrease our reliance on electricity and fossil fuels. We therefore
continue to invest in bio mass, solar enangy, hydro power,

Driving Innovation

Whe nnn'tlnr.mu:hl inwest in innavative l'vm:hm:-|n-gr o chrivie griater
efficiency and sustainability. Meanwhile we engage closely with indus-
try stakeholders to bulld industiy-wide knenvledge an global best
practices.
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G HEALYA EI'H.I'.'IE E'w' “Hg

KK WELL - EFING In addition to having in place a stringent health and safety policy the
company has obtained 150 45007:2018 - Oocupational health and
safety certification for the palm ofl mill to ensure the highest health and
safety standards.

Responsible consumption of resources

Watawala Plantations PLC is the first South Asian company to recsive
the RSP0 Principles and Criveria (PEC) certification for ts palrm ofl midll
in the Galle District. The company has also obtained RSPD certification
tar the antire value chain covering the entive plantation extent and
palm ol mill making it the only palm eil company to obtain RSPO
certification for its entire palm oil supply chain

CLIMATE Climate Action

13 ACTION A robust erviranmental policy ensures that we mondtor our carbon
fl:rutprinq and prual:lil.ruh' taks action & mEnimize our #missions. We
usa the latest RSPO Palm GHG caloulator and GHG Protocol acoount-
ing standard to map our Green House Gas emissions.

Strong Governance
Our robust govermance mechansms ane ammed at nn:.'uring accountabil

ity acrass all levels of our organization,

Strong partnerships

We continue to build strong partnerships with government and
naon-governmant arganisations, academdc and research organisaticns
and trade associations to drive synergies and have a greater impact an
sustainability goals.




Risk and Opportunities

Risk management is a critical function
for WATA as the variables are

many and inherently volatile with a
significant impact on the financial
and operational outcomes. WATA

is supported by its parent company,
Sunshine Holdings to institutionalise
risk management throughout the
WATA Group as set out graphically
alongside, creating a culture of risk

awareness.

Risk Governance

The Board bears responsibility for
setting in place a risk management
framework for the WATA Group and
the Audit Committee is charged with
detailed oversight of this function.
Risk assessment is done centrally at
the SUN Group level for all business
segments. Additionally, there is

an executive Risk Committee of
WATA that also concurs with the
executive risk committee of Sunshine
Holdings that also looks at risk from
a Group perspective. A dedicated
Risk Manager supports the function,
providing the analysis and updates on

aregular basis.

A risk management system developed
with the consultation of the Audit

Committee and Risk Review

Committee is also implemented across

the Group. Headline risks including
political/ regulatory risks, external
risks, strategic risks and business

risks are all assessed and managed

by this committee. Internal controls
are formally established at both
WATA & WDL and internal audit is
outsourced to EY. WATA & WDL has a

dedicated internal auditor who reports
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to the SUN Group Internal Audit &

Compliance Officer who reports to the
SUN Group Internal Audit Committee.

Risk Management Processes
WATA Risk Committee has a risk
Terms of Reference (TOR) which was
issued by the CEO on 28th December
2021. The TOR covers the purpose
and mandate, power, authority and
responsibilities, membership and
composition, content of discussion

and conduct and code of values.

The risk structure follows a bottom-up
approach from each level of business
— Udugama estate, oil palm mill,

and farm. As shown alongside, there
are two risk committees for WATA —
Regional Risk Committee and Head
Office Risk Committee. WDL has only
the Head Office Risk Committee.

The WPL Regional Risk Committee

is held quarterly at the estate level

and identified risks are brought to

1 | (Catastrophic/
Extreme)

2 | (Major/Very

the attention of the Head Office Risk
Committee. The Risk Committee
meeting is held quarterly to identify
and update the committee on new
risks as well as removal of risks which
are deemed obsolete and any changes

in risk profiles.

The risk matrix is updated by adding
new risks, removing risks which are
not a risk, updating the risk impact
and likelihood. A qualitative risk
assessment is followed rather than a
quantitative risk assessment. Minutes
of the risk committee meetings are
shared after the risk meeting. The
Company risk presentations with the

risk matrix are presented to the SUN

Group Risk Committee quarterly.

High Impact)

§' 3 | (Moderate/

o High Impact)

>

o .

4 4 | (Minor Impact)

~

k v} 5 | (Low/

9 Insignificant

o g

£ Impact)
(Rare/ (Unlikely | (Possible (Likely (Almost
Remote) | to Occur) | to Occur) | to Occur) | certain to
Occur Occur)

1 3 4 5

Occurrence/Likelihood
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Improvements in 2023/24

With the issue of the IFRS Sustainability Standards in June 2023 followed by the issue of SLFRS S1 and S2 in January 2024, we

have commenced our journey to adopt the standards with a study and adapting our risk registers to capture the data. Our

intermediary solution is set out on page 71 and 74.
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WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC

Our Principal Risks
Watawala Plantations PLC
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Operational Risks Strategic Risks
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Strategic Risks
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Our risk management process has so far focused mainly on qualitative assessments with a few top risks qualified. We
will be extending the quantifying of risks in 2024/25 to enable assessment of risks in accordance with SLFRS S1 and S2.

Sustainability Related Risks & Opportunities
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Operating Environment

Plantation Sector

Pl i, L T R | 103

The plantation sector continued to &
face considerable challenges during
the year due to adverse weather -

conditions which impacted outputs of

Lomw= &

tea, rubber and coconut. Rising cost
of production driven by inflationary

pressures meanwhile continued to

impact margins and profitability of -4

& - “ 1 [
the sector while labour shortages are L e Ll e

a growing concern across plantation Source: CBSL ANNUAL ECONOMIC REVIEW 2023

companies.

Key Market Developments Impacting Plantation Sector Impact

Sluggish Economic Conditions Negative
The economy continued to witness a contraction during the first two quarters of 2023 before witnessing a
gradual recovery towards the last two quarters of 2023. As a result, economic conditions and by extension

disposable income levels remained sluggish during the year.

Removal of Import Restrictions Positive
The gradual removal of import restrictions during the year together with the appreciation of the Rupee

reduced the price and increased availability of chemical fertilizers.

Rupee Appreciation Positive
The Sri Lankan Rupee which depreciated by 44.8% against the US Dollar in 2022, appreciated by 12.1% in
2023 as the acute shortages in FOREX liquidity witnessed in 2022 eased.

Labour Shortages Negative
Labour shortages in the plantation sector is a persisting issue. This has been exacerbated by the migration

of skilled labour due to high levels of migration from the country.

Policy if the Ban on Palm Oil Cultivation Negative
The ban on oil palm cultivation effected in April 2021 remained in force during FY2023/24.

Oil Palm through coconut oil and imported Cinnamon

The palm oil industry in Sri Lanka cooking oils. Palm oil prices declined Sri Lanka is the world's largest
currently meets around 10% of the sharply in 2023 due to lower global producer and exporter of pure
domestic edible oil demand. The prices and subdued domestic demand cinnamon, accounting for 90% of

remainder of the demand is met conditions. the global market. In 2022 the EU
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granted Geographical Indication (Gl)
certification to Ceylon Cinnamon.
The certification acts as a source

of competitive advantage, helping
increase market differentiation and
product turnover for the spice, while
allowing for a premium price from the

consumer.

Tea

Tea export prices remained buoyant
throughout 2023 despite a decline

in export volumes. Tea production
during the year meanwhile continued
to be impacted by adverse weather
conditions as well as the lagged
effect of the now revoked fertilizer

ban. Increasing cost of production

continues to be a key concern in the

industry.

Dairy Industry

Domestic milk production accounts
for approximately 30% of the

Nation's total demand, with total milk
production (cow milk and buffalo milk)
amounting to 504,153,360 liters in
2023 (Source: Department of Census
and Statistics). The sector plays an
important role not only in enhancing
food security in the country but also by
providing employment opportunities
to around 300,000 small-scale farmers
across the country. Considering

the importance of the sector to the

national economy the Government

has identified the sector as a priority
sector and mooted a special program
to increase milk production by 53%, in
5 years, with the participation of the
private sector.

Rubber

Weaker global and domestic demand
for raw rubber dampened rubber
prices in 2023, although a price uptick
was witnessed during the early part
of 2024. Domestic rubber production
meanwhile continued to decline due
to the combined effect of adverse
weather conditions, the spread

of Pestalotiopsis disease and low

productivity levels.

Key Market Developments Impacting Dairy Sector Impact
Rising Energy Costs Negative
Electricity tariffs were revised three times in 2023, with two upward revisions in February (66%) and October

(18%) and a downward revision in July 2023. (14%). The increase in energy costs has had an impact on

production costs.

Easing of Shortages in Cattle Feed Positive
Severe shortages of cattle feed witnessed in 2022 eased during the year as availability of maize improved

due to better domestic harvests and the removal of import restrictions. Meanwhile, the appreciation of the

Rupee also supported some stabilization of sharply escalating input costs.

VAT Hike Negative
Fresh milk production and fresh milk-based products which were previously VAT exempt, are liable for

18% VAT, with effect from January 1st, 2024, negatively impacting sector profitability and exacerbating

vulnerabilities.
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Plantation sector

Overview Contribution to Group

Despite the sector recording its
highest ever oil palm crop production FY2023/24 As a % of Group Total

during the year, performance was
impacted by subdued domestic Revenue 6,867 82%
demand and a dip in palm oil
prices. Despite these challenging Profits 2,404 NA
conditions, the plantation sector
recorded a revenue and profit before Total Assets 8,925 74%
tax of Rs. 6,867 and Rs. 2,404 million

respectively. Employees 1,724 97%

Market Review

» According to import data, the volume of palm oil imports in 2022 and 2023
were significantly below the import volumes in prior years. However, import
volume in 2023 was 47% higher than in 2022. The decrease in the import
volume of palm oil is due to the overall drop in volume of edible oil imports
which is attributed to the drop in economic activity due to the economic
crisis and Covid pandemic.

Palm oil price decreased by 19% due to lower domestic demand.

Performance
Meanwhile, cost of production per Kg, decreased by 10% due to cost Despite a notable

reduction and drop in fertilizer price. . .
increase in yields per

Continued uncertainty surrounding policy on oil palm cultivation remains a hectare and total crop

key barrier to growth prospects during the year, revenue

from the plantation
% sector declined by 9%
2023/24 2022/23 Increase/ to Rs. 6,867 million in
Decrease

FY 2023/24 due to a

prices during the year.
COSt °f PrOdUCtion (Rs“ Kg) “ MeanWhile’ Segmental

profits increased by Rs.
Crop produced (MT) 57,072 52,472 68 million and recorded a

3% increase to Rs. 2,404

Yield per Hectare (MT/ . million during the period
hectare) y 7% under review.
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Strategic focus and key initiatives in FY 2023/24

Driving process efficiencies through field mechanization and factory automation.

Continued emphasis on improving crop yields through the adoption of good agronomy practices which

included a crop sanitation programme to improve bunch formation and reduce stresses on the palm.

Improvements to mill infrastructure to increase processing efficiency and product quality. Key investments
during the year included the commencement of the project to increase the palm oil mill ramp crop storage

capacity, increasing the crop transport vehicle fleet and road maintenance of harvester paths.

Several quality improvement initiatives were carried out at the mill including providing feedback to

harvesters on quality of crop received.

Commenced evaluation of a new palm oil effluent management system.

Rs.. 19 Mn invested in improving employee facilities including staff quarters and worker housing.
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Dairy

Overview Contribution to Group

As th dl t - t
S the second largest non-governmen FY2023/24 As a % of Group Total
fresh milk producer, WDL contributes

to over 1.3% of domestic cow milk
Revenue 1,454 18%
production. The sector witnessed a
turnaround performance during the .
. . _p uring Profits (139) N/A
year recording a 22% revenue growth
despit ti t fRs.. 139
espite posting a net loss of Rs Total Assets 3177 6%
Mn
Employees 57 3%

Market Review

e Domestic milk production accounts for approximately 30% of the nation’s Performance

total demand Dai
airy sector revenue

Drop in disposable consumer income driven by the country’s economic increased 22% to Rs..1,454
million in FY 2023/24

supported by an increase
in both volume and price.
Production costs meanwhile continued to soar with the high cost of The availability of cattle
electricity and appreciation of the Rupee leading to an increase in costs feed improved significantly
related to animal feed, vitamins and minerals. compared to the previous

With risi ducti . ina the viability of 1 o f year and the farm was able
Ith rising production costs impacting the viability ot small- scale tarms, to procure better quality

over 14,000 small scale farms were estimated to have shut down during the feed at a lower cost in 2H
impacting supply conditions which resulted in cattle
feed costs decreasing

in 2H FY24. However,
the cost of cattle feed
increased during the
year due to holding and

% Increase/ consumption of higher

was procured previously.
Total Milk Production (Litres) 5.7 Mn m Consequently, GP margins

Milk Yield per cow (Litres/ improved during the
19.2 2 year. Consequently, WDL
Day) witnessed a commendable
Average number of milkers 945 turnaround during the
. year despite recording a
Days of silage stock 153 net loss of Rs.. 139 Million
compared to the loss

| 199 of Rs.. 334 Million in FY
sold 2022/23.

condition and the imposition of higher taxes impacted consumer demand
in the dairy industry

Cow milk production dipped 1.9% YoY whilst buffalo milk production

increased 6.6% YoY in 2023 resulting in a dip in total milk production of
0.5% in 2023

Feed cost per litre of milk
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Strategic focus and key initiatives in FY 2023/24

e Continued focus on increasing milk yields by improving cattle health and nutrition. During the year investments

were made to improve the conditions of cattle sheds to improve the living conditions of cattle

Ongoing focus on improving the quality of milk

Several heifers were purchased during the year as part of ongoing efforts to build a high-quality replacement herd

Greater focus on controlling feed wastage to manage cost of feed. This included reorganizing the feed shed to

increase efficiency and better manage feed operations

Strategic emphasis on building feed sustainability

~

Current domestic
milk supply meets
only 30% of the
nations demand
indicating significant
growth potential

Shifting consumer
preferences towards

fresh milk over

OPPORTUNITIES

imported powdered

milk

RISKS

Impact of VAT driven
price increase on
demand for milk amidst
lower disposable income

levels

Availability and cost of
key inputs such as feed,

medicines and vaccines
Aging herd

Change in end consumer
behaviour towards
consumption of dairy in

the long term

WAYFORWARD

~

Whilst continuing to
focus on increasing
milk yields in the
short term, we
remain focused on
building the herd
and improving herd
genetics in the
medium to long
term. Achieving feed
sustainability whilst
procuring higher
quality feed at a
lower cost will also be

a key priority.

J
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Financial Capital

¢ Delivered healthy profits despite the downturn in the economy

e Revenue from oil palm contracted by 9% despite an increase in volume as the prices declined due to reduced

demand.

e Dairy sector reported a revenue growth of 22%

¢ Sale of RSPO credits amounting to Rs.. 50 Mn

Oil Palm
23/24 22/23 % 23/24 22/23 % 23/24 22/23 %
Revenue 6,867 7,574 -9% 1,454 1,195 22% 8,321 8,768 -5%
Profit after tax 2,404 2,336 3% (139) (321) 57% 2,345 2,332 1%
Assets 8,925 8,602 4% | 3,177 3,008 6% | 9,431 8,834 7%
Liabilities 2,418 2,050 18% 1,109 799 39% 3,034 2,331 30%
ROA 27% 27% -5% -11% 26% 26%
ROE 37% 35% -7% -15% 38% 36%
Profitability
Rawo e PAT
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Stability

Total Asseis

Revenue

The Group reported a 5% contraction
in revenue as price for palm oil
recorded a decline of 22% due to
lower demand. Revenue from palm

oil which contributed to 83% of the
Group's top line declined by 9% to
reach Rs. 6,867 Mn, despite a 9%
increase in crop volume achieved by
an improved yield. Revenue from the
dairy sector amounted to Rs. 1,454 Mn,
recording a 22% growth supported by
an increase in both volume and price.
Total revenue recorded for the year
by the Group amounted to Rs. 8,321
Mn, against a revenue of Rs. 8,768 Mn
reported in the previous year.

Gross Profit

The plantation sector reported a gross
profit of Rs.. 3,240 Mn, a 13% decline
compared to the previous year driven
mainly by the sharp decrease in the

price.

The dairy sector reported a 13%
improvement in gross loss, reducing it
to Rs.. 147 million. This improvement

was driven by better margins, resulting

Debt Equity Ratio

from the increased availability of
cattle feed in the second half of the
year, allowing the farm to procure

higher-quality feed at a lower cost.

Accordingly, the gross profit for
the year recorded by the Group
contracted by 11% to reach

Rs.. 3,155 Mn.

Other Income

The Group reported other income of
Rs. 61 Mn driven mainly by the sales
proceeds of Rs. 50 Mn received by the
sale of RSPO credits.

Operating costs and
operating profit

The Group administrative expenses
increased by 23% to reach Rs.. 444
Mn, on the back of the necessary
salary adjustments carried out during
the year. The selling and distribution
costs increased by 91% to reach Rs..
151 Mn due to the inclusion of the
Social Security Contribution Levy
which came into effect on 1st October

2022. Accordingly, the operating

Tunrowsr

LR 21l L

® Plarvtation  m Dwiry

Oparating Lapenss & Oparating Profa

®OEPsm @ Dairy



profit margin of the Group weakened
marginally to 32% from the previous
years' 33%. The Group went on to
report an operating profit of Rs..
2,661 Mn compared to Rs.. 2,931 Mn
reported in the previous year.

Net Finance Expenses

Interest income for the year increased
by 32% to reach Rs. 184 Mn on the
back of an increase in short-term
investments. Meanwhile the interest
expenses came down 32% to Rs. 79
Mn as the interest rates witnessed a
significant decline during the year.
Consequently, the Group reported

a net interest income of Rs. 105 Mn,
an increase of more than 4 folds

compared to the previous year.

Pre and Post tax profits

The Group reported a pretax profit

of Rs. 2,766 Mn, a contraction of 6%
due to the decline in the top line and
the increased operational costs. The
tax charged for the year declined by
32% to reach Rs. 421 Mn due to the
deferred tax provision created last
year. Accordingly, the Group recorded
a net profit of Rs. 2,345 Mn, recording
a marginal growth of 1% compared to

the previous year.

Asset Base

The total assets of the Group
amounted to Rs.. 8,834 Mn at the end
of the previous financial year increased
by 7% to reach Rs.. 9,431 Mn as at 31+
March 2024. This increase was mainly
driven by a Rs.. 919 Mn increase in the
short-term investments. Non-current
assets, which amounted to 71% of the
total asset base increased by 5% to
Rs.. 6,674 Mn. The asset turnover which
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stood at 0.99 times at the close of the Ml Finarse Coat
previous year declined marginally to
0.88 times on the back of the increased

assets and reduced revenue.

Capital and Liabilities

Total equity which amounted to Rs. -
6,503 Mn at the beginning of the year ] 3
declined by 2% to reach Rs. 6,397 Mn
on the back of the dividend payments
made during the year. Total liabilities
increased by 30% to reach Rs.9,431 Mn
due to fresh borrowings of Rs. 155 Mn

Pra sl Fogn Tex Prodne

Ergrrae i dgials

obtained during the year, higher lease
liability arising from the increase in
right-of-use land assets and increase in
tax liabilities. Accordingly, the gearing
of the Group increased to 8% from

previous year's 4%.

Cash Flow

The Group's liquidity levels remained
healthy with cash and cash equivalents
of Rs. 797 Mn by end-year. Net

cash inflow from operating activities
increased by 39% to Rs.3,786 Mn on
the back of reduced inventory, trade
and other receivables. The Group

recorded a net cash outflow of Rs.

1,491 Mn from investing activities

P

due to cash directed to short term
investments. The Group reported a
net cash outflow of Rs. 2,375 Mn from
financing activities. Consequently, the

Wi Ty v (i 1o e i
Group recorded a net cash outflow of '
Rs. 81 Mn during the year compared to
the cash outflow of Rs. 629 Mn during |
|l R B s

the previous year.
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Social and Relationship Capital

¢ ,i\" >
1A% s

Our primary stakeholders, customers, suppliers, and the community, play a critical role in our value creation process.
As a result, we are committed to maintaining positive and mutually beneficial relationships by offering attractive value
propositions. Investing in these relationships not only enhances our brand value but also delivers tangible financial
benefits, including higher customer retention rates, reduced labour turnover, and increased operational efficiency within

our supply chain.

Value Additions in 2023/24

e 14,515 MT of crude oil

e 1,276 MT of palm kernel oil
e 3,230 MT of kernel cake

e 5.7 Mn Litres of milk

e Rs. 2,268 Mn paid to local
suppliers

e Rs. 282 Mn paid to foreign
suppliers

e Rs.46 Mn CSR d
s n spen e Rs. 27 Mn community

e 20,832 lives benefited infrastructure investment

o 5266 families benefited

Engaging with Our Customer Base

Our customer base comprises of B2B customers for both palm oil and dairy and direct customers for products such as
compost. Our relationships with customers are built on the solid foundations of reliability and quality. This approach has
allowed us to retain our customers and maintain consistently high levels of customer satisfaction. A key component of our

customer management strategy is ongoing engagement with the customer base.
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Engagement Mechanisms
& B2B Customers * Direct Meetings
its
Palm Qil (s

artly Meetings

Engagement Mechanisms

4 B2B Customers » Direct Meetings
* Visits

* Quartly Meetings

Engagement Mechanisms

1 B2C Customers wonthly Meetings
Compost

We prioritize the health and hygiene of our products and implement stringent quality controls throughout the manufacturing
process. Through rigorous assessments, we aim to ensure the safety and quality of our products, thereby fostering trust

and loyalty among our clientele. Further, maintaining trust among stakeholders is paramount for the Group. We uphold this
trust by adhering to the highest ethical standards in all our business dealings. Integrity, honesty, and transparency are core
elements of our operations, and we strictly comply with all applicable laws and group policies and terms of our contracts with
customers. We maintain a zero-tolerance approach towards corruption, including bribery, embezzlement, extortion, fraud, or

any other form of illegal or unethical conduct.
Our Customer Value Proposition

Suppliers

Our supplier network comprises of a diverse range of individuals and corporates, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs),

as well as local and international corporations. These suppliers provide essential inputs such as fresh fruit bunches, fertilizers,

Consistent Superior Quality Our palm oil products adhere to the high-quality standards set by Pyramid
Wilmar, and our dairy products also meet rigorous quality standards that is

expected by our customers.

Reliable and Uninterrupted Supply We have steadily increased our oil palm production by enhancing the yield
through various innovative yield techniques to guarantee continues supply to our

customers. Additionally, we maintain relations with third-party oil palm suppliers.

Engagement We maintain continuous engagement with our customers and value their input,
enabling us to foster long-standing relationships and consistently meet customer

expectations.
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agro inputs, packaging materials, and other necessary supplies. Over the years, we have cultivated these relationships

meticulously to establish a robust and dependable supply chain, which in turn enables us to maintain seamless operations.

2023/24

No. of local suppliers 502
No. of foreign suppliers 16
Payments to local suppliers Rs.. 2,268 Mn
Payments to foreign suppliers Rs.. 282 Mn

We procure Fresh Fruit Bunches (FFB) from 3 Regional Plantation Companies and 2 small-scale plantations. Additionally, we

engage with 300 other suppliers who offer various materials and services necessary for our operations.

Our commitment to sustainability extends to our supplier network, and we maintain a close collaboration with them to
promote sustainable practices. We conduct thorough assessments of suppliers during the onboarding process to ensure
compliance with all regulatory requirements, and we continue to conduct periodic assessments thereafter. Moreover, we
actively participate in supplier development initiatives by sharing our expertise in agriculture and processing, thereby

enhancing the quality of the products we procure while also increasing their productivity.

Initiatives to strengthen supply chain

e Maintaining collaborative relationships
Sharing market insights, providing feedback on product quality and performance, and collaborating on process

improvements to drive efficiency and reduce costs.

e Support for supplier development
Offering assistance in technological developments and sustainable practices. Also include providing training, access

to resources, and sharing best practices.

e Recognition and incentives

Awards, bonuses, or preferential treatment for top-performing suppliers.

e Support in mitigating risks
Assistance in managing risks such as market fluctuations, natural disasters, or regulatory changes can help build
resilience in the supply chain. This could involve sharing risk mitigation strategies, providing insurance coverage, or

collaborating on contingency plans.

Industry Partnerships

We engage in active collaboration with the following professional bodies to nurture the growth and development of our

industry. Our involvement with these organizations enables us to contribute to industry progress while offering our employees



Supplier Selection
Process

Identify sourcing
requirements

Determine criteria for supplier selection
such as quality, financial stability,
environmental and ethics and
regulatory requirements

Evaluate and short list suppliers

based on the set criteria

Negotiation and Contracting

Continuous engagement
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opportunities to exchange knowledge
and expertise with their counterparts.
Through our active participation in
these forums, we underscore our
dedication to fostering innovation and

excellence within our industry.

e Spices & Allied Products Producers
and Traders Association

e Sri Lanka - Australia - New Zealand
Business Council

e Ceylon Chamber of Commerce

e Colombo Rubber Traders'
Association

e Colombo Tea Traders Association
e National Chamber of Commerce
e Planters’ Association of Ceylon

e All Island Dairy Association

e Large Dairy Farm Association

® Sri Lanka Food Processors

Association

¢ National Chamber of Exporters

Community Engagement

Our commitment to the welfare of our

estate worker community is integrated

into our overall corporate strategy.
Watawala Plantations has reinforced its
dedication to community development
by integrating through its “CSR and
Village Integration Strategy” outlined
through 2025.This initiative, launched
during the year is aimed at enriching
the living conditions of the estate
community while enhancing the

Watawala brand image.

We recognize the interdependent
relationship we share with the estate
community and are dedicated to
enhancing their standard of living. We
work with the estate communities to
achieve social sustainability through
socio economic development and
empowerment. Listed below are such

initiatives carried out during the year.

Areas of focus Healthcare Sports & Fitness Education Engagement
No. of
L. 2,120+ 1,210+ 1,403+ 3,000+
beneficiaries
¢ Health camps for e Renovating the Palm * Women's day health e Regional : Children'’s
regional estates in Grove Badminton and awareness session Day event 2,000+
collaboration with Court for Estate Staff participants
regional hospitals
e Donation of e Awurudu Uthsawaya
e Eye clinics for Estate schoolbooks for the for 1,000+ people
Projects Staff and community children of Estate Staff

carried out
e Dental clinic at the

Talangaha Estate

e Awarding of
scholarships to the
children of Associates

and Staff
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Establishing lasting bonds with the community while building Watawala's reputation

STRATEGIC APPROACH

Strengthen and Implement impactful C3R and village integration, ensuring transparent engagement
'-\_ through effective communication with the general-public, employees, and nearby communities.

FOCUSED AREA

Community Social b Sustainable .." ’, Employee
Relations Impact ! E Operations u Engagement I ﬂ-
* Bullds trust and * Engaging with local * Enhances brand = Strengthens emplogas
goadwill armoeng cafmmiunities ensures g reputation and rmarket moralke and layalty.
stakehalders. poaitive social impact competitivensss,

= Boosts productivity
= Fostars long-tarm = Improves living condi- * Mitigates aperational and fosters a sense of
partmarships and tions, healthcare, educ- risks, ensuring long-term balanging among our
anhances social relations Hon, and infrastrucurs for sustainability in wiarkfarce
o aperats mearky villages, aparations,

%

Gond Health
well-being

'r CORE PRINCIPLE

By protecting people & planet we make profits

BENEFICIARIES 'v

Agri and Mill Operations | Business | Communities | Employees | Customers | Suppliers

‘ 1,691 Employees ‘
20.832 community population
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Human Capital

o

The Group has a workforce comprising engagement includes empowering returns through enhanced productivity
1709 employees, the majority of them through skill development but also enrich our intellectual capital
whom are estate workers (88%), these initiatives and enhancing their social by enhancing our skills, expertise and
individuals hold a crucial role in our standing, thereby elevating the quality knowledge pool.

operations and value creation process. of life of all employees. Investments in

Our holistic approach to employee human capital not only yield financial

iat @ i

GOOD HEALTH DECENT WORK AND
NO POVERTY AND WELL-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH

GENDER
EQUALITY

e Rs.5.5Mn Training Investment e Rs.1,347 Mn payments to

e 1323 of training hours provided to employees

58 executives

e 207 new recruits e Basic salary growth of 24%

e 12 promotions
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HR Governance

All aspects of Human Resource
management are guided by Group's
comprehensive HR policy framework
while the Employee Code of Conduct
sets out clear guideline on expected
professional and ethical conduct

of all employees. All policies and
procedures are developed to provide
structure, consistency, control,
fairness and transparency in managing
human resources while ensuring

that we create a dynamic team that

is aligned to our corporate values
and philosophy. Further, we comply
with the overreaching policies of our
parent, Sunshine Holdings PLC while
also implementing specific policies

tailored to our business needs.

OneHR, the centralized HR
department, serves as the central

hub for all HR activities within the
Group. It provides strategic direction,
standardizes processes, and ensures
consistency across business lines.
OneHR acts as a liaison between

HR Business Partners (HRBPs) and
different departments, coordinating
efforts to meet organizational
objectives. The HRBPs' are Integrated
into business units and serve as
strategic consultants to business
leaders through OneHR. They work in
close partnership with OneHR to align
HR initiatives with business objectives,
address the unique requirements of
their units, and ensure the effective
implementation of HR policies and

programs.

HR Policies that are in place are,

e Compensation and Benefits policy

e Equal Employment Opportunity policy

e Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Policy
e Training and Development Policy

e Whistle blower Protection policy

e Data Privacy and Confidentiality Policy

Team Profile

Our team comprises of 1709 individuals representing diversity in age and
capabilities. 94.5% of personnel are employed on a permanent basis while the
remaining are hired on contract basis for non-critical functions. Profile of our team

is given alongside.

Male Female Total

By Sector

Plantations 1,091 561 1,652
Dairy 49 8 57
By Contact

Permanent 1,034 515 1,549
Contract 56 47 103
Trainee 0 0 0
Intern 0 1 1
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Mobility During 2023/24

Industrial Relations Total staff cost for the year amounted to Rs. 1,347 Mn (2022/23 : Rs. 1,213 Mn).
6 trade unions are currently active, )

workforce. We uphold the employees’ Executives and staff — Head Office ® |Insurance

right to freedom of association and ® Medical facility
endeavour to foster positive relations ® Mobile allowance
through open communication and ® Conveyance allowance
engagement. Collaborating closely Executives - Estates e Billet Allowance

with trade union representatives, we ®  Medical facility
address employee grievances and e Mobile Allowance
concerns in a timely and effective e  Fuel/Traveling/Vehicle
manner. ®  Accommodation

e  Utility Payments

Empl i imately 15
MPIoyees are given approximate’y Staff - Estates ®  Medical facility

d f noti di ignificant
ays of notice regaraing any significan o Tea Allowance

operational changes. .
®  Accommodation

Remuneration and other e Utility payments

Benefits Associates, Plantation workers ® Housing
e \Watter

Typically, the Collective Agreement

between the estate unition and the ® Teaallowance

®  Free medicinal drugs
e Medical facility

management sets out the estate

worker's wages and benefits. And

. . e Fr lini
remuneration of other employees is ee cinics

in keeping with industry rates and ® Childcare facilities for children
below 5
o  Wheat flour

® Death donation

governed by the Shop and Office
Employees Act. All remuneration

packages adhere to applicable labor

laws and regulations, ensuring that Performance Management, Recognition and Career
the standard entry-level compensation Progression

offered aligns with the minimum

wage defined by labor laws. During All staff and management grades undergo annual evaluations based on Key

the year there were no incidents of Performance Indicators (KPIs), although this process excludes estate labor. Estate

noncompliance. staff are assessed manually, whereas executive staff are evaluated using the online

HR system. These evaluations incorporate both divisional and individual KPIs to
Beyond remuneration, as shown ensure alignment between the Company’s goals and those of our employees.

alongside we offer a variety of

additional benefits and rewards Employees who demonstrate strong performance are acknowledged and

comprising both fixed and variable rewarded through salary increments and promotions. A monthly cash incentive

components, all designed to retain program recognizes contributions to productivity, while innovation is honored

necessary talent and inspire and separately via an independently evaluated Employee Recognition Scheme (ERS).

uphold high morale. Exceptional contributions are further recognized through quarterly and annual

awards programs.



94 \waTAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024

The Group has a well-defined
succession plan in place to facilitate

career progression and strive

Training and Development

to align personal goals with our careers. During the year 12 employees
organizational goals. Outstanding were promoted.
employees are recognized and given

the opportunities to progress in their

We offer ongoing training and development opportunities to equip our employees with essential skills and knowledge. These

training needs are determined during performance appraisals and are aligned with organizational goals and accreditation

standards. Additionally, employee requests for training made during performance evaluations are also considered when

formulating the training calendar.

2023/24

Total investment in training — Rs. Million 55
Total No. of training hours 1,383
No. of employees received training 386
Average hours of training per employee 106

These training programs can be broadly categorized into:

e Sending employees to overseas training sessions

e Conducting internal and external training sessions

e Providing training on Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

e Offering new employee induction programs

e Facilitating access to LinkedIn Learning

Training programs carried out during the year are,

e Advanced Microsoft Excel

e Sustainability reporting

e Accounting standards related to consolidated financial statements

e Developing leaders in finance
e Microsoft Office training
e Diploma in Applied Taxation

e emPOC2023 Conference & Wilmar Plantation training

e Workshop on Commercial Forestry and Wood Management in Plantation Industry

e PIPOC Conference & Wilmar Plantation training

e SAP training

e Training on managing union demands and strikes

e Stores management

e Executive Development Programme



Employee Health and Safety

Health and safety standards and
guidelines are clearly defined in our
Health and Safety policy to ensure

a safe work environment for all
employees. We have implemented
and maintain rigorous health and
safety controls and standards

across all premises, aligning with
international best practices and all
relevant regulatory requirements
Additionally, the Collective Agreement
with trade unions includes provisions

for access to medical facilities and
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a safe work environment. All staff
members are entitled to medical
allowances and annual medical check-
ups as part of their compensation
package. Further, our adherence to
the RSPO certification underscores
our commitment to maintaining high

safety standards

We have established Safety and Health
Committees (SHCs) in our workplaces
to enhance employee involvement in

health and safety matters.

The Following health and safety services are offered by the Group,

A compulsory annual medical surveillance for all mill employees

Availability of a medical personnel for consultation if necessary

Medical insurance

The sustainability team oversees the
responsibility of identifying potential
occupational health and safety hazards
by investigating physical, ergonomic,
biological, chemical and psychological
conditions, and prepares and
maintains the Hazard Identification
Risk Assessment & Risk Control chart
(HIRARC) with inputs from the estate
management and other staff. Apart
from the annual revision, if necessary,
the HIRARC also revised after an

incident occurs.

Work Related Injuries No. Rate
Fatalities due to work-related injuries 0%
High - consequence work-related injuries 0%
Recordable work-related injuries 0.64%
Total recordable incident rate (TRIR) 0.64%
Fatality rate 0%
Near miss frequency rate (NMFR) Not measured

Training on occupational health and safety

e First aid training

e Personnel protective equipment training

e Fire training

e Occupational health and safety training

e Chemical and pesticides application/ handling training

* Material safety data sheet training

e Defensive drive training

e Fertilizer application training
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Employee Engagement

To motivate our team effectively,

we prioritize fostering a sense of
teamwork and camaraderie. Our
open-door policy is integral to this
effort, promoting engagement and
encouraging collaboration. By valuing
the input of every employee, we aim to
create an inclusive environment where
everyone feels heard and appreciated.
We hold events throughout the year to
provide employees with opportunities
to pursue interests outside of work

and participate in community service

activities.

° New Year Festival Celebration
o Business Review Meeting

o Udugama Perahera

o Vesak Festival Celebration

o Annual Award Ceremony

. Bana/ Pirith in 3 Estates

o Professional Day

o Mid year performance appraisal

o Worlds Children’s Day
Celebration

Workforce Representation

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024

Stationary giveaway

Christmas Celebration
Thaipongal Day Celebration
Independence Day Celebration

Blood Donation campaign

Women's Day Celebration

Diversity and Inclusion

In line with our policy framework,
culture, and values, fostering a
diverse and inclusive environment
remains a top priority at the Group.
We are committed to upholding

a zero-tolerance stance against
racism, ensuring that every employee
feels respected and valued. This
commitment is integral to our aim to
create a workplace where diversity

thrives, and inclusion is the norm.

The Group upholds the principles of
equality and fairness in all aspects of

its operations, including recruitment,

reward structures, training, and

career progression opportunities. As
an equal opportunity employer, we

are committed to ensuring that all
individuals are treated fairly and without
discrimination based on factors such as
gender, ethnicity, religion, or any other
characteristic protected by law. Our
policies such as Grievance Handling
policy and Whistle blower Policy ensure
that the Group maintains its zero-

tolerance stance.

At Watawala, regardless of gender, all
employees and workers are paid equally

based on their roles and experience.
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Manufactured Capital
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The Group’s manufactured capital plays a pivotal role in achieving our strategic objectives, enabling efficiency, high product

quality, and robust processes that enhance decision-making. We have continued to invest in our Manufactured Capital,

emphasizing both physical and digital infrastructure, with a particular focus on factory development and automation.

o

DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY INNOVATION
ECONOMIC GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Value Additions in 2023/24

e Rs. 113 Mn investment in motor

vehicles

® Rs. 14 Mn investment in plant and

machinery

Continuous investment in digital

infrastructure

e 24 new recruits

® 12 promotions

Commenced evaluation of a new
palm oil effluent treatment system

at the palm oil mill
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Our consistent delivery of high-quality of total assets. The Group has expenditure amounted to Rs. 290 Mn

output is underpinned by the strength continued to invest in enhancing its primarily representing investments

of our manufactured capital. As of manufacturing capabilities, which in buildings and agriculture motor

the end of the year, The Group's include factories, palm oil mill, vehicles.
manufactured capital stood at machinery, equipment, and digital

Rs. 2.6 billion, representing 27% infrastructure. During the year, capital

Segmental Analysis of Groups' Manufactured Capital

Rs. Mn 2023/24 2022/23
Plantations 1,213 1,139
Dairy 1,343 1,344

Plantations

Depreciation charge

203

195

Dairy

73

76

Manufactured Capital by Type (Rs. Mn)

Plant & Machinery 468
Buildings 1,479
Motor Vehicles 125
Equipment 34
Furniture and Fittings 26
Other 423
Total 2,556

Enhancing manufactured Capital

The Group dedicates substantial and enhancement of our manufactured our products and the fulfilment of

financial resources to the maintenance capital, ensuring the high quality of customer expectations.

Segmental Analysis of Groups' Capital Expenditure
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Rs. Mn 2023/24 2022/23
Plantations 357 445

Dairy 185 165

During the year, we initiated a project to increase the capacity of the crop-holding area at the palm oil mill. We also invested
Rs. 96 million in agriculture motor vehicles for the estate and palm oil mill. Meanwhile, we commenced exploring a new
effluent management system for the oil palm mill.

Our Processing Facilities

Oil palm Mill

Our palm oil mill situated in the Nakiyadeniya Estate, Udugama,

is equipped with the latest palm oil milling technology and state-
of-the-art machinery to ensure the highest quality standards and

operational efficiency.

Processing Capacity 20 MT per hour of FFB

Certifications « 1ISO 45001:2018 - Occupational health and safety
« ISO 50001:2018 — Energy management systems
« 1SO 14001:2015 — Environmental management systems

« Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO) certification

Modifications/capacity expansions carried out during | Commenced expansion of the crop holding ramp for the palm oil
2023/24 mill

Dairy Processing Plant

The dairy farm has a fully computerized, state-of-the-art milking
parlour system equipped to monitor each animal’s yield and quality
of the milk produced. The double raw rapid exit milking parlour which
can milk 40 cows at a time and is one of the most advanced milking
parlour’s in Sri Lanka at present.

Chilling and storage capacity 23,000 Litres/daily
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Intellectual Capital

@

System & i
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Our intellectual capital is vital in driving us toward our strategic aspirations, especially amidst prevailing uncertainties and
challenges in the operating environment. Our brand, tacit knowledge and expertise, systems and processes, along with our

innovative capabilities, enable us to achieve our strategic goals while meeting the expectations of our stakeholders.

M| | a

DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY INNOVATION SUSTAINABLE CITIES
QUALITY EDUCATION ECONOMIC GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNTIES

O

RESPONSIBLE
PARTNERSHIPS
CONSUMPTION FOR THE GOALS

AND PRODUCTION

Value Additions in 2023/24

e Upgrading of the ERP system with

strategic upgrades e Driving technological

advancements to achieve better

productivity and efficiency

e Enhancing the productivity and

efficiency of the oil palm mill by *  Enhancing knowledge of estate

real-time analytics for timely and and mill workforce by providing

informed decision-making training in Malaysia productivity

and efficiency
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Brand Visibility

Systems and Processes

We remain dedicated to streamlining we enhanced our technological and digitalization efforts, significantly
our processes, consistently upgrading framework by introducing strategic boosting efficiency and productivity
our systems to incorporate the latest upgrades and customizations to our across our operations.
technologies. Our focus remains on ERP and business applications. These

. . . . . Listed below are some initiatives
enhancing productivity and efficiency improvements were meticulously .

. . . S carried out to upgrade Groups'

across operations. During the year designed to expand our digitization

systems and processes

Human Resource Management « Streamlining the digital muster and task management by minimizing manual inputs

and enhancing task allocation efficiency
- Intelligent attendance system to increase accuracy by use of “iHarvest”

« OneHR system for entire HR digital practices from performance management to

leave application, etc.

Palm Qil Mill Operations « Real-time analytics for timely and informed decision making

« Real-time visibility for incoming crop data and dispatches

Dairy Operations « Dairy Master: milking parlour production system
« SAP system: financial management

« NIR testing facility

« Weighbridge integration

Knowledge and Expertise

Our ability to attract and retain the value proposition. Additionally, the quality of our product deliverables.
essential skill sets needed to meet Group's unwavering commitment to As a result, the knowledge and

and exceed customer expectations investing in training and development experience of our team members are
is driven by our efficient recruitment has enhanced our team members’ crucial to our value-creation process.
process and comprehensive employee skills, reflected in the exceptional

Innovation and Operational Excellence

Innovation in products and processes the quarterly Town Hall meetings
is crucial for retaining our customer where staff members have received
base and driving sustainable growth. certificates and cash rewards.

As a group, we strive to foster a
learning culture where innovation is
encouraged and rewarded at all levels
of the organization. These innovations

are recognized and appreciated at
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The following initiatives were carried out during the year,

Palm Oil operations « Optimizing fertilizer cost by application of a mix of organic and inorganic fertilizer,

soil mapping and site-specific fertilizer application
« Use of a steam-powered turbine to reduce electricity consumption from the grid
« Implement yield-taking and yield-making activities to improve yield
« Improve crop quality and strengthening crop grading

« Fleet management system to track machinery productivity

Dairy operations - Reducing cattle mortality
« Reducing feed cost, sourcing higher quality feed, and in-house feed mixing

« Transport cost deducting on investing own fleet

Certifications

Given below is a list of certifications we complied with during the year covering areas related to product quality, health and
safety and sustainability. These certifications facilitate benchmarking with global industry best practices, ensuring that our
processes evolve continuously to the highest standards for the respective products or processes. These certificates support

our brands, enhancing customer confidence in our production processes.

Certification Watawala Plantations Watawala Dairy
RSPO |

ISO 14001 Environmental manage-
ment system

SO 45001:2018

ISO 50001 Energy management
System

RSPO Kernel Crusher Plant Supply
chain

N @ HE [

Environmental Protection License
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Natural Capital

Our business activities not only rely on but also significantly impact natural resources such as land and water resources.
We therefore not only have a compelling economic rationale but also a moral obligation to protect and enrich our natural
resources. As an RSPO certified operation, we adhere to stringent RSPO conditions that ensure the highest standards in social

and environmental management.

Value Additions in 2023/24

e 23% of energy requirement met e Continuous effort for

through renewable sources biodiversity conservation

e 88.8% of organic waste reused in

production process e 5.55% reduction in emissions
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Environmental Governance

A robust environmental governance relevant stakeholders to coordinate ) L
. ) o Environmental Policies in Place
system is in place to drive the management plans and initiatives clud
include;

Group's environmental agenda. across our operations. Periodic audits
The Group's sustainability are carried out to verify compliance *  Environment policy
commitments are articulated through with EMS (Environmental Management e Zero burning policy
a comprehensive suite of policies, System) and to determine if the EMS } ; ;

, ) e Sustainable agricultural policy
SOP’s and management plans. Estate has been implemented properly.
Management Units (EMU’s) have been e Energy management policy

established in each of our estates and

are responsible for engaging with all

Environment Water WeNE Soil GHG

Reporting

Conservation l\/llanagement

Management Conservation
HET Plan Pl

an Plan

Land Management e Adoption of integrated pest

As a RSPO certified operation, management approach that includes
WATA is committed to conserving, a combination of natural and
protecting, and enhancing ecosystems mechanical pest reduction tactics.
within and surrounding its operations Chemical control methods are used
by ensuring sustainable management minimally.

of natural resources. This includes ) !
* Increasing the carbon content of soil

soil management, sustainable ) . "
) with the use of organic fertilizer

management of forests, combating

desertification, halting and reversing e Use of cover crops, stone terraces,

land degradation and biodiversity loss. live terraces and draining system to

reduce soil erosion, control weed

Soil Management . .
development and improve soil

We ensure sustainable agricultural quality.
practices are adopted across all our

estates to maintain soil quality. Soil

management practices adopted in our

estates include;

e Ensuring that only approved
fertilizers and agrochemicals that
meet international quality and
safety standards are used on our

plantations.



SOP’srelating to Biodiversity
Conservation

« Management of riparian buffers
and enforcement for road and
bridge design to minimize
fragmenting biological corridors

such as riparian buffers

- Monitoring water quality, riparian
buffers, and water body buffers
(including areas planted with oil
palm) and to monitor quality of
in-coming water and outgoing
supply.

- Management of steep areas
(including oil palm areas) to
prevent slope failure and
unmitigated erosion.

« For land clearance and
preparation of hilly areas
(contouring)

« For road and drain design to

minimise erosion
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Biodiversity Conservation
(GRI 304-2)

Our approach to biodiversity conservation which is based on globally accepted
HCV (High Conservation Value) management mechanisms, involves a three-step

approach as depicted below.

Development
Of an HCV
monitoring

Development

Identification Of an HCV

Of the

HCV areas management

plan plan

Clearly defined policies and SOP’s with regards to biodiversity conservation
ensure that RSPO guidelines and national regulations are strictly adhered to and
that progress is tracked and monitored on an ongoing basis. Over the years we
have built significant institutional capacity within our organization to drive our
conservation efforts. Meanwhile, we continue to closely partner with government

and local communities to drive broader conservation initiatives.

Total protected area under Watawala Plantations GRI
304-3

The Protected Areas (PA) around

) ) Th total tent f  HCV
Watawala Plantations include the © ot exten © c

management area is approximately
525.39 ha., representing 10.75% of
the total Watawala concession.

Biosphere Forest Reserve Kanneliya-
Dediyagala-Nakiyadeniya Complex
(KDN), the Pattaramoraketiya,

Nerugalkanda and Malambure Forest

Reserves. Talangaha and Homadola There was no deterioration of
estates boundaries overlap with the the protected areas under our
KDN complex and the Nerugalkanda I elifng e yeer mikeing
Forest Reserve, both of which are the effectiveness of our habitat

Protected Areas protection measures.
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. . E f
Description of HCV Management Areas (HCVMA) Combinations of HCV* Jé?/%li

Mid - Succession MDF fragments that are isolated throughout HCV 1and3 109.55
Watawala Complex
Mid - Succession MDF fragments link to Protected Areas (KDN | HCV 1,2 and 3 1.87
Complex)
Riparian Reserves that are connected to fragments of mid succession | HCV 1, 3 and 4 River Buffer (RB) 43.7
MDF
Mid - Succession MDF fragments with steep slopes (>25°) HCV 1, 3 and 4 Steep Slope (SS) 80.69
Mid - Succession MDF fragments on steep slopes (>25°) and are  HCV 1, 3 and 4 Steep Slope (SS) and 33.76
connected to riparian reserves. River Buffer (RB)
Mid - Succession MDF fragments that are connected to National | HCV 1, 2, 3 and 4 Steep Slope (SS) 38.71
Protected Areas with steep slopes (>25°)
Mid - Late Succession MDF fragments that are connected to HCV 1, 2, 3 and 4 Steep Slope (SS) and 153.59
Protected Areas (KDN Complex) with steep slopes (>25°) and  River Buffer (RB)
riparian reserves.
Mid - Succession MDF fragment that is connected to National HCV 1, 2, 3 and 4 Steep Slope (SS) and 1.91
Protected Areas (the KDN Complex), is relatively steep with slopes | Water Bodies (WB)
(>25°) and has a water body in the forest.
Water collected from river buffer that is used by local community in  HCV 4 River Buffer (RB) and 5 1.19
their daily necessity
Areas with oil palm planted on steep slopes (>25°) HCV 4 Steep Slope (SS) 44.48
Areas with oil palm planted along river buffer HCV 4 River Buffer (RB) 1417
Areas with oil palm planted in water bodies buffer HCV 4 Water Bodies (WB) 1.76
Points with water resources utilized by locals HCV 5
Areas with Bodhi Trees, Shrines and Temples HCV 6

525.39

*HCV 1: Concentrations of biological
diversity including endemic species,
and rare, threatened or endangered
(RTE) species that are significant at
global, regional or national levels.

HCV 2: Large landscape-level

ecosystems, ecosystem mosaics and

Intact Forest Landscapes (IFL) that

are significant at global, regional or
national levels, and that contain viable
populations of the great majority

of the naturally occurring species in
natural patterns of distribution and

abundance.

HCV 3: Rare, threatened, or
endangered ecosystems, habitats or

refugia.

HCV 4: Basic ecosystem services in
critical situations, including protection
of water catchments and control of

erosion of vulnerable soils and slopes.



HCV 5: Sites and resources
fundamental for satisfying the basic
necessities of local communities or
Indigenous people (for livelihoods,
health, nutrition, water), identified
through engagement with these
communities or Indigenous people.
MEC|WATA: HCV Assessment Report,
Udugama, Galle District, Sri Lanka

HCV é: Sites, resources, habitats

and landscapes of global or national

No. of species

Critically 8
Endangered plants
Endangered plants 1"
Vulnerable plants 25
Endangered animal 2
species

Vulnerable animal 2
species

Our Energy Policy aims to;
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cultural, archaeological or historical
significance, and/or of critical cultural,
ecological, economic or religious/
sacred importance for the traditional
cultures of local communities or
indigenous peoples, identified
through engagement with these local

communities or indigenous people.

Energy management is a critical
element of our climate agenda and we
have clear targets to increase energy
efficiency and reduce emissions
across our operations. This includes
targeted efforts to optimize energy
consumption, reduce energy waste
and increase the use of renewable
energy sources. We comply with

ISO 50001 enabling continual

improvement in energy performance

IUCN Red List species and
national conservation list
species with habitats in
Watawala Region GRI 304-
4

The Watawala region is home to over
112 species of amphibians, reptiles
mammeals and birds. The following
have been identified as protected

species.

Energy Management

across our operation. Meanwhile, a
clearly articulated energy policy for
Nakiyadeniya Palm Qil Mill (NPOM)
ensures strict compliance with all
regulatory requirements pertaining to

energy and emission management.

- Engineering know-how, ensuring energy conservation, efficiency and utilizing appropriate renewable energy

« Encourage employees to actively engage in energy conservation measures by providing awareness and

necessary resources to achieve objectives and targets

- Take energy efficiency evaluation dimensions into account in our new designs, investments, process changes,

facility upgrades and equipment purchases

« Ensure our operations comply with all applicable legal, regulatory and other requirements those relate to our

energy use

« Communicate our policy to appropriate stakeholders at all levels internally and externally to ensure its

contents are understood and all are committed and contributing for continual improvement in reviewing

energy targets, achievement and revising

- Promote renewable energy initiatives to conserve natural resources
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Energy reviews are carried out periodically to identify significant energy uses (SEUs) within the factory premises. The task

requires detailed quantitative and qualitative analysis of each energy source also enabling us to measure our energy footprint

on an ongoing basis. Meanwhile, energy performance is measured and monitored against 7 energy performance indicators.

Energy Consumption within the Organization (GRI 302-1)

Type of Fuel

Non Renewable

- Diesel GJ 3,551.824
- Petrol GJ 435.842
Renewable

- Biogas GJ -
- Solar GJ -
- Biomass 200,224.44
Electricity (GRID) GJ 5,626.354
Mill Turbine 1,687.95
Total Energy Consumption 211,526.41

readings and invoices.

based on meter reading when issuing

* Basis for measurement: fuel - measurement calculated

fuel, energy - measurement calculated based on meter

Operation/ Energy Type of
Section Share % energy used
Boiler 35% Biomass
Kernel Plant 18% Electricity
Press 14.3% Electricity
EFB Press 10.9% Electricity
Nut Plant 9.2% Electricity
Decanter 5.3% Electricity
Biogas Plant 4.6% Biomass
Sterilizer 1.8% Biomass
Effluent Plant 0.9% Electricity

Energy Intensity GRI 302-3

Homadola Nakiyadeniya Talangaha Palm Oil

Estate Estate Estate Mill

FFB (Kg) 10,544,550 22,491,930 24,035,640 NA
Total Energy Used (GJ) 1,170.94 1,167.65 1,222.73 8,041.65
Energy Intensity (Kg/GJ) 9,005.231 19,262.58 19,657.32 138.88

Petrol total Petrol mass Mass in Energy/TJ

L (M3 * 752.5) Giga gram

13,074.3 9,838.41075 0.009838411 443 0.435841596 435.842
Diesel Total Diesel mass (840) | Mass in Gg NCV Energy/TJ GJ
98,334 82,600.56 0.08260056 43 3.55182408 3,551.824




Petrol

Petrol mass
(M3*752.5)
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Mass in
Giga gram

Energy/TJ

(c)

HMD 3,484.3 2,621.93575 0.002621936 443 0.116151754 116.1518
NKD 4,396 3,307.99 0.00330799 443 0.146543957 146.544
TLG 5,194 3,908.485 0.0039208485 443 0.173145886 173.1459
Mill 0 0 0 443 0 0
Petrol mass Mass in
(M3*752.5) Giga gram
HMD 24,350 20,454 0.020454 43 0.879522 879.522
NKD 24,759 20,797.56 0.02079756 43 0.89429508 894.2951
TLG 24,026 20,181.84 0.02018184 43 0.86781912 867.8191
Mill 25,199 21,167.16 0.02116716 43 0.91018788 910.1879

Biomass

Total Energy

Intensity

HMD 24,350 20,454 0.020454 43 0.879522 879.522 | 9,005.231
NKD 24,759 20,797.56 0.02079756 43 0.89429508 894.2951 19,262.58
TLG 24,026 20,181.84 0.02018184 43 0.86781912 867.8191 19,657.32
Mill 25,199 21,167.16 0.02116716 43 0.91018788 910.1879

Total 435.8415962 3,551.82408 7,314.3036 | 200,224.44 11,602.96928

Water Management

GRI 303-1 and GRI 303-2

As a plantation company water is a critical input resource in our operation. The palm oil mill operation too requires a

considerable volume of water during the extraction process of crude palm oil from fresh fruit bunches. Palm oil mill effluent

(POME), the main organic waste from our operation meanwhile includes biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) and chemical

oxygen demand (COD) which can contaminate water bodies if not responsibly treated. Furthermore, the Watawala region

controls part of the catchment area for Gin Ganga which is the main raw water source for the Greater Galle Water Supply

Scheme. Preserving the supply and quality of our water resources is therefore of critical importance for the long-term viability

of our operation.




Water conservation is practised across
our estates and milling operation.
Sustainable agricultural practices
such as the use of cover crops and
preservation of catchment areas have
been adopted in addition to practices
such as rainwater harvesting and

water recycling to conserve water and
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enhance water efficiency. Meanwhile,
buffer zones play an important role
in filtering herbicides and suspended
solids from contaminating water

bodies.

We also carry out water and effluent

tests on a regular basis to ensure that

Water Conservation practices at WPL

e Mucana is used as a cover crop

e Buffer zones and Riparian zones are established as per the width of the rivers

¢ Native indigenous trees are planted along the streamlines to act a filter

water and effluent quality parameters
set by regulatory standards are
stringently maintained. 24 sampling
points are maintained across our
operation at strategic locations to test

water quality.

¢ Application of weedicides and fertilizers are prohibited in the buffer and riparian zones

e Water catchment areas and HCV forest have been identified and they have been protected

e Man-made lake haves been constructed for the rainwater harvesting

e Rainwater harvesting and deep drainage are used to store the rainwater

¢ In waterlogged locations, Kumbuk and Nadun plants are planted

e A catchment area and chemical-free zone of 60 meters around the water body is preserved

e Land contour maps are reviewed

e Training and awareness to all employees and their families about the importance of conserving water and the

ways of doing it
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Water Withdrawal by Source ( GRI 303-3) Water Discharge by Source ( GRI 303-4)
m3 m3
Surface Water 53,788.270 Surface Water 50,649.080
Ground Water 0 Ground Water 0
Seawater 0 Seawater 0
Produced water 0 Third Party Water 0
Third Party Water 0
Total Water Withdrawal 53,788.270 Total water discharge
Total water withdrawal from all areas with 0 Total water discharge to all areas with water | 50,649.080
water stress stress
Total water withdrawal from 0 Total water Discharge to 0
I. Freshwater (1,000 mg/L Total Dissolved I. Freshwater (<1,000 mg/L Total Dissolved
Solids) Solids)
Il. Other water (>1,000 mg/L Total Dissolved 0 Il. Other water (>1,000 mg/L Total Dissolved 0
Solids) Solids)
Total Water Consumption (Total water withdrawn — total water discharge) GRI 303-5
3,139.190 m3
Material Management Quantity/ % of recycled
Key raw materials used in our Kg Material used
operation include oil palm fresh Non-Renewable Materials Used 4,124,276 12.20
fruit bunches, fertilizer, animal feed,
. . . Chemical Fertilizer 4,124,276 12.20
and animal medicine. Material
management remains a key focus
amidst rising raw material prices. We Renewable Materials Used 29,688,115 87.80
therefore continue to explore material Compost 4,017.955 1188
circularity within our operation to
. . Palm kernel shell (mill boiler) 3,987,740 11.79
increase the proportion of recycled
material used in the operation. Decanter cake 4,986,810 14.75
An onsite composting facility has Palm fruit fiber 7,310,850 21.62
been established at Nakiyadeniya £FB 7,896,570 23.35
to manufacture organic fertilizer
from waste generated through our Cow dung 1,488,190 440

operations. Meanwhile, kernel shells,
fibre and empty fruit bunches are
used as biomass for the boiler at the

Nakiyadeniya palm oil mill.

Materials Used ( GRI 301-1, GRI 301-2)
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Waste Management
GRI 306-1 and 306-2

Waste management is a critical environmental concern in the oil palm industry due to the relatively high amount of Palm Oil
Mill Effluent (POME) generated from the milling process. Unless properly treated POME releases a large amount of GHG
gases while also negatively impacting surrounding land and water bodies. To ensure such negative impact from POME is
prevented, anaerobic and aerobic bacterial treatment systems integrated with modern separation processes followed by
industrial scale ponding systems and land application, have been adopted widely by WATA to treat POME before being
released to the environment. 88.8% of the organic waste generated in our estates meanwhile is also re-used as fuels for

the mill or as organic fertilizer for our crops. Meanwhile, responsible waste management practices are adopted across our

operations to identify, segregate, store and dispose of other waste in the least harmful way to the environment.

Waste Generated ( GRI 306-3)

Damaged or unripen/ 0 tons Coftton rags Not Measured
overripe FFB
EFB 7.896.570 MT Used oil/ lubri- 600 L
cants
Fruit fiber and shells Palm fruit fiber E-waste Not Measured
7310.850
Palm kernel
Shell (Mill boiler)
3,987.740 MT
Kernel cake 3,230 MT Empty 900 Kg Dispose for
weedicide/ incineration
chemical cans
Boiler ash Not Measured
Decanter cake 4,986.810
Leftover food Not Measured
Waste polythene & lunch Not Measured
sheet
Paper waste/ cardboard Not Measured
Glass waste Not Measured
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Waste Management Practices at WATA

Over 700 employees participated
in programs on environmental
aspects including the importance of

responsible waste management.

Wastewater (s tened and treated in a sefies
of biokogical and physical treatment processes
before bring sent to fields

Waste by Disposal method

Waste Diverted from Disposal ( GRI 306-4)
Re-used in operation Tons 29,688.115

Recycled Litres 600
Waste directed to disposal ( GRI 306-5)

Incineration Kgs 900
Landfill Kgs -
Emissions

GHG emissions from our estate and mill operation is a result of the combustion of fossil fuel used in transportation and
fertilizer application. To combat emissions arising from open burning, we have adopted a zero-burning policy for all oil palm
estates. Focused efforts to reduce our dependence on fossil fuels meanwhile has enabled us to take meaningful action

towards reducing GHG emissions.

Direct ( Scope 1) GHG Emissions* GRI 305-1
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Source tCoZ2e
PK Crusher 3,540.89
Fuel Mill 75.54
POME 3,115.01
Land Conversion 6,097.69
Fertilizer 956.73
N20O From Fertilizer 1,382.15
Fuel Estates 432.54
Total Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions 15,600.55

Indirect ( Scope 2) GHG Emissions* ( GRI 305-2)

Location tCo2e
Grid Electricity 666.06
Total Indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions
Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions* GRI 305-3
tCo2e
Nil Nil

Total total Indirect (Scope 3) GHG Emiss

ions

*We used the latest RSPO PalmGHG calculator and GHG Protocol accounting standard to map our GHG emissions.

GHG emissions intensity GRI 305-4

FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24
tCO2e/t FFB 0.18 0.17
tCO2e/ha 2.36 2.71
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors

on the Affairs of the Company

The Board of Directors of Watawala
Plantations PLC takes pleasure in
presenting its Annual Report to the
shareholders for the financial year
ended 31 March 2024, together with
the audited financial statements of
the Company, consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the said
year and the Auditor’s Report on those
financial statements, conforming to
the requirements of the Companies
Act No.07 of 2007 and Listing Rules
of the Colombo Stock Exchange
(CSE). The Report is also guided by
their commended best practices on
Corporate Governance.

Disclosure requirements

Watawala Plantations PLC is a public
limited liability company incorporated
in Sri Lanka in 1992 under the

Previous Companies Act No.17 of

1982 and re-registered as required
under the provisions of the Companies
Act No.07 of 2007. The re-registration
number of the Company is PQ 65.

The issued shares of the Company
were listed on the Main Board of the
Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka
in 1997.

Reference to the
companies Act
No. 07 of 2007

The Registered Office and Head
Office of the Company is located
at No.60, Dharmapala Mawatha,
Colombo 03, Sri Lanka.

The Financial Statements were
reviewed and approved by the Board
of Directors on 29 May 2024.

Statutory Disclosures Section 168 of
the Companies Act No.07 of 2007,
requires the following information to
be published in the Annual Report
prepared for the year under review.

Disclosure reference for compliance

The nature of the business of the Company Section168(1)(a)(i) | About Us 4-6

and the Group

The classes of business in which the company | Section168(1)(a)(ii) = Note 19 to the Financial Statements— 204

has an interest, whether as a shareholder of Investments in subsidiaries

another company or otherwise

Financial statements for the accounting period | Section168(1)(b) The Financial Statements of the Company | 158

completed and signed in accordance with and the Group for the year ended 31

Section 151 & 152 March 2024 duly signed by the Financial
Controller and two Directors

Auditor’s report on the Financial Statements of | Section168(1)(c) Independent Auditors’ Report 150-154

the Company and the Group

Any change in accounting policies made Section168(1)(d) Note 301 to the Financial Statements— 164

during the accounting period Changes in Accounting Policies

Particulars of entries in the interests register Section168(1)(e) Note 36 to the Financial Statements— 220

made during the accounting period Related Party Transactions

Remuneration and other benefits of Directors | Section168(1)(f) Note 9 to the Financial Statements— 185

during the accounting period Expenses by Nature
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Total amount of donations made by the Section168(1)(g) The Group did not make any donations 89, 93
Company or the Group during the accounting for the year under review
period
Names of the persons holding office as Section168(1)(h) Board Profiles 26 - 29
Directors of the Company as at the end of
the accounting period and the names of any
persons who ceased to hold office as Directors
of the Company during the accounting period
Amounts payable by the Company to the Section168(1)(i) Note 9 to the Financial Statements— 185
person or firm holding office as Auditor of Expenses by Nature
the Company as audit fees and as a separate
item, fees payable by the Company for other
services provided by that person or firm;
Particulars of any relationship (other than Section168(1)(j) The Company’s Auditors during the 150 - 154
that of auditor) which the auditor has with period under review were Messrs KPMG,
or any interests which the auditor has in, the Chartered Accountants The auditors do
Company or any of its subsidiaries not have any relationship or interest with
the Company or Group other than that of
an Auditor
Signed on behalf of the Board by two Section168(1)(k) 120

Directors and the Company Secretary
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In addition to the above, the following information is disclosed. The details are
provided with in notes to the Annual Report, which form and integral part of
the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.

Disclosure Note reference Page
Principal activities and significant changes to About Us 4-6
the nature of business
Watawala Plantations PLC holds 89.9% directs take in
Watawala Dairy Ltd. The principal activities of the Group
during the period continued to be cultivation, manufacture
and sale of crude palm oil and Dairy farming.
Review of operations and future developments | Chairman’s Message 19-21
Audited Financial Statements 155-229
Financial Statements The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group 155 - 229
have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards laid down by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and comply with the
requirements of Companies Act No.07 of 2007 and the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange
Directors’ Responsibility for Financial The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial 129
Reporting Reporting
Significant accounting policies Note 3 to the Financial Statements—Significant Accounting 164 - 180
Policies
Going concern Note 2.7 to the Financial Statements-Going concern 163
Income Note 3.11 to the Financial Statements-Segmental Analysis by 181 - 184
principal activities and other income
Financial results and appropriations Statement of Profit or loss 155
Statement of Comprehensive Income 156
Statement of Financial Position 157,158
Statement of Changes in Equity 159, 160
Statement of Cash Flows 161
Stated capital and reserves Statement of Changes in Equity 159, 160
Dividend on ordinary shares Note 12 to the Financial Statements-Dividends per share 188
Taxation Note 10 to the Financial Statements—Income tax expense 186, 187
Note 30 to the Financial Statements—-Deferred income tax 216-218

liability
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Capital expenditure

The total capital expenditure on purchase and construction
of property, plant and equipment and expenditure incurred
on immature plantations by the Group and the Company as
at 31 March 2024 amounted to Rs..326 Mn and Rs.. 253 Mn
respectively (2022/23 Group: Rs.. 418 Mn and Company: Rs..
380 Mn). Details are given in Notes 14, 15, 16 and 17 to the
Financial Statements

189 - 203

Property, plant and equipment

Note 14 to the Financial Statements—Property, plant and

equipment

189 -193

Statutory payments

The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
are satisfied that all statutory payments in relation to the

Government and the employees have been made up to date

185, 186

Events after the reporting date

Notes 37 to the Financial Statements—Events occurring after

the reporting date

221

Register of Directors and Secretaries

As required under Section 223 (1) of the Companies Act No.07
of 2007, the Company maintains a Register of Directors and
Secretaries which contains the name, surname, former name

(if any), residential address, business occupation, dates of
appointment and dates of resignation (if applicable) of each
Director and the Secretary. Particulars of entries in the interest

register are set out in Note 36 to the Financial Statements

220, 221

Historical information

Information relating to earnings, dividend, net assets and
market capitalization is given in the Historical Financial

Information, investor information

239 - 241

Shareholdings

Investors Information

239 - 241

Equitable treatment to shareholders

The Company has always ensured that all shareholders are

treated equitably

34 -41

Environmental protection

To the best of knowledge of the Board, the Group has
complied with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations. The Company has not engaged in any activity that

is harmful or hazardous to the environment.

104 - 114

Directors’ interests in transactions

Notes 36 to the Financial Statements—Related Party

Transactions

The Related Party Transactions have been complied with Rule
9.3.2 of the Listing Rules and the code of Best practices on
Related Party Transactions under the Securities and Exchange
Commission Directive issued under Section13(c) of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka Act No.36 of
1987.

220 - 222

Directors’ emoluments

Note 9 to Financial Statement

185

Corporate governance

Corporate Governance Report

34 -56

Directors’ meetings

Corporate Governance Report

34 -56
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Risk management and internal control

Risk management and internal control

69-76

Insurance and indemnity

Ultimate parent, obtained an insurance policy to cover

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Notice of Annual General
Meeting

The Thirtieth (31st) Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Watawala
Plantations PLC (Company) will be
held online via a virtual platform on
Friday 28th June 2024 at 10.15 AM.

Acknowledgement of the
Contents of the Report
As required by Section 168(1)

(k) of the Companies Act No.07of
2007, the Board of Directors hereby

acknowledges the contents of this
Annual Report.

e 3

V Govindasamy

Director

Sunil G Wijesinha

Chairman

Se P
= _

Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
Secretaries, Watawala Plantations PLC

29 May 2024




Report of The Remuneration Committee

Terms of Reference

The Remuneration Committee forms a
key part of the governance framework
of the Group and carries the mandate
to oversee the compensation and
benefits policies adopted by the
Group, and in doing so, review and
recommend overall remuneration
strategy, policies and performance-
based pay plans. Furthermore, it
reviews performance, compensation
and benefits of the Directors, CEO,
COO, and key management who
support and implement decisions at
an apex level.

The Group is able to attract, motivate,
and retain key talent with the Group'’s
compensation and benefits policy
which is compliant with applicable
laws and regulations. The evaluation of
performance of Directors, CEO, COO,
and key management was considered
in determining remuneration whilst
also using market comparators for
similar positions and in accordance
with the Company’s Compensation
and Benefits policy.

The Chairperson of the Committee
reports on the developments which
have taken place since the last Board
meeting, if any, and updates the
Board on various matters, as relevant
and requested.
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Composition

The Committee is made up of three
Directors namely;

H.D. Abeywickrama-Chairman

(Non-Executive, Independent)

S. G. Wijesinha-(Non-Executive,
Independent)

M. R. Rao-(Non-Executive, Non-

Independent)

Corporate Services (Pvt.) Limited acts
as the Secretary to the Remuneration
Committee. The minutes of the
Remuneration Committee approved
by the said Committee is circulated
and affirmed by the Board of
Directors.

Purpose/ Objectives Of
The Committee

The objective of the Remuneration
Committee (“the Committee”) is to
ensure that a consistent remuneration
framework is adopted and practiced
for Directors and Senior Management
in the Group.

The Committee ensures that the
Remuneration Policy of the Group is
fair, transparent and competitive, and
linked to the Group’s short-term

and long-term business strategy to
drive sustainable performance and
entrepreneurship. The Committee
appraises the performance of the
senior management against the
set goals and targets, to determine
increments, bonuses, and other
performance-based incentives.

Key Areas of Focus

Remuneration policy for Key
Management Personnel - Review and
approve the overall remuneration
policy, and practices of Watawala
Plantations PLC and Watawala

Dairy Limited. Remuneration levels
are reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Committee through

a process that considers individual,
business unit and overall performance
of the Group and market practices.

Remuneration structure - Set and
review all components of the
remuneration and other benefits of
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer, Directors and

such other Senior Management

as the Board may determine

whilst ensuring the integrity of the
Group's compensation and benefits
programmed is maintained. The
Committee continues to provide
analysis and advice to ensure key
management personnel remuneration
is competitive in the marketplace. The
Committee has the authority to seek
external independent professional
advice on matters within its purview.

Performance evaluation - Review and
approve the performance appraisal
for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer, Directors, and
Senior Management. A significant
portion of executives’ total potential
remuneration is performance related
in order to drive the right behaviour to
optimize Group performance.
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Non-Executive Directors’
Fees

Non-Executive Directors receive

fees for services on Board and Board
Committees. Non-Executive Directors
do not receive short-term incentives
and do not participate in any long-
term incentive schemes.

The fees for the Non-Executive
Directors are recommended by

the Remuneration Committee to

the Board for their approval, after
considering input from the Executive
Directors.

The Directors emoluments are
disclosed on Note 9 to the Financial
Statements.

On behalf of the Remuneration
Committee;

4
H.D. Abeywickrama

Chairman

Remuneration Committee

29 May 2024
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Nominations and Governance Committee

Terms Of Reference

The Charter determines the terms
of reference for the Nominations
and Governance Committee. The
Nominations and Governance
Committee (“the Committee”) is
established in accordance with
Rule 9.11 of the CSE Listing Rules.
The Committee is responsible for
overseeing matters related to the
nominations of Key Management
personnel including Directors,
governance, and board composition,
ensuring alignment with regulatory
requirements and best practices.

Composition

The Committee is made up of five
Directors namely;

H.D. Abeywickrama-Chairman (Non-
Executive, Independent)
S.G.Wijesinha-(Non-Executive,
Independent)

A. Herath-(Non-Executive,
Independent).Appointed on 12
December 2023

M. S. Mawzoon - (Non-Executive, Non
- Independent)

S. G. Sathasivam(Executive, Non -
Independent)

Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited acts
as the Secretary to the Nomination
and Governance Committee. The
minutes of the Nomination and
Governance Committee approved by
the said Committee are circulated and
affirmed by the Board of Directors.

Scope and Authority

The Committee’s scope includes
evaluating the appointment and
recommending Directors to the

Board and its Committees. It is
responsible for recommending the re-
appointment/re-election of Directors,
considering their contributions,
qualifications, and external
commitments.

The Committee shall establish
transparent procedures for

the evaluation, selection, and
appointment/re-appointment of
Directors. It shall provide advice and
recommendations to the board or the
chairman (as the case may be) on any
such appointments. It shall consider
the selection and appointment of a
chairman in case a vacancy arises.
Review the Board and Committee

structures, sizes, and compositions for
effective governance.

The Committee oversees the
periodic evaluation of Board and
CEO performance, ensuring effective
discharge of responsibilities. It also
develops succession plans for Board
and Key Management Personnel.

Recommend the overall corporate
governance framework, aligning with
regulatory requirements and best
practices. The Committee reviews
and updates corporate governance
policies/framework in line with
regulatory and legal developments.
It receives reports from Management
on corporate governance compliance,
deviations/non-compliances, and
rationale.

Recommend insurance cover to be
taken in respect of all directors and
other key management personnel
indemnity and insurance cover.

Meetings and Minutes
The Nominations and Governance

Committee met once during the year.

Members and attendance at meetings
held during the year ended 31 March
2024 are given below:

H. D. Abeywickrama

1 of 1 meeting

S. G. Wijesinha

1 of 1 meeting

M. S. Mawzoon

1 of 1 meeting

S. G. Sathasivam

1 of 1 meeting

A. Herath

0 of 0 meeting

On behalf of the Nomination and Governance Committee;

Ao

H.D. Abeywickrama - Chairman — Nomination and Governance Committee

29 May 2024
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Report of The Audit Committee

Role of the Audit
Committee

The terms of reference “Charter”
provides a clear understanding of
the Committee’s role, structure,
processes, and membership
requirements. This conveys the
framework for the Committee’s
organization and responsibilities that
can be referred to by the Board,
committee members, Management,
and External and Internal Auditors.
The Audit Committee reviews the
Charter quarterly and updates it to
reflect the views that the members of
the Audit Committee express in the

independent discharge of their duties.

Meetings and Minutes

Composition

The Audit Committee comprises three
(3) members, including the Chairman,
are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

A. R. Rasiah — Chairman (Independent,
Non-Executive Director)

S.G. Wijesinha - (Independent, Non-
Executive Director)

A. Herath - (Independent, Non-
Executive Director). Appointed on 12
December 2023

N. B. Weerasekara (Independent,
Non-Executive Director). Resigned
with effect from 18 November 2023

M. T. Siddique (Independent, Non-
Executive Director). Ceased with effect
from 5 December 2023

Profiles of the members are given on
pages 26 to 29. Corporate Services
(Pvt) Limited functions as the secretary
to the Audit Committee.

The number of meetings the Committee holds is influenced by its objectives and scope of activities, and the size and nature

of the business.

The Audit Committee met five times during the year.

Members and attendance at meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2024 are given below:

A. R. Rasiah

4 of 5 meeting

S.G.Wijesinha

5 of 5 meeting

N. B. Weerasekera

4 of 4 meeting

M. T. Siddique

2 of 4 meeting

A. Herath

1 of 1 meeting

The Chief Executive Officer and Financial Controller shall normally attend meetings of the Audit Committee. On the
invitation of the Audit Committee, the Engagement Partner of the Company’s External Auditors, Messrs KPMG attended one

committee meetings.

The Audit Committee shall report to the Board.



Responsibilities

The Audit Committee undertakes,

on behalf of the Board, responsibility
for ensuring the integrity of the
Company'’s financial reports by

having over sight of internal control,
the financial reporting process and
compliance with regulatory matters as
given in the Audit Committee Charter.
It sets out high standards of corporate
disclosure, corporate responsibility,
integrity and accountability to the
shareholders.

Tasks of the Audit
Committee

In fulfilling its responsibilities,
following activities were carried out
by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 March 2024.

Financial Reporting

Reviewed the quarterly and year-to-
date financial results of the Group

and the relevant announcements

to Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE),
focusing particularly on significant
changes to accounting policies

and practices and compliance with
financial reporting and accounting
standards prior to the consideration by
the Board.

Reviewed the annual report and the
annual audited Financial Statements of
the Company and the Group prior to
submission to the Board for approval.
The review was to ensure that the
financial reporting and disclosures

are in compliance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards, the provisions
of Companies Act No.7 of 2007,
listing requirements of Colombo Stock
Exchange and any other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements.
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In the review of the annual audited
Financial Statements, the Committee
discussed with the Chief Executive
Officer, Financial Controller and
External Auditor the significant
accounting policies, estimates and
judgments applied in preparing these
reports, the accounting principles and
reporting standards that were applied
and the impact of the items to the
Financial Statements.

Internal Control and Risk
Management and Internal
Audit

The Committee reviewed the risk
management process and discussed
the inherent risks faced by the
business as they affect financial
reporting. The principal risks and
uncertainties are outlined in the
relevant section on pages 71 and 74.

The Committee has an ongoing
process for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls and
of the internal audit function. During
the year, it reviewed and approved the
annual internal audit plan prepared
taking into consideration the required
controls and risks attached to different
areas of operation. It also reviewed
the reports from the internal audit
team summarizing the audit findings
and recommendations and describing
actions taken by Management to
address any shortfalls. It reviewed the
level and nature of outstanding audit
weaknesses and invited Management
to the Committee to further
understand progress where it felt it
was necessary.

External Audit

Reviewed with the External Auditors
their audit scope, audit strategy,

and audit plan for the year and their
proposed fees for the statutory audit.

Reviewed the external audit reports
and areas of concern highlighted in
the Management Letter including
Management's responses to the
findings of the External Auditors.

Discussed with External Auditors the
significant accounting and auditing
issues, impact of new or proposed
changes in accounting standards and
regulatory requirements applicable to
the Group.

Assessed the independence and
objectivity of the External Auditors
during the year in carrying out
statutory audit for the Group and prior
to the appointment of the External
Auditors for provision of any non-
audit services. The Audit Committee
also received report from the External
Auditors confirming that there were
no circumstances and relationship that
create threats to their independence
and that the ethical requirements have
been complied with.

The Auditors have expressed their
willingness to continue in office. The
Audit Committee at a meeting held
on 22 May 2024 recommended that
they be reappointed as Auditors. A
resolution to reappoint the Auditors
and to authorize the Directors to
determine their remuneration will
be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Regulatory Compliance

Reviewed the procedures established
by Management for compliance with
the requirements of regulatory bodies.
The Chief Executive Officer along with
the Financial Controller submitted to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis, are portion the extent to which
the Group was in compliance with
mandatory statutory requirements.

Audit Committee
Effectiveness

The Committee prepares and reviews
with the Board an annual performance
evaluation of the Committee. The
findings of the review ensure that the
Board is satisfied that the Committee
is operating effectively, and meeting
all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Conclusion

The Committee is of the view that
adequate controls and procedures
are in place to provide reasonable
assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded and the financial position
of the Group is well monitored.

The Audit Committee concurs that
the adoption of the going concern
premise in the preparation of the
Financial Statement is appropriate.

The Audit Committee recommends
to the Board of Directors that the
Financial Statements as submitted be
approved.

On behalf of the Audit Committee;

Ko
A. R. Rasiah

Chairman-Audit Committee

29 May 2024
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Report of The Related Party Transactions Review Committee

Composition of the
Committee

The Related Party Transactions
Review Committee was established

in accordance with the Code of

Best Practice on Related Party
Transactions, issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Sri
Lanka and Section 9 of the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The Committee comprises three [3]
members, including the chairman, are
Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

A. R. Rasiah — Chairman (Independent,
Non-Executive Director)

S.G.Wijesinha - (Independent, Non-
Executive Director)

A. Herath - (Independent, Non-
Executive Director), Appointed on 12
December 2023

N. B. Weerasekara (Independent,
Non-Executive Director). Resigned
with effect from 18 November 2023

M. T. Siddique (Independent, Non-
Executive Director). Ceased with effect
from 5 December 2023

Policies and procedures adopted for
reviewing related party transactions:

The Committee reviewed all related
party transactions except for the
following transactions:

1. Recurrent, routine transactions
which are of trading or revenue
nature

2. Payment of dividend, issue of
securities

3. Grant of options and the issue of
securities pursuant to the exercise
of options under an employee
share option scheme

4. Atransaction in marketable
securities carried out in the open
market where the counterparty’s
identity is unknown to the
company at the time of the
transaction

5. Directors fees and remuneration,
and employment remuneration

The Committee established guidelines
for the Senior Management to follow,
for recurrent related party transactions,
in its ongoing dealings with the
related parties. At the year end, the
Committee carried out a review and
assessed ongoing relationships with
the related parties to determine
whether they are in compliance with
the Committee’s guidelines and that
the related party transactions remain
appropriate.

The Committee also determined
whether to obtain the approval of the
Board of Directors for a related party
transaction considering the factors
such as the impact of the proposed
transaction on the independence of
the Directors, and whether the related
party transaction requires immediate
market disclosure.

It was also ensured that Committee
members did not have any conflict of
interest with regard to the proposed
related party transactions.
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Meetings

The Committee met four times during
the year (once a calendar quarter).
Attendance of the Committee
members at each of these meetings

is as follows:
A. R. Rasiah 3 of 4 meeting
S.G.Wijesinha 4 of 4 meeting
N. B. Weerasekera 3 of 3 meeting
M. T. Siddique 2 of 3 meeting
A. Herath 1 of 1 meeting

Meeting and Minutes

Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited act
as the Secretary to the Related Party
Transaction Review Committee. The
minutes of the Committee approved
by the said Committee, are circulated
and agreed by the Board of Directors.

Statement of Compliance

The Committee has reviewed the
related party transactions during the
financial year and communicated the
comments/observations to the Board
of Directors. Information complied as
required under Section 9 of the Listing
Rules are presented under Note 36 to
the Financial Statements

On behalf of the Related Party

Transactions Review Committee,

ey
A. R. Rasiah
Chairman-Related Party

Transactions Review Committee
29 May 2024
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

The following statement, which
should be read in conjunction with
the Auditors' Statement of their
responsibilities set out in their report,
is made with a view to distinguish
the respective responsibilities of

the Directors and of the Auditors, in
relation to the Financial Statements.

The Directors are required by the
Companies Act No.07 of 2007, to
prepare Financial Statements for each
financial year, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss for

the financial year. The Directors are
required to prepare these Financial
Statements on going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate.

Since the Directors are satisfied

that the Company has resources

to continue in business for the
foreseeable future, the Financial
Statements continue to be prepared
on the said basis.

The Directors consider that in
preparing the Financial Statements on
pages 155 to 229 the Company

Used appropriate accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported
by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimated that all accounting
standards, which they consider to be
applicable, are followed.

The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that the Company keeps
accounting records, which will disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial
position, and profit and loss of the

Company and which will enable them
to ensure that Financial Statements
comply with the Companies Act No.07
of 2007.

The Directors are generally
responsible for taking such steps that
are reasonably for them to safeguard
the assets of the Company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are confident that
they discharged their responsibility
asset out in this statement. They
also confirm that to the best of their
knowledge all statutory payments
payable by the Company as at the
statement of financial position date,
are paid or where relevant, provided
for.

By Order of the Board.

M 9

V. Govindasamy

Director

Pty
Sunil G. Wijesinha

Chairman

29 May 2024
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Directors’ and Financial Controller’s Responsibility

Statement

The Financial Statements of Watawala
Plantations PLC are prepared in
compliance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants

of Sri Lanka, Companies Act No.07

of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting and
Auditing Standards Act No.15 of 1995,
and the Listing Rules of the Colombo
Stock Exchange. The accounting
policies used in the preparation of the
Financial Statements are appropriate
and are consistently applied by the
Company. There are no departures
from the prescribed Accounting
Standards in their adoption.
Comparative information is reclassified
wherever necessary to comply with the
current presentation.

The significant accounting policies and
estimates that involve a high degree
of judgment and complexity were
discussed with our External Auditors
and the Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors and Financial
Controller of the Company accept
responsibility for the integrity

and objectivity of these financial
statements. The estimates and
judgments relating to the Financial
Statements were made on a prudent
and reasonable basis, in order that
the Financial Statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, the
forms and substance of transactions
and that the Company's state of
affairs is reasonably presented. To
ensure this, the Company has taken
proper and sufficient care in installing
a system of internal controls and
accounting records, for safeguarding

M 3

assets and for preventing and

detecting fraud as well as other
irregularities, which is reviewed,
evaluated, and updated on an V. Govindasamy

ongoing basis. Our Internal Auditors )
geng Director

g

Dhammika Laksiri

have conducted periodic

Audits to provide reasonable
assurance that the established policies
and procedures of the Company were
consistently followed. However, there
are inherent limitations that should be
recognized in weighing the assurance ) )
: . Financial Controller
provided by any system of internal
controls and accounting.

29 May 2024

The Financial Statements of the
Company were audited by Messrs
KPMG, Chartered Accountants and
their report is given on pages 150 to

154 of this Annual Report.

The Audit Committee of the Company
meets periodically with the Internal
Audit Team and the External Auditors
to review their audit plans, assess the
manner in which these Auditors are
performing their responsibilities and
to discuss their reports on, internal
controls and financial reporting issues.
To ensure complete independence,
the External Auditors and the Internal
Auditors have full and free access to
the members of the Audit Committee
to discuss any matters of substance.

We confirm that the Company has
complied with all applicable laws,
regulations, guidelines and that there
are no material litigations that are
pending against the Company.
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GRI Content Index

Statement of use

GRI 1 used

Applicable GRI Sector Standard(s)

GRI
standard/
other
source

Watawala Plantations PLC has reported in accordance with the GRI Standards
for the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024

GRI 1: Foundation 2021

Agriculture, Aquaculture and Fishing Sectors 2022

Disclosure

2-1 Organizational details

GRI
sector

Location Requirement(s) | Reason Explanation standard
omitted ref No

‘ Omission

General disclosures

2-2 Entities included in the
organization’s sustainability
reporting

A gray cell indicates that reasons for omission are not

2-3 Reporting period, frequency
and contact point

permitted for the disclosure or that a GRI Sector Standard

reference number is not available.

2-4 Restatements of information

2-5 External assurance

2-6 Activities, value chain and

other business relationships

2-7 Employees

2-8 Workers who are not
employees

2-9 Governance structure and
composition

2-10 Nomination and selection of
the highest governance body

2-11 Chair of the highest

governance body

2-12 Role of the highest
governance body in overseeing
the management of impacts

2-13 Delegation of responsibility
for managing impacts

2-14 Role of the highest
governance body in sustainability

reporting
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2-15 Conflicts of interest

2-16 Communication of critical

concerns

2-17 Collective knowledge of the
highest governance body

2-18 Evaluation of the
performance of the highest
governance body

2-19 Remuneration policies

2-20 Process to determine

remuneration

2-21 Annual total compensation
ratio

2-22 Statement on sustainable

development strategy

2-23 Policy commitments

2-24 Embedding policy

commitments

2-25 Processes to remediate
negative impacts

2-26 Mechanisms for seeking
advice and raising concerns

2-27 Compliance with laws and

regulations

2-28 Membership associations

2-29 Approach to stakeholder
engagement

GRI 3:
Material
Topics 2021

2-30 Collective bargaining
agreements

3-1 Process to determine
material topics

Material topics

GRI 3:
Material
Topics 2021

3-2 List of material topics

3-3 Management of material
topics

Economic Performance

13.2.1
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201-1 Direct economic value 13.22.2

generated and distributed

201-2 Financial implications and 13.2.2
GRI 201: other risks and opportunities due
Economic to climate change
Performance 201-3 Defined benefit plan
2016 obligations and other retirement
plans

201-4 Financial assistance

received from government

Market Presence

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 202: 202-1 Ratios of standard entry 13.22.3
Market level wage by gender compared
Presence to local minimum wage
2016 202-2 Proportion of senior 13.22.4
management hired from the local
community
Indirect economic impacts
GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 203: 203-1 Infrastructure investments 13.22.3
Indirect and services supported
Economic 203-2 Significant indirect 13.22.4
Impacts economic impacts
2016

Procurement practices

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 204: 204-1 Proportion of spending on
Procurement  local suppliers
Practices
2016
Anti-corruption
GRI 3: ) 13.26.1
. 3-3 Management of material
Material

topics

Topics 2021
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GRI 3: ) 13.26.1
. 3-3 Management of material
Material )
. topics
Topics 2021
205-1 Operations assessed for 13.26.2
risks related to corruption
GRI 205: .
Anti 205-2 Communication and 13.26.3
nti-
X training about anti-corruption
corruption .
policies and procedures
2016

205-3 Confirmed incidents of 13.26.4
corruption and actions taken

Anti-competitive behaviour

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.25.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 206: 206-1 Legal actions for anti- 13.25.2
Anti- competitive behaviour, anti-trust,
competitive | and monopoly practices
Behaviour
2016
Tax
GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021

207-1 Approach to tax

207-2 Tax governance, control,
and risk management

GRI 207: Tax
2019

207-3 Stakeholder engagement
and management of concerns
related to tax

207-4 Country-by-country
reporting

GRI 3: .
. 3-3 Management of material
Material )
. topics
Topics 2021
301-1 Materials used by weight
or volume
GRI 301: ) i
. 301-2 Recycled input materials
Materials
used
2016

301-3 Reclaimed products and

their packaging materials




1 36 WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC « ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024

Energy

302-3 Energy intensity

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.25.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 206: 206-1 Legal actions for anti- 13.25.2
Anti- competitive behaviour, anti-trust,
competitive = and monopoly practices
Behaviour
2016
Tax

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021

302-1 Energy consumption within

the organization

302-2 Energy consumption
GRI 302: outside of the organization
Energy 2016

302-4 Reduction of energy

consumption

302-5 Reductions in energy
requirements of products and

services
Water and effluents
GRI 3: . 13.7.1
. 3-3 Management of material
Material .
. topics
Topics 2021
303-1 Interactions with water as a 13.7.2
shared resource
GRI 303:
303-2 Management of water 13.7.3
Water and . )
discharge-related impacts
Effluents
2018 303-3 Water withdrawal 13.7.4
303-4 Water discharge 13.7.5
303-5 Water consumption 13.7.6
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Biodiversity

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

3-3 Management of material
topics

13.3.1

GRI 304:EO
Biodiversity
2016

304-1 Operational sites
owned, leased, managed in,
or adjacent to, protected areas
and areas of high biodiversity
value outside protected areas

13.3.2

304-2 Significant impacts of
activities, products and services

on biodiversity

13.3.3

304-3 Habitats protected or
restored

13.3.4

304-4 IUCN Red List species
and national conservation list
species with habitats in areas
affected by operations

13.3.5

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

sulphur oxides (SOx), and other

significant air emissions

GRI 3: Material 3-3 Management of material 13.1.1
Topics 2021 topics
305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG 13.1.2
emissions
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) 13.1.3
GRI 305: GHG emissions
Emissions 2016 305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) 13.1.4
GHG emissions
305-4 GHG emissions intensity 13.1.4
305-5 Reduction of GHG 13.1.6
emissions
305-6 Emissions of ozone- 13.1.7
depleting substances (ODS)
305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NOx), 13.1.8

3-3 Management of material

topics

13.8.1
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GRI 3: Material

actions taken

3-3 Management of material

Employment

306-1 Waste generation and 13.8.2
significant waste-related impacts
306-2 Management of significant 13.8.3
waste-related impacts

GRI 306: q

Waste 2020 306-3 Waste generate 13.8.4
306-4 Waste diverted from 13.8.5
disposal
306-5 Waste directed to disposal 13.8.6

Supplier environmental assessment

3-3 Management of material
topics
308-1 New suppliers that were

GRI 308: . .

. screened using environmental

Supplier criteria

Environmental

A 308-2 Negative environmental

ssessment
2016 impacts in the supply chain and

Employment
2016

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

Topics 2021 topics
401-1 New employee hires and
employee turnover

GRI 401: 401-2 Benefits provided to

full-time employees that are not
provided to temporary or part-
time employees

401-3 Parental leave

Labour/management relations

3-3 Management of material
topics

GRI 402: Labour/
Management
Relations 2016

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

402-1 Minimum notice periods
regarding operational changes

Occupational health and safety

3-3 Management of material
topics

13.19.1
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GRI 305:
Emissions
2016

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

403-1 Occupational health and
safety management system

13.19.2

403-2 Hazard identification,
risk assessment, and incident
investigation

13.19.3

403-3 Occupational health

services

13.19.4

403-4 Worker participation,
consultation, and
communication on occupational
health and safety

13.19.5

403-5 Worker training on
occupational health and safety

13.19.6

403-6 Promotion of worker
health

13.19.7

403-7 Prevention and mitigation
of occupational health and
safety impacts directly linked by
business relationships

13.19.8

403-8 Workers covered by an
occupational health and safety

management system

13.19.9

403-9 Work-related injuries

13.19.10

403-10 Work-related ill health

Training and education

3-3 Management of material
topics

13.19.11

GRI 404:
Training and
Education
2016

GRI 3: Material
Topics 2021

404-1 Average hours of training

per year per employee

404-2 Programs for upgrading
employee skills and transition
assistance programs

404-3 Percentage of employees
receiving regular performance

and career development reviews

3-3 Management of material

topics

Diversity and equal opportunity

13.15.1
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GRI 405:
Diversity
and Equal
Opportunity
2016

GRI 3:
Material
Topics 2021

405-1 Diversity of governance 13.15.2
bodies and employees
405-2 Ratio of basic salary and 13.15.3

remuneration of women to men

3-3 Management of material
topics

Non-discrimination

GRI 406: Non-
discrimination
2016

406-1 Incidents of discrimination

and corrective actions taken

Freedom of association and collective bargaining

13.15.4

and Collective
Bargaining
2016

bargaining may be at risk

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.18.1
Material topics

Topics 2021

GRI 407: 407-1 Operations and suppliers 13.18.2
Freedom of in which the right to freedom

Association of association and collective

Child labour

Labour 2016

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.17.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 408: Child 408.-1 F).perati.ons ané s‘uppliers 13.17.2
at significant risk for incidents of
Labour 2016 .
child labour
Forced or compulsory labour
GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.16.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 409: 409-1 Operations and suppliers 13.16.2
Forced or at significant risk for incidents of
Compulsory forced or compulsory labour
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Security practices

Peoples 2016

Local communi

ties

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 410: 410-1 Security personnel trained
Security in human rights policies or
Practices procedures
2016
Rights of indigenous peoples
GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.14.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
GRI 411: 411-1 Incidents of violations 13.14.2
Rights of involving rights of indigenous
Indigenous peoples

actual and potential negative

impacts on local communities

Su

pplier social assessment

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.12.1

Material topics

Topics 2021
413-1 Operations with local 13.12.2
community engagement, impact

GRI 413: Local assessments, and development

Communities | programs

2016 413-2 Operations with significant 13.12.3

Topics 2021

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021

414-1 New suppliers that were
GRI 3: screened using social criteria
Material 414-2 Negative social impacts
Topics 2021 | in the supply chain and actions

taken

Supplier social assessment

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
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GRI 414:
Supplier
Social
Assessment
2016

414-1 New suppliers that were
screened using social criteria

414-2 Negative social impacts
in the supply chain and actions

taken

Public policy

Customer health and safety

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.24.1
Material topics

Topics 2021

GRI 415: 415-1 Political contributions 13.24.2
Public Policy

2016

health and safety impacts of

products and services

Marketing and labelling

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material 13.10.1
Material topics
Topics 2021
416-1 Assessment of the health 13.10.2
and safety impacts of product
GRI 416: . .
and service categories
Customer .
Health and 416-2 .InC|dents of nc?n- 13.10.5
Safety 2016 compliance concerning the

GRI 3: 3-3 Management of material
Material topics
Topics 2021
417-1 Requirements for product
and service information and
labelling
GRI 417: ,
K 417-2 Incidents of non-
Marketing ) )
d compliance concerning product
an
. and service information and
Labelling .
labelling
2016

417-3 Incidents of non-
compliance concerning

marketing communications
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Marketing and labelling

GRI 3:
Material
Topics 2021

3-3 Management of material
topics

GRI 418:
Customer
Privacy 2016

418-1 Substantiated complaints
concerning breaches of customer
privacy and losses of customer
data

Additional sector disclosures

Sector standard ref # Disclosure Location

Natural Ecosystem Conversion

13.4.1 3-3 Management of material topics

13.4.2 percentage of production volume from land owned, leased or managed
by the organization determined to be deforestation- or conversion-free, by
product, and describe the assessment methods used.

13.4.3 For products sourced by the organization, report the following by product:
the percentage of sourced volume determined to be deforestation- or
conversion-free, and describe the assessment methods used; - the
percentage of sourced volume for which origins are not known to the point
where it can be determined whether it is deforestation- or conversion-free,
and describe actions taken to improve traceability.

13.4.4 Report the size in hectares, the location, and the type of natural ecosystems
converted since the cutoff date on land owned, leased, or managed by the
organization.

13.4.5 Report the size in hectares, the location, and the type of natural ecosystems
converted since the cut-off date by suppliers or in sourcing locations.

13.5.1 3-3 Management of material topics

13.6.1 3-3 Management of material topics
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13.6.2

13.9.1

Report the volume and intensity of pesticides used by the following toxicity
hazard levels:

- Extremely hazardous;

- Highly hazardous;

- Moderately hazardous;

- Slightly hazardous;

- Unlikely to present an acute hazard.

Food Security

3-3 Management of material topics

13.9.2

Report the total weight of food loss in metric tons and the food loss
percentage, by the organization’s main products or product category, and

describe the methodology used for this calculation.

Food Security

13.10.4 Report the percentage of production volume from sites certified to
internationally recognized food safety standards, and list these standards
13.10.5 Report the number of recalls issued for food safety reasons and the total

volume of products recalled.

Land and Resource Rights

13.10.4 Report the percentage of production volume from sites certified to
internationally recognized food safety standards, and list these standards

13.12.2 List the locations of operations, where land and natural resource rights
(including customary, collective, and informal tenure rights) may be affected
by the organization’s operations

13.13.3 Report the number, size in hectares, and location of operations where

violations of land and natural resource rights (including customary,
collective, and informal tenure rights) occurred and the groups of rights
holders affected.

Rights of indigenous peoples

13.15.5

13.14.3 List the locations of operations where indigenous peoples are present or
affected by activities of the organization.
13.14.4 Report if the organization has been involved in a process of seeking free,

prior, and informed consent (FPIC) from indigenous peoples for any of the
organization’s activities, including, in each case:

Non-discrimination and equal opportunity

Describe any differences in employment terms and approach to
compensation based on workers’ nationality or migrant status, by location of

operations.

Living Income and Living Wage
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13.23.1

13.21.1 3-3 Management of material topics

13.21.2 Report the percentage of employees and workers who are not employees
and whose work is controlled covered by collective bargaining agreements
that have terms related to wage levels and frequency of wage payments at
significant locations of operation

13.21.3 Report the percentage of employees and workers who are not employees

and whose work is controlled paid above living wage, with a breakdown by

gender

Supply chain traceability

3-3 Management of material topics

13.23.2

Describe the level of traceability in place for each product sourced, for
example, whether the product can be traced to the national, regional, or
local level, or a specific point of origin (e.g., farms, hatcheries, and feed mill

levels)

13.23.3

Report the percentage of sourced volume certified to internationally
recognized standards that trace the path of products through the supply
chain, by product and list these standards

13.23.4

Describe improvement projects to get suppliers certified to internationally
recognized standards that trace the path of products through the supply
chain to ensure that all sourced volume is certified.

Topics in the applicable GRI Sector Standards determined

as not material

‘ Explanation

Agriculture, Aquaculture and Fishing Sectors 2022

Animal Health and Welfare
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SASB Standard - Meat, Poultry & Dairy

Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Metrics
Table 1. Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Metrics

Crrgenhousa
Erriunigem

Erarqgy

Water
Managuimont

. Lisiel Ui &
Ecnlodgical
liripacts

| Groas global Scope 1 emissions Chasngitative

.MHH}HM-HI'HiHiHrH D-l-hm

plan 1o manage Scope 1 emissions, emissions. and Analysis
reduction tergets, snd an snalysi of

.“:IT'D'IHI'III'WM, .Mﬁﬂ

(2] paraniage gl elecncty aed (3}
Fanawabhe

| percentage

{11 Total water withdrasn, (1) total water Chagntitative
cermumad; parcentags of sach in reguorm. with
High oo Extremnedy High Bassline Waber Stress

:ﬂlwwmdmwﬁduud | Biseussion

discussion of strategies and practioes to and Anakyis
mitigate those ks

:thlf-uﬂmidlnunlrmtmpumu II:I.IH\I.I'III:HI

sssociated with water quality permits, standards
s negulatiors

:an{mrrnummmm. | Costitative

parcemtage maraged accoadeg to 8 nutrient

feeding operations

Fwdmhﬂmudfmwﬂ.m
with High or Extremsely High Basaline Water

Percantage of contracts with producess located | Cnaanitative

| I regians with High ar Exiremely High Baseline
| Wated Siress

Drperisaan of sientegy 1o minscs | Diseussion
opporhuities and risks 1o feed sourcing and and Anabrsis
veitock wpply presented by cirmate change

Table 2. Activity Metrics

SO TTWTTY R T IR

CATEGORY UMTT CEMEASLIRE

Mumiber of processing and Caaniitsss b
rrayufacturing Faciltiey i

frimal pratein proaduction, by
catagary. piranisgecuivaurcad Chuanaitaten Varkous, Perosniages)

Maavursmand

Muetric fors ()
CO-a

]

| Gigajoules

Fercentage

.'“'Iﬂl.l'l-lrld

cubse b

Parcantige

Peirtricc noe G,

Pecentage (%]

.leﬂl

| Matric tons

.F‘Hﬂﬂl;q]

(%) by weight

.Pﬂ'ﬂlﬂhql

T LS T

FB-MPD00.4

FB-MPD00.8

Fi-40G-110a.1

EB-AG-110u2 |

| FB-AG-130.1 |

.FB--I'-'-E-'I-I'N.'I .

| FB-AG-14002 |

| FB-AG-180a.3 |

| FBMP 1601 |

EBMP.1800.2 |

Fa-MP- 16,3

| FBMP-240a.1 |

| FB-MP-240a.2 |

EBMP-440u3 |
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SASB Standard - Meat, Poultry & Dairy

Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Metrics
Table 1. Sustainability Disclosure Topics & Metrics

Mpirsg Limit of Resporms’ Rel
Messmemend Page Mo
Green house Gay | Deoss global Seope | emissicns. Chusnitakive Magtinc bord FB-AG-1104.1
Emmisions I COy-a
.Dhtm' af bang- and shom-termatrategy & plan -D'rwu'lm' and .l'u’i FB-AG-1106.2 .
o manages Scope 1emissions, emissions reduction | fnalysis
targets,and an analysis of performanoe
againsithess Wargets
| Plsat fusl consumad, percentagaranewabile | Chantitative | GigajoulesiGJ),  FB-AG-110a3 |
Percomtage )
Eh-an IH}W!I!IWWW“.E?W -l:hnm .ﬁmhﬂﬁﬂ. FE-.HE-HD-H .
Management grid electricity and|{3) percentage renewabde Percentage(%)
| Wartar | {1} Total water withdrawen, (2) total | Cuantitative | Thousandeublc  FB-AG-180a.1 |
Manpgaman watsrcansumed. percentage of ssch irregions matrasim’],
with High or Extremsly HighBaseling Wistes Stress Percantagel™)
.Mipﬁmdmwmwﬁﬁm I:hl-mlwmd .ﬂ.ﬁ -FE-.F-E-Hhi.
discuasion of strategies andpraction o mitagate Arlypiis
throse rinks
| M of incidents of non-complisnceassocisted | Oumititetive: | Bursher FB-AG-180a3
with warter quality pesmitsstendsnds and
requiations
Il-:l-mﬁulim' of principal crops anddescription of | Dscumslonandd | nfs FE-AG 44001
risks snd opportunitiespresantad by dimate Analysiz
Irgardinm change |
Sy Percentage of agricultural produsctssourced from Dumntitative Percentage(®  FB-AG-440a.2
negions with High oExtremely High BaseSrs by cost

Water Stress

LT OFMEASUSE

Praduction by principal crop Cluantitative: Metric tors P AG000.4
HMurrbeer of pracessing lacilities | Cianitativa Mursibae FB-AG-0008
Tetsl land sraa under sctive produection | Cuaniitstive Hestaraon FE-A5-000.C

-tD-I'I: of sgrizuliural products sauresd i .
axtarmally Cuantitative sD FB-AG-000.D
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Financial Calender

1. INTERIM GUARTERLY REPORTS
Listereg fiile: 7 (&) {0 (1) Submission of whasdilad condensed |

viarirm hinancial statemants o CSE a8 pad Elng rols

ONet Gipartas vWithin 45 days of the end of guarias

| D3 Ausgust 2023
|08 Movembar 2023
| 5 February 2024

2nd Guarter Within 45 days of the end of guartar ::L‘l Movamber ‘,"'EI‘,"':"'

13 February 2023
249 May 2023

2 Lduartar Within 45 days of the end of guarter

dth Quarber Within &0 days of the end of quarter | J'EI' May 2024

2. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS
Lispmg rule: 25 (a3 Submission of sudited financial statements within five months from year ended

tdrh dnrusd Genaral Meeting 20007 30 May 2007 22 Jurwe 2007
"-‘I'| -ml'lllal ._1.3-.-=-r.1.| ?-‘JE' g EI:I':' '-TlEl |-1_ Jumg EIZI':'E 'Il .I..ll',' E'DUI':I
pats Anmaesl Gensrsl Mesathing .EI:II:'E o9 | iS5 Juns 2009 | I-J ull.-' 2009
I7th Annual General Maating 2‘-:":{:‘5 10 1 June 2010 OF Judy 2000
Bth Annual Ganaral Maating 20N | 16 Jurse 20T] 08 Judy 200
Fath Annual Goneral Meating 2002 12 Juna 2012 06 Jully 2012
D{'.-":l'l__r-.ﬁrlu:‘ll uEl'lElall ‘~‘=-e' i’ __'-“Di:'.-“|§_ _ |.T .IunE- :\?15_ o9 July ..'31_3
Zlst Armual Generad Meating 201514 S June 2004 -;.IL‘I lung 20044
Zind Annual Ganeral Maeating 2014/ 1. 0B Juna 205 30 Juna 2015
2Zrd Andwsal General Mesting 256 09 June 2018 0 June 2016
24th Annual General Meeting 2018/17 05 Juna 2017 26 Junp 2017
Zhth Annal Ganaral Meatng 200178 Oa Jure 2018 28 Juns 7018
26th Armuiad General Meeting 'r;| B I'+ 06 June 2018 a7 .Iun|_=- "5'-.,II'-J
ZTth Annual Ganeral Meating 2009 "ﬂ 03 June 2020 | .EI_ _I i '-'-.'}"'“
28th Annual Genaral Mesting 2020771 03 Jurie 2021 25 Jure 202
Zarh Armual General Meeating EIII:"_-"._'.‘_: 2 Juna E-!}.E_J 2-_= Jig EI}.EE
I0th Annual Ganeral Meeting 2OFAT O Juma 323 23 June 2023
st Annual Ganeral Meeting 202%/24 04 June 2024 28 Jisna 20024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC

Report on the Audit of the
Financial Statemants

Opinion

Wi haree sudied the fnancsl
suaternents of Witawata Plantations
PLC "the Cotmaany "} and the
comaidated inancial #atamerts

of the Company and its subssdiary
{*the Group*}, which comprise the
statemant of financial position as 8
3131 March 203, and the statemaent of
prafi or loss and other comprahisnsve
inceme, statement of changas in
eguny and statemant of cash flows
forthe year then ended, and notes to
thea firancisl stawements, inchading a
sy of materisl accounting
polaas set out on pagses 155 to 239,

In eur opinion, the scoompanying
financial statements of the Company
and the Group geve & tiue and fair view
of the financial poattien of the
Company ard the Group as st 318
March 2024, ard of thair financsl
pardormancs and cash flows for the
year than ended in accordince with Sn
Lanka Accounting Standards,

Basis for Opinion

W condudied our audit m acooedancs
with 54 Lanka Auditing Standards
{SLAuSa) Cur respansbelinias under
those stardards are further described

EFR ol et et il
L el = o

in the Auditors Resporsbdnes for
the Audit of the Financial Statements
sacton of cur mport. Wa arg
indepandant of the Company m
accoidance with the Coda of Ethics
for professional Accountants nased
by Ca Sri Lanka ﬂ'l:-udi-nfEl.hlnl]- and
wee have fulfillad aur other atbical re-
sporabil s i wccordance with tha
Code of Ethucy. W believe that the
aid evidencs we heve sbraned s
wuflaam and sppropriate 1o provds
& bass for our opiman

Key Audit Matters

Ky audit matiars ane those matters
that, in cur professional judgmant.
wirg of most sgnilicance inour

audit of the Company financal
statemaris and the conscbdated
financal sstemants of the-currem
panod, These matters wene sddresusd
in the contest of eur sudin of tha
Company finanoal statemants and
the consolidated fmancial statamants
a3 awhaola, and In foming sur spinian

g’ walfr AFLE) eyl e et @ ogmecale
Lrgan comnay iraied by pusrssiss &F oo rssreed.

Risk Description

The Growp has reported bearar
Biabogesal arsats amauntng e
LER 2,423 Mn and biolygical assets
Ivastock carmad at fair vaks
amournting to LKR 1,164 Mn a3 at
2048 Mageh 204,

Bearer biological assets mainky inchds
matung and immatune palm oll, e and
athar trags in identifiad plantation
fialds. Enappropriate transfer from
immature to matuee plarations has a
significamt impact on the cairging
wahie of the bearer plants snd the
repaned prafts sy cspnalesnon of
costs will eabse from the paim of
trarafer and the msture plantatiars are
depracatiad over the usahul lves of the
plants,

A5 par the industry practica, trarafer of
immature plantations 1o matuns
plantatian falds happans st the paint
of commencement of commarnal
harvesting, The scual point of which
commarcial hanesting could start

tharean, and we do not provide & depends on the soil condition, weathar
SEPEFALE SEIRGA SO eSS MBS patterns and plant broed,
1. Measurement of
Biclogical Assets
Refes 1o the sighdicant acoounting
policies i note 3.7 and sgrlanatary
Motes 16 and 17 10 the fnanceal
AL LS,
il e e o P O D spaesss TTE T B Pk FCA P FCA
E-rm b B iy FL WH O G eyl T ﬂl-lll-lllll_l'-'ll'l:l'-
e R by e iy kP e A

A O R Fale e LS

Fopopars. 5 A1 Perems ORGSR | LLE Afprewy-ais 1 5 ooreseries 508, U B A Sy PO U F0
B Bt S ks,



KPMG'

The bicloqical sssets livestack mclude
enttha, which are measuned a8 fa
valse less cost to sall. The

rriia garnent hea used inbeenally
devaleped discounted cash fow
method 1o calculste the fair valee af
the Group's biokogical ssses as ot iha
reporting date. The calculation of the
fair valus ol bislagical assets tvahas
sagnificant dagree of judgments,
particulorhy = resgeact of expectsd
production, market prces of raw milk,
expacied costs and discounting factor

W considered messuement of
biologeeal sssets s o key sudit manes
disz u:'lhurrug'll'tl.rduq-i thix value of
bearer bialogical assets and significant
managarmant [sdgenent nvahad

in datermining the point at which a
plant = deamed ready b commmarcial
hanmsting. Fusther, valuation of
Inrstack biclogeeal sssats irnvolwed
sgailicant sssumplaoas snd [udpments
in determining the {air value which
eoudd ba subsject to enor o potarial
managermnent bias.

Ciur sudit proondues induded for
besrer beological assets;

& Ohaarng an whdesstanding of
the process al mmmatue 1o malums
trarraler ared Lesting the design,
implamantaton and operaiing
affectiveness of managemeant ey
internal controls m malation o
bearer biological assets.

& Dbmiring schadules of coms
wramaiung plantations as wall as
cost trarsberred to matuns
plamationg by aach asate and
meconciling those balances 1o ithe
general leddger on shmple bass,
varifying the reconciling aems
inanaspement lor any signiicant
vatiances identified.
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* Physical verification of fiekds on
sarnple basis and cross checkng
with the classification of immature
and matune plantations.

o TEmting eTHTEILES T AMALIE DOST
traresber workshest {or selectsd
auates 1o check whother ihe
amounis transtarred during 1hae
year were consistent with the
comparny acoounting policy and
ndustry nosma.

Chur it procedunes ncluded for
Feestock biological assets;

o Obtaineng and understardng of
the process of valuation and testing
thr dessign, imgdamentation and
openating eflectiveness of
rrdmigemeant key controls relation
1o the valeation of Ivestock

& Challaryging the methadalogied
adopied in tha valuation of
Fuesbock with relerence to the
regpiiremants of the provalling
sccounting stanclards.

& Challenging the key assumgpiions
and methodalogy wsed n the
walation, in panicula the discount
rade, average milk production,
sallirg price of milk, seersce oot
par cow, wosght and selling peice
ol the cattle n evalliating the
appropraieness of the valuation
mathodology and discount rate
wsed,

& Evaluateng the socuracy, complate—
ness and reasonableness
af the dats and inputs used for the
waliigtion of lsestock and eddence
fox physical vorification of cows
durang the yaar,

& Coamparing the discoimt e,
nonmal Mg cycle of a milking cow,
milking yield per lactation wath
arvalalbly inchustry data.

# Evalunting the adeguacy of the

Gmoup's deckosures relating to
Esalagical assets in the Bnancal
statements regarding the degree of
pudgiment and estimatien nnahied
and the sensithaty of the assumplions
and estimabes.

2. Valuation of Retiremant
Benefit Obligation

Heler io the significant accownting
peolicies in Mote 3102 and
axplanatony Mote 2% of the finencial
BLADA BN

Risk Description

The Growp has mecognized refiemant
banalit abligatan of Rs 370 Mnas

at 3154 March 2024, Tha retirernant
benalit obiligation of the Group

s sgnificant i the comeet of the 1aral
habaities of the Group. The valwstson of
the Gercugs's ratinament banafa obligation
fespuines significant judgment and
estimaticn to be apphed across
niEmeroLs assumptions, inchuding salary
incraases and discount rate. Small
changes n those assumptions could
have a significant effect on the financial
pariommance and Bnancial position of the
Gt Management engaged an
indepandent actuary b assst theem in the
camputation of retseman benalit oblig-
ko,

Wi coridened the compuiation of the
retiremant benefit cbligation fo be a key
sudit mattar due 1o the magnatuda of the
amrouints fecdgnited in the fnancis]
statements as well o8 estimation
uncaanty imaled o determining the
TEOUNEE.

Our audit procedures included;

& Assossing the competency,
objsctivity and capabilites of the
independent actuary engaged by
the management.

151
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KPME

# Tasting the samples of
the emphopees’ details used m the
computaficon 1o the human nesource
records and pedormad re-
eormputalicn ol sample af post-
employmant banefit liabilities with the
easistance of sur milarmal valuation
specialist.

# Challenging the key assurmptions
usad in the vaksation, in particular the
discaunt rate, inflation rate, fulure
salary increases and mortality rates.

® Evalisating the accuracy,
comglateness and reasonabloness
af the empioyes data used for the
calculathon of ratiremant banafit

obligaticns.
* Comparing the desscount rate,
inflation rate, momality rete and

future salary increases to market
avallable dats.

® Assassing the adequacy of the
disclosures made to the financial
alatementd i socandance with the
rebevant accounting standands.

3. Impairment assessment
of Investments in
Subsidiaries

Reler to the significant accounting
policies in Note 386 and
oaplanatory Note 19 of the financial
stateimimnds.

Risk Description

The Company has recorded
investmeants m subsichanes smounting
e LER 2,131 Mn as at 315t March
H24. Addatonally, the Company has
recognized LER 397 Mn as provsion
For impasmient of imesimants in
subsidiaries as ot 315t March 2024,

Investments which do not generate
adequate retuing may Be an ndication
of imparment. Dua 1o the value of
IrveEstmiEnds h-uilg rruaterial im tae
Financial Sraterreos, i will have
significant impact on the financial
parformance af the Campany

The Managemant performed the
irngaaarrient sssessment for subssdisnas
with indicators of impaimment and
determined their recowersble amounts
brased on value-a-use caloulateons.

Wa have identified the impairmant
of irvestments in subaidianies & a
by audit matter due fo the
rmagpidudhe of the amounts
recognizad in the Financial
Stetermants g 8t 31a8 Masch 2024, In
addition, these areas wera significant
b oo aucdi because the impasment
SREEMEN] Procoss imolves
significant management judgements
and required the management to
ke varioud assumplicns. i the
underlying cash flow forecasts and
vahation mathodsledy,

Our avdit procedures Included;

& Obtaining an understanding

of management’s impairment
assessMEnt pocess,

# Evaluating the camying smounts and

the recoverable amaunt of each
inwpstmant in order to identify
impairment ndicaons as per
accouniing standands

Mdsagsing the management’s

basis used Lo determine the
recoverable amounts of these
invastmants by our own aapectations
based on our knowledge of the
imvestrments and experance of the
ndustry i which those operate.

# Engaging cur cwn inteinal expadis

where applicable 1o assass the
reasonability of the valuation
techniques, {orecaus and ssumptions
wsad.

Adsessad the accuraty of
MBNAGamEnt’s assumptions
comparing with extemally denved data
as well as our own assessments in
ralation fo ey inputs swch as
projected sconsmic growth,
commpetiison, cost inflaton and
discount retes,



KPME!

o Hsseased the adeguacy of

diricheaures in the Fmaneial
Statarments in ralation Lo
irvgpasrrrient of Ewestmants in
submsidiaties.

Other Information

Managemant is responsible for

tha other information, The othar
information cormprisas the information
inchudad in the annual sepon, but does
nat include the financial statemants
and our swditor's report theseon,

Ot opaiiga cin the firencaal
statements does not cover the other

information and we do not BExXpress any
ferm of sssurance canchmion therean.

In cannection with cur audit of the
financial statements, o resporsbility
Is to read the other information and, in
daing 4o, consider whathsr the ather
information i materially inconsstont
with the financial staternents or cur
knowledage obtamed in the audit o
otherwizse appears to be materially
misstated, W, based an the work wa
have performed, we conclude that
there is & material masstatement of this
other information, we ane requiied to
repeart that fact. We have nothing o

nepart in this segand,

Responsibilities of Management
and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial
Stataments

Managament is responsibla for tha
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preparation of hnancial statements
that give & true and fair view in
accordance with 5r Lanka Accounting
Standards, and for such intemal
oodvirod 85 Mmandgement detedemines &
nacassany 1o enable the prepadation of
financial statornants that soo frea from
miparizl misstatement, whather duo to
fraud ar amor,

In prepaning the financial statermants,
managemant & responsibde fod
assassing the Gioup's ability to
COntinag 35 8 Qoing Condem,
diselosing, as applicabla, matiers
related to going concern and useng
ihir going concern basis of accowniing
unless managemant sithes mbends
i liquidate the Group or to cease
acperations, of has ro realistie
altemative buk to do 3o,

These changed with governancs
are responsible lor oversesing the
Company's and the Group’s financial
TEROnmg Process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Ciier objectives ame to cbitain
ressondble ssurance about whather
the financial statements a5 a whale
are free from material misstatament,
whether due o fraud or emos, snd 1o
issul an auditor's report that incledes
i opinion, Ressonable assirancs s
& high level of assurence, but s not a
guarantes that an audit conducted n
accoedance with SLAUSS will shvays
dletect a material misstatement when
it exiisis, Msstatements can arse from

traisd of arrar and sie considecsd
material i, individually or in the
aggregate, they could masonably bo
axpacted o influsnce the scondmic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A part of an medit in accordance
with SLALSS, wa exercise professional
Judgrnent and mamian professonal
skopticism throughout the audit. We
s

lchenitify and assess the
righes of material misstatemant of the
Finaneiad staremema, whethar dues 1o
frawd o error, desgn and pedon
audit procedures respongive to those
righks, and ohiain aude evidence that is
sulficient and appropriate 1o provide
a biasis for our opinson, The risk of not
datecting & mabedial misstaamaen
ru:luhing from fraud iz |'|ig|'|-=|' than for
one resulting from eeror, as fraud may
irvabve collision, fongery, intentional
OMBSIONS, Msfepresentatons, o the
ovarride of intemal cantral,

Dibtain an understanding of intomal
contral relevant 1o the audit in ofder
to cesicn audit procedunes that are
appropraate in the circumstances, bt
ot for thy purpose of spressing an
opinion on the offectveness of the
Cormpany and the Group's intemal

control,

Evalusta the appropiiatensss

of accounting policies used and
thi rassonablanse of accounting
sutimates and related dsclosures
made by managemsint.



KPME'

& Conclude on the appropriatensss of

managament’s usa of tha going
concern basis of accounting and,
based on the auwdit evidence
obtained, whother & material
urcenainty exists related to events of
conditions that may cast significant
doubst on the Group's sbility 1
continue 85 a going conoem. If we
conclude that a ﬂ“lﬂiﬂtl.lﬂ:l:l}l'"lil‘ﬂr
antes, we s reguired 10 drew
atantion in our auditors report to the
related disclosures n the fnancial
statements or, if such disclosues am
inaclequate, o madily our openscn.
Our conclusicons ane based on the
audil evidence obtainsd up bo the
date of our auditor's repart. Howevar,
future events o conditions may cause
thee Group to caasa to continue & 3

gong cancern,

Evahiate the overall presentation,
structure and contant of the financial
statements, including the disclosures,
and whathar the financial statements
represant the undarlying transactions
and events in & mannes that achieves
fair presantation,

Cioeaen sufficient appropriate

audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entitias
of business activitbes within tha
Groasp 10 @press an opanion on tho
consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the dinection,
supseresson and pedosmance of

the group audit. We remain solsly
rsponsible for our audit opanaon.

We communicate with those charged
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with gowarnance regarding, among
athar matiers, the planned scope and
tuming of the audit and significant sudit
findwnags, including any signaficant
deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit,

Wa also provide those charged with
govarnance with a statement that
wa have complied with relevan
ethical requirsments negarding
mdepandence, and fo communicata
with them all relationships and other
rratters that may reasonabdy ba
thought 1o bear on our independence,
and where spphcabile, sctions leken
o eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communcated with
thosa charged with governanca, we
determine thote matters that weni of
imaat significance m the audid of the
financial statemants of the current
penod and ane therefone the key audit
matters, Wa describe thesa mattars

i oiaf auditar's report unbess Law o
ragulation precludes public disclosure
sbout the matter o when, in extremely
rane cireumstances, we datarmine that
a matter should not be communicated
in ol report because the adwarse
corsequences of doing so would
regonably be sxpected to cutwaigh
the public intarest benefits of such

COMITILNSC Rt o

Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

As recquied by section 163 () of the
Companias Act Mo, OF of 2007, wa
hanve abtained all the mlarmation and

axplanations that ware requingd for
thir aucdit and, as far s appears from
OUF eamenation, proper sccounting
records have been kept by the
Coempary.

CA Sei Lanka membership numbar of
the engagemaent partner responsible
for signing thes independant suditoars
report s 2P,

KOG

Chartered Aocountants
Coloamba, Sri Lanka
31 May 2024
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

fall amesmnts in S Lankan Rupaas theusands)
Croup Compary

For the yesr ended 11 March Mate 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue 5 B320903 B7LA041 8,867,145 757181
Cast of sales [5.166.312)  (SE29.954) (A.627.334) 38307237
Gross profit 5 3,154,591 3,538,085 3239811 3,743,089
Crher Income(epensas) & &1,000 {3 B27) {155, 228 [#88.825)
Gain/{loss) on changes in fair value of biclogicel assets s 39,589 (132 4574} {15,25%) 14 455
Admingsty slive expenses {d44.194)  [360.047)  (431.14%)  [347.055)
Selling and distibution expanses (150,672 (78558  (150472) {TE.953)
Operating profit 2,660,714 2930,745 2487203 2842708
Finance income 8 182,771 138938 219828 125116
Firanos ot 8 (PE.63% (116,195} {1,962} (43,888}
Net Finance Income 105,132 22,743 157864 82,230
Prafit before incame tax g 2. 765, 848 2753 4B 7645049 2524919
income tax{axpanses] 10 {421,110 [621.658) (241215 (587,259
Profit for the year 2,344,736  2331,790 2,403,854 2,335,639
Profit is attributable to
Eauity holders of the parent 2AS8.770 234G 3403854 335,639
Mon-conitralling interests (14,034} 132, 502) " -

2,344,736 2331,790 2403854 2,335,439
Earnings per share_[LKF] 11 11.60 11.63 11.82 11.49

Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The financal statements ara to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form & part of the consolidated finangial
stalements of the Group set out on pages 16310 229,
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Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income

fall arrscuts in Sel Larken Rupeas theusands)
T — w

Far the year ended 31 March Wots 2024 ] 22d 2023
Prafit for . the year 234473 23U 70 2403854 2335439
tems that will not be re-classified to profit or loss

Actineinl lozs sn ratirement banefit obligstions 29 {15,005} {H15.07 3 {13080 P07}
Crfarred Tax on actusial loss on tetframent bensfit 3 4,305 12522 anz b R
obligations

Total other comprabansive sapaenss for the year [net of tas) {10,700 82,151} 9. 128) [6%.352)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,334,036 2249639 2394726 2264 287
Total comprehensive iIncoms atiributable to:

Equity holdars of the parant 2348229 2283430 2 Z23INT6 2264287
Mon-controlling Brtee st 14,1930 e=ikil]

2.334,036  2.249.639 2304726 2.266.287

Figures in brackets indicate deducticns
The financisl statements ara to beread In conjunction with the relatad nates, which form a part of the consolidated financial

statermnents of the Graud set out on pages 163 16 2200
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Consolidated statement of financial position

JAY arnourds in S Lankan Rupsss thousands)

Greup Campany
As o8 31 March Hote 2024 203 2024 2023
Assels
Mon-current assets
fight of use sssets 13 359,850 243,676 363,858 247,773
Property, plant and equipment 14 2555913  24m33M 1,212 638 1,135 489
rtangible assats 15 43 143 47 437 48 007 45 748
Bearer biclogical assets 16 ZAZ2HTE 2544277  2IMAABR 2515252
Biclogical agsets . conumable 171 10086 44,349 - :
Biological assats - livestock 172 1185589  B9307 : ;
Irveestrmend fund 18 51,593 33,283 51,393 53283
Irecastimant in subsidiantes 1% 3 2. 131,217 2211342
Total non-current assets 6,673,952 4,331,522 6,181,434 6212407
Current sesets
wanteries 20 559813  B74.437 242,106 351,502
Biclogical assets-produce on bearer plants 174 70,87 86,126 70,847 85,124
Current tax msats 38, 752 33719 34,752 E= WA L)
Trade and other recehnbles 21 234,734 497 448 234,758 440} RS
Loan ghwen to related company = - = 170,000 270,000
Amount dus from related companies 23 31,747 149 147 285 143 Y
_Shott term imvestments 44 524,050 4,670 923 168 4,870
Cash and csh equivalents 5 797 421 B54.00 774475 BS3. 193
Total current assets 2,757,364 2,502,927 2,743,270 2,389,730
Total asets 9,431,316 8,834,449 8924904 8,602,137
Equity and labilitiss
Capital and resarses
Stated capinal 26 511,848 £11,845 511,848 511,648
_Ratained mamings 5ATSBG  STARIT 0 5995104 A040080
Equity attibutable to equity holders of the company 6188710  &280185 4506952 4551930
Mon-condrolling interest 208,411 23 B4 - .
Total equity 6,397,321 4502989 4506952 4,551,930
Mon-current labilities
Intarest b barmewin 2 39,090 1,23 - -
Lease Liabilities 28 401,592 223 411,297 282,189
Retirement benefit obligations 5 370,065 337,389 322,784 29
Daferad Incoms and capital grants 0 38,728 39,084 36,726 39.084
Dreferred s liability 3 978,449 A0S S50 715956 725238
Total non-current liabiities 1825922 1455448 1488283 1343405
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Group Company

Aa at 31 March Mote 2024 33 2024 0
Currart fiabilities

Interast bearing borrowings 27 BY.511 12597 - -
Lasse Liabilites 28 3170 167 2810 127
Trsde and othar payables i 16,493 BOB 1TE B10,820 704,707
Amcunt due to related companies 33 R 665 218 Q. GaG 218
Current tax labilities 108,500 4 458 108,550 -
Bark overdrafis 25 BG40 53446 - .
Tatal current isbilities 1208073 875812 931489 706,802
Total liabilities 3033.995F 2331440 2897952 2050207
Total equity snd liabilities 9431316 8834449 8924904 8602137

These financial staterments are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which farm & part of the comolidated finamcal
statements of the Group set out on pages 162 107229,

Itie oertified thet the finandsl staterments hnes been prapared in complisncs with the requinemeants of the Companias At
Blo OF of 2007,

E r
Dhamrnika Laksini
Financial contrallar

The Boeed of Directors I3 resporeslble for the preparation and presentation of these financal satements. Aoproved
end sigred for and on behalf of Directoes of Watewala Plantations PLC.

V Govindasamy Sunil G Wijesinha
Diractar Chaderenan
29 May 2024

Codomba
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{8l arnearnts in S Lanksn Bupeas thousands)
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Meote  Stated Retasned Tortal Mon Total Eguity
Capral EATRAEY eantralling
irerest

Balance at 1 Apnl 2002 511848  £34503% 4857784 200887 TOPRAT
Profit for the year - RIAFE 2344097 {32502 2331790
Actuarial lozs on retirarment benefit abligations - (113442} (113,462 (1417 (115073
Deferred tax on actuarisl loss on retirement benefit 32,600 32,400 22 2R
obligations

Total comprehensive income for the year - 2203430 22MTAI0 [(33,7W) 23249439
Transactions with owners of the Company, -
racognised directly in squity

Effact on dranges in effectve holding in the subsidiany {14.708) {14, 208) 14,708 =
Dividends paid 12 = EBAS IR (2B46331) 2.546,321)
Total transactions with owners = [2,851,029) (2,881,029 14,708 (2845 321)
_Balance at 31 March 2023 511,848 5768337 6,280,185 222804 4,502,989
Balance at 1 Ap=il 20023 511,848 578R.337 4280185 s SR A
Prafitfor the year 23570 2ASRTRO [14,034) 2344734
Acturial loss on retiiement banefit cbligationa - {14,807} {14,807 (198 (15,005
Deferred 1200 on acwari sl loss on retirement bansfic r 4,268 4 266 . £,305
e i

Total comprehansive incomae for the year 2348309 2348339 (14,193) 2,334,038
Transactions with owners of the Company,

recognised directly in squity

Dividends paéd 12 e I |2 430, 704)
Total transactions with owners - (2439,704) (2,439,704) . (2439,704)
Balance at 31 March 2024 511,848 S675842 6188710 208411 63973

Figures in bracket ndicate deductions

The financlal statermants are 1o be read in confunction with the related notes, which form a part of the comsalidated finandal

statements of the Group set outl on pages 162 to 229,
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Statement of changes in equity - Company

fall amounts in 5r Lankan Rupass thowsands)

Mote Stated Retaimed Total
captal marnings Bjuity
Balance at | Apnill 3072 11040 A420016 7131544
Profit for the year = RIARAIF 2335530
Actuarinl loss on retirement banefit obligatisns . {7%.074) (79,074
Deferred tax on actuarisl loss oncretirement benelit obligatons $ o B oy ]
Jutal comprabunsive Wwcoms for the yeer - 2266287 2,266287
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognised directly in equity
Diidends paid 12 . [2896321)  (@8s63N)
Total transactions with ownars - (2846,321) (2.846.321)
Balance at 31 March 2023 511,848 6040082 6,551,530
Balenee at | Apnl 20033 511,848 4,040,083 &,561,930
Profit for the year . 2403 854 2,403 854
Actuarial loss on ratiramant banafit obligations . (30201 (13,0409
Defaired 1ay on actuaris less on retirement bensfit obligations - amz 3912
_Total comprehensive income for the year - 2394736 2394726
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognised directly in equity
Dividends paid 12 - @437 704) (2435 T04)
Total transactions with owners - [2A39.704) (2,439.704)
Balance at 31 March 2024 11,848 5995104 &.506952

Figures in bradkets indicate deductions

The finandal statements are 10 bereéad in conjunction with thi rélated notes, which form a part of the consolidated firancial
aratemends of the Group 98t out on pages 167 to 229,
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows

ol amounts i 5 Lenkan Rupsss chousands)

Gireup sty
For the yaar anded 3% March Hate 2024 203 2024 )

2755 P B 25008 2 2 oMOE
11943 12213

0

Frles M VA7
1488 399

1 B2 210 45 73
f 13538
f = =T uit =il
] : = Bl125 A0S T
T {2581 [i04Ea) - -
T 15,756 [14.455] 15759 4455
] {#9.4310 151435, = s
18 (L1104 [4457] [L110 [4.557)
20 i (5 441} 3 Sy
f % ke o] (2350
[3, 145 2 E% F
- (105, 133 274y |
1015210 ASERANT POBOORS  ISBI4TT
415708 fhzd 1] BRI (1 38AT)
TV7 T T T Y
8551 :ﬁ.ﬁ 455 [radd
108314 B 105,914 1
3
] | (54 5831 {31
8 18371 138738 mm
= {14 B0 T O I v - ek v

A6 27049 AAMET 2FEl N

EE

2%

Fipees in brachals indicste deductions

Thasiés firncinl stansmecs ae 1o b reacl in conjunstion with thi related fotas, which foem b pait of the sonsclidarsd fnbncial
Satamants of the Group 981 out on pages 18210 229,
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MNotes to the financial statement

ol amcants in 5 Larken Rupess thouzands)

1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Domicile and legal

Watewala Plartations PLE {the
Compemny iz a publia limited
fiaklity company Incarpoatad

and damicilad in 54 Lankas under
tha Companies Act hlo 17 of 1982
ir tesmrs of the provisions of the
Cormretslon of Publle Corporanons
o Goveememient Chwnesd Dussness
undenaking inlo Public Cornpanies
Act Mo 23 of 19897 and re-registered
under the Companles At Mo 7

of 2007, Thea registered office of
the Compary is located at Mo 40,
Dharraapala Mawatha, Colomba
23, The Flantations ae siusted In
the Udugama, Galle District inthe
Seutharn Provines.

The Corsclidated Financal
Statements of the Group as al snd
for tha yaar anded 3st harch 2024
comprige the Financisl Statements
of the Companmy and i subsickary
Watwwala Dairy Lid: [togethar
feferrad to o the 'Groag')

1.2 Principal activities and

nature of operations
The Compary i@ primatily angaged
in cultvation, manufacture and sala
ol erude palm oil, oy subidisey
Watawala Calry Lid s eangaged in
dairy farming and manufacturing
walue edded products,

Tha plersations aa slsted in

the Udugarma, Galle Districtin

the Sautharn Prondnos whereas
Watawala Dairny Lid's opecations are
situated |n Hattan,

1.3 Parent and ultimate
parent enterprise

The Immediste parent of Watawala
Plantaticrs: PLC is Surshing Wilmar
[Prevata) Limited and ultimats
parant I5 Sunshine Holdings PLC

2. BASIS OF
PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of
Compliance

The Corsolidaied Finawdal
Statements of the Group and the
separale Finandal Statemants
ol the Compary compeise tha
Staterment of Profit or Loss and
Oither Comprahensive Incame,
Statement of Finandal Position,
Siaternant of Changes in Equity and
Staterment of Cash Flows, together
with the notes 10 the Financial
Suatermearts and material Acscunting
Policies which havi baan prapared
i accordance wath the S Lanka
Accourting Standards (SLFRSs
LEASS) promulgated by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of 5
Lanka {28 54 Lanka) and with the
ragpuiraments af the Corrpanies
Act Mo, 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka
Aceounting and Auditing Standards
Act Mo 15 of 1985, Thase Finandal
Staternants, except infarmation on
Cash Aows, bive been prapared

following the sccrisd basis of
seEeUning.

2.2 Approval of Financial

Statements by Directors

Tha Consolidated Finandal
Hatémaents were authorized
for Baue by the Bodrd of
DHractors on 27th ey 2024,

2.3 Basis of

Measurement

The Corgolidated Finandal
Seatements have bean prapared
on historical cost basis except for
the fallawing metensl tems n the
Statement of Financial Posltion

® Corsumable Biologicsl Asses
are mesaured st fall valus &z
costs 1o sall 35 par LEAS 41;
Agpicultize.

# Liahility for Retirement Benafit
Chligation is recogrized as the
prasent value of the defined
berafiy abiigation bared an
actuarial valuation as por LEAS
1% Employes Benafits

#® Acricultume produce harnsted
from biological asséts are
rrsksead w1 Taer valus g3 par
LEAS 41 Agriculiure.

2.4 Functional and
Presentation Currency

The Comsolidated Finandal Statements

are prassnted in 56 Lankan Rupees
which is the Group’s functional
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Notes to the financial statements (contd)

{all amounts in Sri Lankan Rupsas thousands)

cuwrancy. All kinandal infermation
presanted in S Lankan Rupess has
bean rounded to the noarest upes,
urless stated athansias.

2.5 Presentation of

Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of tha Group
presantad n the statemant af
financipl position are grouped by
nature and liated inan order
that raflacts their relative
iquidity and rmatueity pattem

2.6 Materiality and
Aggregation

Each matetisl class of similar

{terms is presanted separately in

the finansal statements, Hems of
desaimile natwe of functicen are
presanted seperarely unlass they

ang Imenatesiol 85 parmitbed by

LEAS 1; Presentation of Finamdial
Statements, Finandal assets and
firarvcind liabilites are offset and the
pat amodnt repart in the statemant
of finandial position, anly when thare
is @ legally enforcaable right to ofzat
tha recegnized amounts and there is
ar intantion to setile on nat basis,
or Lo realize the assets and seule the
liabskity sirmatanagushy,

2.7 Going Concern
The Diractoes have mads an
assassmant of the Compamys ability
fo continue &5 a godng concam in
tha foreseeable future and they do
nat loreses a need for iquidation or
cessation of irading,

2.8 Use of Estimates and
Judgements

The praparation of Financial
Statemnents in confarmity with
Srl Lerka Accounting Standards
(SLFRSeLKASS) raquires man.
agerment to make judgements,
estimates and sssanptions that
affect the application of acoounting
polices and the reported amounts
of gzeers, liabilities, income and
BT,

Judgments and estirmates ste based
ar historical expariance and other
Faciars, induding expectations

that ere baliaved 1o ba regsonabde
undar the circurmstances. Hancs,
actusl axperence and results may
differ from these judgements and

astlmales.

Estimates and underlying assump-
tioen are reviewed on ongoing basi
Revidion Lo atcounting estimates are
racognized in the pariod in which
tha astimates are revlged and In ary
futwe parlod affected.

Information sbout critical estimates
and judgameants in applying
accounting polices that have the
rvostslgrifican: effect on the
amounts recognized In the Finandal
Statements is indudead in the T4l
lewiing nates:

Bote 14 -Property, plant and
eprmen

Mete 17,1« Contumable Biologicsl
Aszeis

Mote 17.4 . Agriculiure produce on
baarer plants

Meota 28 - Lesse liabslities

Plate 29 . Ratiremeant Banafit
Chligations

Mote 31 - Delerred tax Hability

2.9 Determination of fair
values

‘Fair valus' is the price thot would be
received tosell an asmetor paid

b racsfer a lishility in an ofderly
transaction batwean markat
partigpants 8t the measurement
date in the pendpal o, inits
absence, the most advantageous
ket to which the Group has
secass al thal date,

The: fair value of a liabdity reflects

its poreperformancs riske Sevaral

of the Graap's accounting policias
and dizeledurés require the
detesmination of falr value, for beth
finmndial ervd nonfinancial asseis an
Tabalities

Whan measuring the falr valus of

an asset or liabdlity, the Group wses
obswvable market data as far a5
possible, Fair values ans cmagorized
into differant levels in a fair walue
higrarchy based on the inputs ysad
it thee vabustion technigues,

Lewsd 12 mputs are unsdjustad
guoted priced in aothve miorkers for
Identical gizats or lisbilites.
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Notes to the financial statements (contd)

il amounts in Sef Lankan Rupess thousends)

Liswed 2 inpauts are inputs othee

than guoted prices induded within
Lerval 1 that are cbsesvable for the
aseet of [iability either directly (e, as
priceshor indirectly [l.e. derived from
pricos)

Leval 3 inpats are [nputs that are
net based on obzensble markat
data lunobservable Inputsh,

IFirpuins ceed to rreasse the fair
value of an seset o Hability fall
into different levals of the Fair

walue higrarchy, thon the fair value
mgasurament i5 catagonsed in its
antirety in the same level of the fair
watlun higrarchy as the |owest level
ingut that 13 significant to the
enbing mddRs ement,

Fair walues hove bean determined
far measurament and disdosure
puposes based on the following
methods. Where applicabble, further
finfarmation about the assumptions
made in deterrmining Fair value is
disclessd in the notes spedfic s
thar asset or lisbiline

2.10 Fair value of non-
financial asset

Thvtr fair walue used by the Group in
tha maasurarment of non-firancsl
assets is based on the presumption
that the transaction 1o el the
astel of trandfer the Fakbility tukes
place either in the principal market
far the aset or lability, or inthe
abasnce of & prindpal market, in

is accessble by the Group for tha
asset or lishility

Thee Fair value of an asset or a
[Eaksility s messured wiing the
asgumptions that rarket partlapants
would act in thelr aconomic best
imtarast when pricing the sssat ar
[Eabdlity,

& Falr walise measremant of &
morlircancsl ausat takes inte seecusit
& market particpants sbifity 1o
gienatala sconomic bamafits by
ising the-assat In its highest and
best use or by selling it to ancther
markat participant that would use
the asset inits highest and best use.

Thee (560U e EUALon
techndgques that are appeopriate in
the drosmstances and for which
suffident data are aveileble to
misaszee fair value, masdmising
the wsw of relevan cksenable
inputs and minimizing the use of
irsoibs ervats e Enputs,

3. SUMMARY

OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Except as stated bebow, the
Group has consistently applied all
the sccaunting polides set out
below to sll periods presentad in
thasa financal marements

3.1 Changes in Material
Accounting Policies
The group has adepted the
following disdosures from 15140l
20123,

3.1(a) Deferred Tax
related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The Group sdapted Defemred Tax
related to Assets and Liabdities
arising from a Single Tramsaction
iArnersdments to LEAS 12) from 1at
Aol 2023 The amendments neerow
the scopa of the initisl recognition
sxemption 1o axcuds transaciions
that give rise to egqual and cifselting
vemporary differences - ¢, g leases.
For leases, the Group is required

Lo recognise the assodated
deferred tax azsets and liabslites
frarm the beginmng of the ealies
cormparathee penod prasented, with
any curnulative effect recognrised &
an adustment 1o retained samings
o othar components of ogusty at
that date, For all othar transactions,
the Group applies the emendments
o transactisns that ooour om or after
the beginning of the sardisst penod
presented, The Group previously
accounted for defarred tax on leases
by apphing the ‘Integealhy linked
approach, résuliing in & Smils
sutcome as under the anendments,
axcapt that the deferred tae &esat
o llabifity was recognised on anet
basiz. Folloving tha amendments,
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dafarred twd assel in relation to'its
lenze [fabdlitias and & deferrad tax
[iakality in relation o it right- of-

uge assels. However, 1hers wat no
impact on the Staement of Financial
Position because the balances
qualify for offset under LKAS 12
There was also no impact on the
opening ratained earnings a5 at Tt
April 2022 a5 a result of the changs,

3.1(b) Material Accounting
Policy Information

The Geoup alas sdopted Discloaurs
of Booounting Polides (Amendrments
1o LKAS 1) from Tat April 2023
Although the amendmaents did
not resdt in any changes 12 the
eocounting policies themsebeas,
thay impactad the accotnting policy
informmtion disdosed in the finandal
stalements, The amendments
recrare the disclosure of ‘material’,
rather than ‘significant’, seoounting
polides. The amendmants alaa
provide gquidancs on the application
of materislity 1o disdosure of
accodnting poliches, essisting entities
o prowide usaful, entity- spedfia
acoounting policy information
that users need to undersiand
othas information in the financial
statemants. Management reviewed
the accounting polides end mads
updates to the information disdosed
in Mate 3 Material accounting
palices R0Z3; Significant accounting
polidies) in cartain irstances in ling
with the amendments

3.2 Basis of consolidation

Tha Finangial Statemrants of the
Company and Geoups dorm prise
the Firandal Statements of the
Company and its Subsidianies for
the year ended 315t March 2024,

3.2.1 Business combinations

The Geoup adeounts Tar busbhess
combinations wing the scqulaliien
migthod when the sequened sar

of sativities and a3sats rreet the
defirition of a busingss and contrel
is transfeimad (o the Graug, |n
determining whether & partioulas
set of acthvities and asdsti iz s
buamnets, the Grous atesisy
whether set of assels and activities
mopuered ncludes, st & rrinimum, an
input and substantiee poocsss snd
vwiathier the ecquined set Fas the
ability to peoduss the sutputs,

The Group has-an aption to apply
a 'concandration test’ that parmits &
simplified assessment of whather an
acouired set of activities and assets
is. oot @ buginess, The optional
conoantration testis mat [
substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assels acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable
asset of growp of gmilar identifiable
EEsais,

The considerstion transferad in the
aopuistion i3 genesally messured

at Fair value, a3 which are the
identifiable net asseis acquirad.
Ary goodedll that sises i@ tested

anrually for impairment. Any gain
on wbargain purdhase &
racognized in profit or loss
Immediately, Transaction costs are
exprrsed as incurred, except if
rolated 10 the issue of debyor
eqiity securities

The comslderstian (ransferrad
does not indude amaunts ralated
to the settlament of pre-axisting
relationships. Swch emounts ara
gerarally recognised In proficor
loss.

Any contingend consideration is
mieagurad at fair value ot the date
of acquisition. i an obligation te
poy contingent contideration that
meats the delinition of a finandal
instrument Is dassified s squity.
then it s not remeasured and
settlement is accounted for within
equity. Othenwise, other contingent
corsidaration is remeasured o fir
value at sach reporting date and
subseguent changes in the fair valuse
of the contingent consideration ane
recignisedin prafit o a4

I share-based payment swards
[raplacament awards] are redquined
te be exchanged for wwards hald by
the acquires’s employess (soquires’s
awards), then all or a portion

of tha amount of the acquirers
raplacemant swanrds i indadad

in megswing the conslderation
trarsfarrad In the business
combination. This determinaticn

Iz betad en the market-based
measure of the replacemant

wnards compargd with the markat-
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Easwd maasurs of the acoquirees
awands and the axtent to which
the roplecement awards ralate
to pea-combination sendce,

3.2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities eontraliad
by the Grodip, The Grougs eontrals
an antity ifit i3 expesad to, or has
tights to, vatiable refurrs from

i irvohremant with the entity

and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power gwes the
enting The finandal statements of
subsidiaties are induded in the
comiolidated finendsl statements
fram the deta on which contral
comrmenoes wntll the date when
contiol deslas:

I astmant in sebsidisny sre inltially

recogrized at cost and subsaquently

gocounted at costless any

impairment losses in the separate

financle! statemants of the

Sompay.

3.23 Non-controlling interests
{"NCI®)

Ol are measured at thed

proportionate share of the

acquiree's identifable net ssseats a

the scquisition data, Changes In tha

Group's imerest in o subsidisny

that da not result inoa logs of

eonthol are accounted for & equity

IrarEastinng,

3.24 Loss of control

When the Group loses contiol over a
subsidiany, it derecognises the assets
and labilities of the subsidiary,

and any refatad MO and ather

companants of equity Any resulting
gain & fossis recagnised In profit
or boss. Any interest retained inthe
formns subsidiary is measurad at falr
vialus whan contrel |5 fost.

3.2.5 Transactions eliminated

on Consolidation
Intra-geoup balances and
rargactions, and any unrealised
ineome and expenses [docapt lo
fereign curmency iransaction gains
or losses) arising from intra-group
trarsactions, are eliminated.

Unraalised gaing arising from
brarsacticns with eguity sccounted
imvestees ara aliminated against
the invastrment 1o the axtant of the
Group’s interest In the Investes
Unrasfizad loszes arg eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gaing,
but anly to the extent that there s
no evidence of impairment.

3.2 Segment reporting
Dperating segrments are reparted

in & mannes consistant with the
internal reporting provided to the
chiaf axecutive office . The executive
committes of the Company sssasses
the financ sl performance snd
pasition of the Comparny and its
sibsldissles ared makes strategic
dectzsions.

3.4 Foreign currency

translations

Tramsactons in currences athet
than the entity’s functional currency
[foreign cutrendes) are recanded in
the functfenal currendes waing the

nxchange railes pravasling at the
dates of the transactions,

At each reporting cate, monstsy
iems denominated in fareign cur-
rencies are translated ot the dosing
rate; Mor-monetary [tems messured
a fair value are wanalated st the
rales prevailing on the dite when
the fair value was deteimined.

Hon-monetary itams maasured

at historical cost are transated at
the rates pravailing on the date of
transmction

Exchanges differencas ariging on the
settlemant of mensatary fams and
o the ranslation of monetary items
are included in pralit o logs for the
parled,

Exichange differences arsing on the
translation of none menetary items
carried at falr value are included in
profit or less for- the paried ascept
for the differences which are
recogrized in other comprehansive
income,

3.5 Assets and Bases of
their Valuation

Bssets dassified as cument assets in
the Staterment of Financal Position
are cash, bank balances and those
which are exgecied 1o be reafized in
caah, dising the norrmal sperating
eycle of the Groug's business,
of within one year Fom the
reporting dake, whichaver [s shortar,
Aasets other than current
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sssels are thosa which the Group
intends ts hold bevond a period of
one year fram tha raposting date.

3.6 Property, Plant and
Equipment
3.6.1. Recognition and
maasuraement
Property, plant and equipment e
statad at eost less secumulated
depreciation and scoumulated
impesment losses, edcept for Bame
Lend on Lease which (s siated st
revalued amount on 18th Jurs
1592 less subsequent sccurmulated
depreclation and sccumulated
Impairment |ossas.

When parts of an item of propery
plant and sguipmient bave: differsnt

wsahul [res, they are sccounted for as
sapaials |Lemd (major cormponents] af

property, plant and egquipment

3.6.1.1 Owned Assets
The oosl of sn iem of propsarmy,
plantand equlprment compeiaes
its purchasa prics and any directhy

sitributable costs of binging the asses

to working condition for its intended
usa, The oost of salf- corstrudted
pasats includes the cost of matesdzs,
direct Iabcur, and sy other costs
directly sttribitable to beinging the
amat 1o the wisrkdmg condition fos s
intatded we, This alse Indudes cost

of disrmentling and removing the ltems
snd rastoring at the site on which thay

are located and borowing cost on
qualifying assels;

3.6.2 Land Development Costs

Permanant land developimant coats
ara tha coate incumed in making
major infrastructure devalopmant
and bdlding reew mcoass roads on
leasahold lands. Thesa costs have
been capitafised and amortised
owel tha remaining lesse period
Permanant impalrmant W land
derval oprmesnt cosls are cherged

1o the profitor loss statermant in
full ‘or reduced to the net carmyng
amounts of such azzets in the year
of pocurrence after ascertaining the
b

3.6.3 Capital Worl-in-Progress

The cost of capital work-in-

progress it the cost of purchass

ol eoniruction together with ey
related expenses thamon, Caplsl
work-in-progress is trasaferied Lo the
respective assal accounts at the tine
of first utilization or - et the tima the
assel i cormmigioned

3.6.4 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group
assessas whether a contract f5, or
coniains, alease. & contract is, or
conteing, @ beasa if the contract
cormys the right to contral the use
of an identified asset for ‘& pariod of
time in ex-chenge for comsidaration.

Tor sssesz whether & contract cofveys
e Hght s eontial the e of an
identifiod asset, the Group assesses
wihether;

® the contractimvohmes the use of

an idantified sssat which may be
eromfiod aerlleithe ne Trmedlaito

and should be physically disting
o Teprasent substantislly all

of the capadty of a physically
distinet asset. If the supplier hias
& gubatantive substinition ght,
theam the asaet iz not identiflad

& the Group has the right to obdain
substantially s of the aconomic
benefits Fom wse of the asset
throughout the period of use;
and

#® the Group has thiright to direct

their s of the assat.

Thie Girewp has this right when it has
the dedsion- making rights that are
rroal relevant 1o changing how and
far what purposs the sasel is wed.
In rane cases wheare the decsion
abrout haw and Tor whiat purpote
the assel is used is predetarmined,
the Group bas the right to direct the
use of the assat if either:

® the Group hias the right to
oparate the assat; or

#® the Group desigred the ssset in
a'way thet pradetermines how
and for what purposs el be
s,

Thés polloy ts applied 1o contracts
enterad into, of changed, on o
after Tst Apell 2019,

At incaption or on Te-astessmant
of 3 contract that comtains a leass
componant, the Group allacates
the considecation in the contia
to each |ease companent on the
basis of their ralathe stand-alones
prices, Whara the leasa agreemant
ircfudes an annual adjustment on
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avariable such a3 GDP defiate | the
Group shall annuslly reassess the
leabvility coraidering such variable
and recognised the amount of
remegurement of ihe lasie
Fakiilitles a5 an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset

The Group fecognizes @ right-ofuse
asset and @ lease liability ot the lease
commancemant date, The rdght-of-
use asset is nitially measured at cost,
whech comprises tha initial emownt
of the lease llability adjusted for amy
lease payments made at or bafore
the cormmencement date, plus any
indtial ‘dirgct costs incurred and an
pstimate of costs to dismantle and
ramoye thie underlying asset or 10
restore the undarhying asset or the
site on which it (s loceted, less any
lease incenthes received.

Thee right-of-uss asset i3
subgequently depreciated wsing

the siraight-line methad fram the
commancemsnt date 1o the end

of the leate 2im, unlets the leass
ransfers cmmership of the underlying
astet io the Graup by the end of the
lease verm or the cost of the right-
of-use asset reflacts that the Group
inll exencizs B purchase optfon, In
theat case the right-of-uss asserwill
be depredated over the useful (ifs
of the undeslying sset, which s
detemmingd on the same Basis a3
those of property and egquipment

In addion, the right-of-use asset s
perindically reduced by impairment
lesaes, iF amy, and adjusted for

coartalin remearrements of the lease

IFakity.

Thea lease lability i5 bnitially
migedirad gt the present value of
tha lepse paymers that are not
paid at the commencarmeant date,
dizcountad wsing the Intesst rate
Imipdicit b the lesse o, iFthat rate
cannot be readily detarmined, tha
Group's incremantal borrowing
rate. Ganarally, the Group uses its
Incramantal borrosing rate ss tha
ciscount rate.

The Group detarmines its
ircremenial borrowing rete by
ebtsimng interest rates frorm variows
wxtarmal financng seurces and
makes cortain adjustmonts 1o raflact
the tesms of the lease and type of
thie asset leased

® Lesse payments indueded in
tha messuremant of the lease
liakility compriza tha following;

® fixed payments, induding in-
substance fixed payments

#® variable [ease paymants that
depand on an indax or @rate,
inftially measred using the index
ot rate as ab the commencement
date;

& amounts expected 1o be paysble
under a residunl value guarantes;
and

& the exarcis price undera
purchase option that the Graup
I3 reasanably cedaln to exevcise
leage persmants in an o oplcnal
renewal paried if the Graugpis

reasonably certain i axerdie an
extersion option, and pemalties
for yearly tarmination of aleass
unless the Group is reasonably
certain not 1o terminate yearky,
The lease liability is measwred ar
smoftized cost using the effactive
intarest mathod. Itis remeasured
when theré is & changs in lutue
lsase payments ariging from a
change inanindexar fate, if there is
a dhange in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expeected to be payable
under s residual value guarantes, i
the Group changes 13 assasement
of whether it will sxarsse 5
purchasse, extension of temination
option or if there is-a redsed i
substance fixed lease payment

When tha Fease Hability is
remeasurad Ir this way, &
comesponding adjusiment is mads
to the carrying amount of the right-
of-Use asset, or is recorded in profit
or logs if the carrying amaunt of the
right-of-use assat has been redhced
o Zesg. The Group presanis right-
of- use asgats that do not mest the
defirstion of imestment in dght of
use sesets and lease |abilites in
Heass lighilives' inthe statemant of
financial position,

3.6.5 Subsequent costs

The eoat of replacng part of an item
of praperty, plant and equipment is
recegnisad in the carrying amaunt
of thea e ¥ itis probable that the
future econarmic benafits embediad
within the padt will low te the
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G mnd 18 cost cen be messured
raliably. The carrying amaunt of the
replaced part it derecogrised,

The costs of the day-to-day senicing
of property. plant end egulpment are
recognised in the Statemant of Profit
of Loss and Other Compeahanshe
Irceme & dncunmed,

3.6.6 Borrowing Costs
Baerowing costs thal ane directly
smrbutable o scquisitlon,
construction or production of a
gualifying asset which takes a
subsstantisl pariod of time to get
ready for ik indendad use or sale,
e capitalised % a part of the ssset.
The armounts of the barowing costs
which arg eligible for capdtalization
are determined In accordance Wwith
LKAS 23 - Borrowing Costs,

Baorrewing costa that aia oot
capitalized ane recognised as
expnsed in the period in which
they: see incarad and charnged to
the Staterment of Profit or Loss and
Cthar Comprahsnmba Income,

3.6.7 Depreciation and
amortisation

Dapracation i calculatad ovar the
depredable amour, which is the
cost of an gssal or sthar amowunt
substituted for cost, lest ity resicual
valus. Depredstion o recognisad |n
profit or logs on @ strafght- line
Basis over the estimated uselul e
of each part of an (tem of proparty,
plant and squipment, gince this most
cosely raflects the sxpecied
pattern

of corsumption of the fsiure econemic banefits ambodied In the asset. Loszed
asrels are depredated over the shorter of the leade term and their useful Ihwes
urless it is rearonably cartain that the Group will obtain owneship by the end of
tha lease term. Land s not depreciated,

The eatirmsted ussiul |ives for the cumant and comparstive poedods pe &
fallows:

Camgany Fraghold Laasaheid
asiats [Vgaea]  wisats (Years)
Right to use of land -
Inprevements 1o land - 20
Vested olher assels - a0
Buitdings 40 2
Flant and madhinary 12 13
Equiprrisnd i
_Cemputer equipmant 4
Cormputer soitwarns &
_Furniture snd fittings 4 =
‘Mator vehicles. - H]
Saritalion, wated and slectiicity 2 20
Ronds and bridges 40 2
Fences and security lights 3

Mini Fydro plants : 10

Depredation of an msel beging when it is awaidlable for use, wheraas
depreciation of an aal censes ol the sarliar of the date that the sasel
ks classlfied ez hald for sale and  the data that the esset ls deracognizad,

Depredation mathed, useful lives and resideal values are reviowad 3t
aach finandal year end and adjusted il sppropriate,

Group
Watawala Dairy Limited

Freahold assets are depreciatad using similar rates a2 the parent endity, The sight
1o uze lond and sasets scquired from \Watswals Plantstions PLT are depredated
Gvar thee shoater of wseful [He or the remaining pericd of the |lease,

Residusl walves of these assets and useful lives are reviowed and adjusted i
appropriate. Where the carrying amount of an asset bs greater thanits estimated
recovesable armount L wiitten down immediately to s recoverable srmount
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3.4.8B Deracognition

Thee carrying amount of an ibem of
property, plant and equprrent i
derecsgnised on depesal or when
s future sconomic banefits are

e peact e froum its Lse o disposal.
Gaing and losges on disposal of
anitern of property, plant and
adquEperent are determmned by
compating the procesds from
disposal with the carrying amount
of propesty, plant and equipmeant,
ard are recognised net within
aither irncoema in profit o hoss and
the revalued assats are disposed,
the amourt includad in revalustion
surpdus reserve is transferred to
retsined eamings.

‘When revalued assets are disposed,
the amounts includad inthe
resvaluation surplus resene ara
trarsfarnid bo ratained samings

3.6.% Intangible Assets
Anintangible asset is resogrised if it
is probable that economic benafits
attributable to the assats will flow to
thoe artity and 2ost of the astett can
b measured reliably and carned at

coet less accumllabed aratisation
arnd accumulated impairmment losses.

3.6.5.1 Softwars
Purchased soltware it recogrized
agan irtangble agset and i amadtized
an 3 straighi-line bags over &t
iraful 1da.

The astimated welullifs is as follows:

Bgset Cabtegory Lissful Hm

Erteeprise Resturce &years
Planning System

3.7 Biclogical Assets

Bicdogcl assats are cassified

35 Bearer Biclogical assets and
Comumable Biclogical assats
Baarar Biclogical agsete includs
palmrood, tea, armarmicn and fubber
traas those that are not intended
tes b sold of hasvested, bt are
howeser used to orow for harvesting
agnicultural produce fram such Bio-
logecal assats.

Consumabla Biclogicalassats n-
dude mansged timber traes those
that are to b sold as Biclogcal
assats) and bvestock of Cattle.

Bicdogrcad aasats are Turthar dassified
irte Mature Biclogical assets and
Immature Bidogcal assets. Matuwre
Bl Sl assets ard thoses that have
attained harvestable specificaticns o
are abile to wiskain regular hareests,
Immrsture Biological aseets are those
that hawe mot et attained
harvastable spacifications.

3.7.1 Recognition and

Measurement
Thie entity recaanines the Biol oogeal
assets when, and orly when, the
antity cortrols the assets as o result
of past events, it 15 probabde that
future soonomic bamnefits
associated with the assets will flow
to the entity arsd the Fair valies of
cost of the asets canbe measurad

risliakby,

The Bearer Biclogical sssets are
measured at cost less accurrulated

deprecation and scumated
innpairrrent [cases, F any, interms
of LKAS 16 - Proparty, Plant and
Equepsment.

The managed timber trees ara
maasured on ntial recogniticn
and at the end of eadhreporting
period at its fair value less oost
toselin termns of LKAS A1 The
oost is treabed as ap promation

to Fair value of voung plants (age
below 4 years) as the impact on
biclogical ransformation of sudh
plants 1o price during this period i
imimatarial,

The bvastock ane inhially measured

ot cost and subsequently fair valued
ot each repoting date

3.7.2 Bearer Biological

Assats
Thes costs of land preparation, reka-
bilitaticn, new plantandg, replanting,
crop diver sification, interplanting
femdising snd g0 on inoured
betwesn the tirme of planting and
harvesting dvhan the planted area
attains maturity), are dassified as
immature plantations. These
innmnature plsntations
ara shown at direct costs plus
sttributable overheads indudng
interest attnbutable to long term
lzars wed for finanang immature
plantations: The expendturs
incirred on Bearer Biclogical assets
(Palm oil, Tea, Zinnamon, Rubber,
Cooonut, Maize, Turmenic, Grass and
MBorocado) which comes inta beating
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Euring the year, Is tranafesrad 1o mature plantations

Parmanent impaliments to Baarer Biological Acsats
mre charged 1o the Statement of Prafit or Loss and
Crhar Comprahenshe Incoma.

3.7.2.1 Infilling Cost on Bearer Biclogical Assets

The land developrnent costs incurmad in the foem of

Inflling are capitalised when infilling resulis in an Incease

i the aconamis life of the relewant feld bayand itz
previoushy assessed standard of performance and

infi ling costs 5o capitalised are deprediated ower tha newly

assemad rermalning wseful sconomic life of the relevant
rrsatune plentation,

inflling costs thet sre not cepstalized have bean
charged 10 the Staterment of Profit o Loss and

Dthar Comprehansive income in the year in which
they are incurred.

3.7.2.2 Growing crop nurseries
Mursery oot includes the cost of direct matedials, dinect
labaiir snd spprapdate proponion of directy stiributable
owarhaads,

3.7.2.3 Depreciation
Mature Plantations {Replanting and Mew Planting) sre
depreciated on & straight fine bass over the sxpected
pariad of thedr commencial harvesting.

The expected pafods of commercial hasvesting for each
categony of crops are as Tollows:

Company Freetaid asets (Yenr) Leasehokl assata
[¥eary)

~Tea g 0

= Rubloer 20 20

« Palm ail = 20

= Cinnamon 1

- Caliandra 15
- Grass 5

- Coasnut 33

Mo depredation is provided for iImmature Flantstion.

34.7.3 Consumable Biclogical Assets

Tha fiai valves of firmbear tress is messsead using
Discounted Cash Flow [DCF) mathad taking into opn-
sideration the current market prices of timber applied to
expacted timber content of a tres al matuite

Tha main varsbles in DUF model are as follows:

Mariah s Cammant
Tirmber Estirmated based on physical verification
Cantant of gitth, helght and earsidaring the

grovwith of sach spacies, and factoring in
gll the pravalling stefutory regdstions
erdorced against harvesting of timbar
coupled with the forsstry lan of the
Group

Exompemin
Lizehul life

Estimated bazad on the norrmal [He
span of each spades by factoring in the
forestry plan of tha Group,

Selling Prica  Sefling prices of managed timbar have
besn taken based on marnket price &

industry profaasionel sxpart apinion.

Eréscount rate reflects -the possitle
Fate variationt in the Cath llows and the
risk related to the biclogical assets

374 Livestock

Ltk wra treasinad at theair faie vales legs astimatad
costs 10 dispose with any chenge tharein recogniad in
Siatement of profit or loss and olher cormprebensha
imeoma. Estimated costs 1o disposs indudes all costs that
would ke necessary 1o dispose the assst suth 88 Tampart
cost, commission ete. Fair value of Ivestod |5 detarmined
on yield basis valuation which considers the present value
of reat cash fows expactad 10 ba gararatad throughain
the lacintion lifecyde of the cattle, The expected net.cash
flows are discounted wsing a tisk adjusted discounted rate,

Farming costs such as feading, labour Sosls, pasture
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PRAIMTErENCE, u'ﬂlﬂl'l'lﬁl'jr!.&.rfﬁ'_'!

arg mxpenged a3 inowrad, The
coal of puchas of cattle plus
rarsportation charges are

capitalised as part of lvestady

3.7.5 Non Harvested
Produce Crop on
Bearer Biclogical
Assets

The Company racognites ils
agricuftural produce prics o
harvest separately from |ts besner
plant Such agriculiursl produes
petor b harves! continues to be in
the scope of LEAS 21 Agricuire
and is measured a1 fair value less
cests to sell. Changes in the fair
vislug of such agricultursl produce
i recogrided in profit of loss et
the and of each repading period.

Whan derring the estimated goanti-
ty, the Company limits it

ko one harvasting oyde and the
guantity is asceftained based on

the last diy of the horvest in the
immediately precading oyde: In
order o ascenain the fair valus of
produce growing on trees, S0% of
the astimated oop in that harvesting
cyde iz considensd,

For tha veluation of the prodiucs,
the Cormpafy uses valus of
Lirharvested fresh fruit bundhes
(FFBY af Cil Palrm s messured
using the actual price ised 1o
purchase FFB from out growers
and the velus of the unhanvested
graan leaves is massured using
the bought-leaf rata {current
mionth} less cost of

3.8 Financial Instruments

3.8.1 Recognition and Initial
Measurement
On Initlal recognithen, 5 financal
m3sat is classified as messured at:
asenaftised costar FYTPL

Financial asse1s are not redassified
subsequently Lo their recognition
unless the Group danges its
business madel fior  managing
fimancial mssets, in which casa

all affactad financial assets are
reclassfied on  the first day of the
first raporting perlod follewdng the
change in the business madal

A financial aseet is measured &t
amoriitad cogt if it mests bath of
the following conditiens snd s not
dasignated &z at FYTPL:

# |1z held within & busiress model
whese objective is achimeed by
both collecting contractusl cash
flews and salling financsl assets;
and

® |i5 contraciusl berrms ghee Ass on

spacified dates 1o cash flows
that #re salaly payment of
principal and Interest on the
principal amount cutstanding,

S financisl 59813 not dassified
&5 measured at amortised sost
or PYORCT are mensurad at
FYTEL This indudes all
dasivative financial sssats.

Cininitiasl resegnitien, the Gloup miay
Irrevocably deslgnats & finsnclal sssets
that othenwisd mests the requirements
to be misssred at amorbsed cost o at
FVOCT s at FVTPL if doing 5o
eliminales or significantly reduces an
aceounting mismmatch that would
arherwas ariss,

al Business rmodal sssesmany

The Graup makes sn smessmant
of the abjectives of the business
miacal [nwhich a fimandal assatis
held oz a pertfolio level Bacause this
kst reflects the way the business is
managed and information is
prowided to managemant. The in-
formation considarad incdudes;
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& The stated polides and
abjacthras for the potfolio and
the oparation of these polides In
practice. Thess include whsthar
management's strategy focuses
an aarmng conracial intarest
inoeme, malntalring @ pariculer
interest rate prefile, matching the
duration of the finendsd assats to
the duration of any related
liabilities or expocted cash
outflows or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets

#® How the perfermance of
the porticlio s evaluatad
gnid repored 1o the Groups
managament.

® The risks that affect the
parfarmance of the business
mode| (and the firandal
arsats held within the businsss
meedel) and how those risks are
managed;

#® Thea frequanay wolume and
timing of zales of finandal asse1s
in prior periods, the resson for
such sale and expactation about
futune sales activity

Transfers of finanaal axres 1o
third parties in ransactions thal
do rot qualify for derecognition
are nob sansidered as sales for thes
parpese, consistant with the
Group's contimdng recognition of
the assels,

The Group makes an agsessment of
the abjectives of the business model
inwhieh & finanelsl assat s held 535 3

pertiolio lovel becaise this Bast reflecis the way the business is managed and
information i3 provided to the management. The information consldered incudes:

& Thestated polides and objscthes for the portiolio and the oparation of
those policies in practice, These incude whether management’ strategy
fooumeas on eaming contreciual interest income, mainiairing & partouls
Inberast rate profite, matching  the duration of the financial amets o the
duration of any related labilities or mpected cash outflows or  realising
cash flows through the sale of tha assats

& How the parformance of the portfolio is evalusted and mported 1o the
Groups management.

® The rizks that affect the performance of the business modal [snd the Rranssl
ms3eis hald isithin the business model] and how thess kale are managed,

& The fraquency, volume and timing of sales of irandal assets in prior periods;
the reson for swch sale and expeciation about haure sales activity,

& Trarsfers of financisl asse1s 10 third parties in Fanssciions thet do not guslily
for derecognition are not considered sales for this purposs, consistent with
the Group's continuing recognition of the assets

Finmncial amets  Thase asets are subsequantly measured at firvmliue. Rt

at FVTFL gaing and losses, induding any interest or dividend
ingome, are recognised in profit or loss

Finsnciel mssats  Thase ssiels are subsequently messured at amortzed cost

ot smarilsad using tha sffactive interest mathad,

oSt The amortised cost is reduced by impairment leses, Inter
income: and impairmant are ecognised in profit or loss statem:
Ay gain or loss on deracognition is recognised in prafit or loss

3.8.2 Financial Liabilities

Finandial Liabilities . Classification, subsequent maasuremant and gains
and losses

Finardal liabiities are classified & messured st amortised eost of FVTPL A
Enandal lisbility Is dassified as at FYTPLIf it is dassiffed a3 Held-for-trading, itls
8 derivative or itis designated as sach on initial recognition. Finandal llabilities
st FVTPL are messured at falr velue and net gaine and losses, Induding any
intarest axpensa, ara recagnised in profit or loss. Cther financial lisbilities ars
subsequently measured at amertised cost using effective interest mathed,
Intarast axperse and foralgn sxchange gains and lossas are racognised in
prafit or loss. Ary gein or loss ono derecegnition is also recognised in profit or
lods
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3.8.3 Derecognition position when, and only whan,
|
{a) Financial Assets the Group ourantly has 3 legally
The Group deracagnises a finandal gnforceable right 12 381 off the
$ 2 armswnits and T inends either 1s
ssset when the contractual rights to :
f saftle them on 8 natbass of 1o
the cadh flawa fram the financinl S e
aaset expdra; or it transfars the tights [E.bi“ ﬂm::ht:rn soitle
te raeahk the contractual cash Tows Rty tanecaly
In & transaction in which substantisally 38,5 Impairment - Fi al
sl of the risks snd rewards of .

awirnarstep of the financaal ssset are
transfarrad of in which the Compamy
nefthee transfers nor rataing
subatantisly all of the risks-and
rewards of ownership and it does ot
ratain conlel aof the frangal asser

{b) Fmancial Linbilities

The Group derecognises a finandial
Eabiliny whan i conbrachual
obligations are discharged or
cancelled, o expired. The Group
glzo derecognises o financsl lisbility
when ity terms are modified and the
csh Aows of the modified liability
e substantially different, inwhich
casa & new financial Nebility based
on the modifed térms i recogrisad
at fair value, On desecognitionof a
financial liability, the difference
babween the cending smount
extinguished and the eemidesation
paid (including sny non-cash assets
transfarrad or labilitles ssumed) i
recognized in profit or loss

siatemant

3.8.4 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial
lishilinias are affsetand the

rEl ArmounT preserged in the
consolidated statarmant of frandal

The Group recognises loss
allewsnces for ECLs o

& finarcal ases measured @
amartised cost

# Loss allowances for trada
receivables e always meapred
at ary amount sl ba Ketime
ECLs

The Group assumes that the
erachit risk on 8 financisd esset has
increased significanthy if it is maors
than 30 days past dus.

Tha Group conslders a inandal
atial 1o ba in default when:

® the borrower is uniikely 1o pay
153 eracht abligations 1o the
Group in full, without recourse
by thie Gaougs to actions such &3
raaltsing secutity (f amy is held);
or the finanded ssset s mare
thasn 90 daye past die,

Ufedime ECLS are the ECLS that
reddl farm all possible defaull
wirants over the axpected life of &
finaricial irnstrurment

Presenistion of allowances for
ECL in the statement of financlal

position
Lives allpwances for finenaal asser
massiied At amortised costs are

deducted from the gross catrying
arnaurt of the sszas

Measwremaent of ECLs

ECLs are & probability-weightad
estimate of cradit losses. Credit
lessea are messurad a3 the prasent
walus of all cash shortfalls (Le the
diffefence batween the cath flows
due ba the entity in Bocondanes

with the contract and the cash lows
theat the Group expects o (ecaha)
ECLs are discountad st the affective
intarest rote of the financial asset

Creditimpaired financial asset

Ap sach reporting date, the Group
saseszes whather financlsl ssats
carriad at amortised cost and debit
sourities at FVOC) are cradit-
impaired. A finandial ssset is "cwedit
impaired” when one of more events
tiwat have & detrimental Imges on
thee eatirratad Tuture cash lows of
thwer fimanicial assat coowrad,

Esvidarcs that s financisl sisal
is eradin impained imduwdes the
fellcwing observable data

& Sigrafizant financal  diffisulty of
the Boriower o issuwer,

® A breach of contratt such as a
default ar being more then S0

days past doe;
W It is profrabie that 1he borrewer
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will enter bankriploy of othés
financial decrganisation; ar
# The disappearance &f an acthve
markat for 3 secuity bacause of
financial difficulties
Write-off
For individual customers, the
Group has a policy of writing off the
7534 CAI fyiNg BMOUNt a8 spproved
ey tive Board af Directon based an
histotical axparience of recoverias
of simitar assets Far cofporate
customers, the Group individually
rrakes an msessment with respect
te the timing and amaount of write-
off based on- whather these is a
reasanable expacation of racovery,
Tha Group sxpacts no significant
recowvary fram the amaunt written
off. However, financial assels that
armweitten off could stll be sublect
to inforcemand aciivities in crder to
cormply with the Group's procedures
for recowery of amounts due
Bvidencs of rmpairment includsd &
significant e prolonged dadine in
its fair valos belowits cost

2.8.6 Impairment of Non-
Financial assets

The camying amounts of the
Group's son-inancial sssets; other
than imeniories e reviowed at
aach reporting dats to determins
whiather there is zny Indécation of
impalrment, I any swchindication
exizts, then the asset’s recoverable
armount s estimated.

The recovarabla amount o an
assel of cash-gionarating unit is

the greater of it value inuse and

ies fair value less cons tesell, in
assessEng value in use, the estmated
Fustire cash flows are discounted to
their peosent value ising a pre-tax
discount rate that refleces current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the fisks specfic
to the asset. For the purpose.of
impairment testing, assats that
cannot be testad Indeedduslly ara
grouged together into the smallest
gt of Besets thet genergtes cash
inflenas from continuing use that ane
largely independent of the cash
infiows of other assets or groups of
misets fihe "cash-generating unit, of
G

The Group's coporate aasels do
not ganerate saparate cash inflows.
If there s an indication that a
codporate ssel may be impaired,
then the recovarable amount is
detarrrifed for the COU e which
the e parate assat balangs.

An Impsalrment foss 8 recogrisied
if the carrying srmount of an asset
or its GG axceeds its astimated
recoverable amount. Impairment
Iossas are recognised in profit e
loss, Impairraent loages meognized
In respeat of CGUs are allocatad
gt to educe the camying amolnt
of ary goodwill allocsted to the
urits, and than Lo reducs the
carryving amounts of the Sther assets
in e weit (Company of wnita) on 8
pro rata basls,

Irmpalrmant losses recognised in
price periods are assessed at sach
reparting date for any indications

that the less hes deceased o

na langer exists. An irmpaiment
loss Is revarsad if there has bean
& changs in the estimates used

io determine the recovarable
amound. An impairment lows i
reversed only o the exten that the
Eial’s eadndng amodnt does not
axcedd the carrying amaount that
weould have been determined, nai
of depreciation o amonization,
IF rier impaternent loss had bean

recagrized,

3.9 LUabilities and
Provisions

A provision s fecognised in the
Corsolidated Statement of Finandal
Petition whan the Group hisa
prezent legsl ar construsts
cbligation as a resmst of a past
evant, and It is probable that an
outflow of econgmlz banafits will be
recquired o saitle the obligation. If
the affectis rmatenal, provisions ars
dietedrmined by discounting the
eupected fufure cash fows
at & pratax rabe that reflacs
currant market assessmants of the
time value of money and, whera
appropriate, the risks specific to the
limbdlity.

3.10 Employee Benefit
3.10.1 Defined Contribution
Plans

A defined contribution plan (s a
post employment bonafit plan
under which an entity pays fixed
eanfributions inis & deparate
entity and will have no - legal ar
eeraiructive abligation 1o pey
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hathar smounts, Obligations for
contibutions to defined contribution
parsian plans are recognised asan
ernployes banaSt sxpense in profi
or bogzin the panods during which
senloes are rendered by amployaes.

Ermployees Provident Fund (EPF) /
Estate Statfs Providers Society
{ESPS) / Coplon Planter’s Provident
Sodiety (CFPS)

Thie Groups and amployse
colbactivaly contribute 12% and
IR s pactivedy on the salany of
each employes to tha eadh of tha
Con Erufi n pard,

Employees Trust Fumd [ETF)
Thie Growp conbributes T of tha
salwry of wach amplayes 1o the

Ernplayess” Trust Fund.

3.10.2 Retirement Benefit

Obligations
The ratirement benalit phan sdopted
i ok regquilred undar the Paymant of
Gratuty Act Mo, 12 af 1983 and tha
indfian Repatriate Aot Mo 34 of 1978
1o eligible ermployess. This itam is
grouped under Employes Banafits
in the Statormnit of Financial
Positicn. Provision lor Gratuity on
the Erngleydes of the Compary &
bazed on @0 sciusrial walustion,
usng the Projected Unit Cradin
(FUCY mathad s ecsememinded
by 5ri Larika Accounting Standsds
Mo 17 "Employes Banefits”. The
actumrial valuation was carried out by
a pr ofessionally quabiied liem  of
actuaries, Messar's Actusrial and
Management Consutents (Private)
Limited 25 at 31st March 2024,

Hewevat, acoanding ta the Pewrent of
Gratuity At Mo of 1983, the liabify
far payrmant to an employes arses
only afer the comoletion of Syewrs
contiruad genioes,

Remessuremaris of the net defined
benefis iakdlity, which compromise
actuaral girs and losses, a0 reccg-
rizad imereackately in OCL

Whan berafits of a pian are changed or

whian plas & curtsled the

rasuiting change in benafit that
refate b past senvos ot gEn ar
Ines on curtailment is recogrised
Immediately in profit or lois. The
Group recogreses gaines losses on

the seftlement of a defined benefi
plan when 3 sattlemant coours.

Tra llability 15 not sxternaly furced,

3.11 Inventories
3.11.1 Agricultural Produce har-

vasted from Biological
Bszats

Agrieuttural produse karvastad
from Bicdogical Assets is messurad
b its falr value less cost 1o 58 at
the point of hanvest The firdshed
#rid smrmi-fireah ad invertanias fram
agricultursl produce ars valued by
‘addding the cost of convemnion to the
fuir vadue of agrcultursl produce.

3.11.2 Agricultural Produce after

further processing
Further processed sutput of
Agricuttural Predics i valued st
the lower of cost and estimated

et realizable value, after making
dua gllowances for plsolete snd

slowe meving itams. Met realisable

walan |5 tha estimated salling prics
at which stocks can be sold (n tha
cadinary coorse of business bz tha
astirmated sosts of completion and
eximaied COFtE NecaEsary i0 maxs
the $ale,

3.11.2 Input Material, Con-
sumables and Spares
ialusd 8t sciusl cost on webghied
T

3.12 Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and axsh eguivalents comprise
cuth balances. call deposits, demand
depasils st shor-taim highly liged
Epestmenas raadily cormeartible 1o
Endnn amolints of cash fnd subjsct
1 nsgnifeant dek of dhanges In
il nat of bank cvurdrais that

ara rapayable on demand for the
pupose of the Statament of Cagh
Flows

3.13 Contingent Liabilities

Continganl Liabllities are pdesibla
obltgations tha arise from a past
wnt and wookd b confimmad
only an the ocouwrences o nan-
oturrances of unosrain fufung
ieventy, which afe beyond e
Grouiph cantiol,

3.14 Deferred Income
Government

Grants and Subsidies Goverrerant
granis are rm;q-glﬂnd whiens thera
@ reascnablic assurance thai
the grard will be recaived and all
attached conditions will be complied
with, Whers the grant refaes booan
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assel, It 15 recognised as delerred 3.15.1 Revenue Recognition timing, and uncartainty of
Ineome and relessed to Income in Recnrua 8 magaurad based an ravenue and cash flows are
eiqual armpunts peer the sxpected the corsideration specfind ina affected by sconomic factors

afd fife of the related ssaets.
Whin the grants are ralated to an
expansy item, il is recognised as
ineame ovel the pariod necessany

tomasch the grant on a systematic
bty 1o thoe costs that afe intanded

to compansate

Grants refated 1o Property, Plant

and Equipment other then geants
racaivad for Forestry are initially
deferred and allocatad 1o incame

on @ systormatic basls cver the useful
life of the related Property, Plant and
Equipsnent.

Grants recebved for forestry are
initially deferred and credited 1o
Statemant of Frofic ar Loss and
COther Cormprehensive Income
Immediately the ralated Blocks of
traws ang harvesiod

3.15 Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other

Comprehensive In-
come

Foi the plepose of presentation
af the $tatement of Profit or Loss
srd Cithes Coprgprabanshes [roome,
thie Directors are of the opinion
tht function of expanses method
prezants falrly the dements of

the: Group's performance, and
hence such presentation method is
#dopted in line with the pooisions
of LEAS 1- Praserdation of Finandal
Statements

contract with & omstemer, The Group
racognizes rinvanis whan it transfars
conbrod ohvar a sendice to a Qstamer,

Revanue from the sale of goods

ks measured at the Bl value

of tha consideration received

of receivable, mat of retums

and allowances, trade disgounts

and voluma rebates, Reverus i
rocognised when the Sgnificent risks
and rewards of ownership hase been
rarsferrad 1o the buyer, recovery

of the comsidenation is prabable,

the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated
reliably, s thess iz ne comtinuing
managamant invohament with the
goods

The following spadiic criterisars
wned far the purpase of recognition

of revanue]

The Group revenue prindpally
comperises saly of Palm Ol and Frash
Wilk, Rewvenue is recognised point in
e e the producss see provided.

The Grovip-considers sales snd
dedivary of products a5 one
perfodrnancs obligation and
recognises revenus when it transhers
coftiel td the oustomes,

Chzaggrenation af resenus

SLFRS 15 requires an’ entity ta
disaggregate reverue from contracts
welth custedriers into eatagarhes thet
depict Fotw the naluie, Smount,

3.15.2 Sale of Goods

Ravariue from the sefe of goods
i3 tacognisad when the identified
performance cbligations ae
satisfied ie. the Compady
warafers control gwara good o
gaErvhoes 1o & contract. Revenue 3
measured baged on the
consideration specfiedin
soniract with 8 custormes.

3.15.3 Interest Income

Emtar st incorme 15 recognised a3 it
accrugs in tha Incame statement. For
all linsresal irdtrumants mastured at
smartised oot and intesst Baaring
finandal assets dassified as FVTOC]
tha intarest income Is recorded wsing
the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR
ia: e rate thar axactly discounts the
estimated Fubure cash payments.or
receipts through the expected life of
the finandal etiumeant of & shars
period whers appropaiote, 1o the
net carrying armount of the finandal
amet o linkility For intereat bearing
finandal assets caried at falr value,
interest iz recognised on discounted
cash flow method. Intérest incoms i3
induded under finance intome in
the income staterment,

3.15.4 Gain and Losses on

Disposal
Gaine and losses on dispossl of
an ltem of Property, Plant and
Equipment are daterminad by
sompating the nel sales procseds
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with tha camying amounts of
Fropesty, Flant and Equipment and
which are recognisad within other
opemting income in the Statemeant
of Prafit.or Loss

3.16 Operating Expenses

All expanses inostred inthe day-
rodey oparations of the business
and I malnteséning the propearty,
prant and equipmsnt in a state of
sHidenicy have been dhangedto
the Statemant of Profit or Loss and
Caheer Cornprebermste rcome in
arreing at the profiviloss) for - the
yEaT,

Provasicn has alse been made for
irmpaitment of non-firandal assats,

“dlow-moving stocs. evssgrown
nursanies, sl known liabilities and
doepreciation on property plant and
aquipmant,

3.17 Finance Costs

Finasvce costs cormprise ntesest
expeEnds on extemal borrasings
ard related perty loans and
payrrents mads under cparating
lamas. Borrowing costs that

gre niok directly attribetable to

the scquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying awet are
racagnised in profit of loss using
the effective intarest method.
Paymends made undes operating
lemsns ara recognised in profit or
leda o & stradghi line basds over the
ferm of the loase, Lease incentives
received may be recognised as an
integenl part of the tatal lease
BNpIETES, GWel

tha taerm of tha leasa nol taxable profitar loss, snd

differances relaling 1o indestmants
3.18 Income Tax EW i subsidiaries and jointly contralled

Income Tad sapanss compiizing ardities 1o the axtent thatit is

current and defered . Income prabable that they will not reverse

Lax Bxpense iz rﬁﬂ:lﬂ'l'ﬂﬂ:d:i'h in ‘hl FI:'H&HH! ﬁ.l'l:l.l‘l. n

Suatement of Prafit or Leas and addition, deferred taxis not

Olvar Conpiahanshis Incorms recognesad lu_r faxable tﬂjp-n_ruly
differences arising on the initial

ecEpl 1o the eatent than it relates 1o
itarms recogresed directly b egqulty, in
which case [t s recognésed (nagqulty

3.18.1 Current Taxes
Currant tax expanses for tha
aurant and comparative penods
are measured at the amount palid

recogrition of goodwill

Defarad tax ks meassuwad al the

tax rates that are expected to be
applied (o 1emporary diffarences
when they reverss, besad on the

ot gupected 1o be paysble 10 the :::Z::;ﬁ::&m i

Commizssonar Gensaral of Inland

Revenue on axable inosmea Tor & chelerrad Lax assel s recognized

the respective year of aszesarmen fio warmuted] boon |t tas cradits and

computed in sccordance with the daductible temporany differences,

provisions of the Inland Revenus 1o the wetent that it is probable that

At Mo, 24 of 2017 as amended by future taxable profits will ba

the Inlasd Revencs [amandment) avallable sgairat which they can be

Aet, ModS of 2002 enscted by the uiilised,

reprting dits.

Draferrad tax assats are reviewed ai

3.18.2 Deferred Taxation each reporting date and are reduced

Diaferred taxation i3 recognised tothe extent that itis no langer

using the Balance Sheet liability probabde that the related rax benefit

mathad, in respect of temporary will be reslisad. Daferred tax sssets

differences between the Comying and deferred tax liabilities are offset,

amouris of s:asts and llabilltes for

finandal reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation

if legadly enforceable right exists
1o et off current tax assets against
cutrend tax iabilities and when the

iz defemed taxes relate to the same
Diefesred tanis not recognised for taxable entity and the same takation
the following temporany differences: autharin

the inital recognition of exats o

liakalitiag in & rarsscton that is 3.19 Statement of ':llh
not & businass cambination and Flows

that affects neither accounting ThaStatatneri of Cash Floas
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{afl armounts in Sei Larken Rupaas thousands)

has baen preparad Using the 3.21 Related Party

‘Indirect Maihod®, Interest paid and
Intarest recabad are classified as
oparating cash flows. Dividends
racaived |5 dessified e imaesting
cash Hows while dividend paid and
Govemnment grants received are

Transactions

CHadgaurs has been made in respect
of the transactions in which ane
party hias the ability to contiol o
exarcise significant influsnce: over
tha finaincial and eperating palicies’

whichwill Bssome applicably for
financial pu'l'qdl i:rl:g.lr'lning o ar
after 1 Apeil HI24

Accordingly, the Company has not
applied thess mmendments in

clnzaified =3 Fi:mdng uu.hﬂm .F-n: el cialars of th Btk Iaspctine :luparlng ﬂ-;::;l:lr:rn:.mﬂ
the Durpm-l{n- pm:hmm of the of whaiher or-nota pics iy bsing talargmt& ‘ollowing
Shunameng of Cash Flovs. chaeged. A datailed Refated Party ::__':h :1;“ s r_‘ﬂ::"::?‘::"
3.20 Segmental Reporting Tw::jun ot koot Company's Finandal Statarments.
Segmental information is providad a2
for the different business segments 3,22 Earnings per Share ;
el tha Grﬂm_ Birsiress wnﬁmm ; "m‘ Hm’“-_m
: The Group prasents Eaenings pes or non- current | Amendments to
haz bean deterrmined basad on the ; 1
| 2 i Share (EP%) data for its ordinary LKAS 1).
TR g Reonci Ly U shires. EPS i calculmted by dividing
Group after corsidering the rigk and the profit or loss s tribetsbls to Under the existing LKAS 1 .
rewards of each type of product. ordinary shareholders of the Group raguirerment, companies dassify s
Revenue and Expenditure dirsctly by the weighted average number of inbi:-:l:y s i vhrwn-;h-y g
attributable 1o ach sagmant ordinary shars outstanding during 9% Wie 36 rocomitiona! ot
. e el 1 dafer sertlarment of tha lability
are allocated 1o the respective Pe
eras. Reverue:and Exenditrs for ak least twelve months after
3*23 E‘H"ﬂﬂ“ .ﬁ“ th'-‘ ﬂl]- ond of Ih. rwﬂng mﬂn,d
reed eireetly aitributabls to 5 Hlllﬂl"mﬂn'ﬂtl' )
sagmant are allocated on tha basls AS LG} Tty meriaridrinenis, e
The matesiality of the events Board has remeved the

of their resource wsilization, wherevar
posible, Unallocatad items
esmpiie mainly income soorusd
and axparses incumad at Hosd
effice |eval

Assets and Linbilities dirsctly
attributsble 3 each sagmant

ang plocated 1o the respactive
segrmants Asseis and Uabilities
which are not directly sitributable
to & segmant are alfocated on a
reasonable bais wherever possible,
The actkdties of the segments sre
describad in mote 5 io the Financal
Slatements on pages 181 10 183

sfter the reporting date has bean
considered and sppropriate
adustments and provisions have
baen made in the Consolidated
Finandial Statements whermees
necEssaty,

4. New and Amended

Standards and
Interpretations
The Institute of Charared
Aceauniants of S Lanks has
F=ziad the following emendrmants
te 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards
{SLFRSs/ LEASS)

raguirarnant for s right 1o be
wncenditional and instead, now
reguires that & Hght 1o defer
sattlemant must heve subsiance
and axist ot the end of the
reporting period

« Man-cumrent Liabilitas with
Covemmntis = Ameandm ents 1o
LE&S 1
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Hmhﬁhﬁﬂwﬂmﬁ

= Liemr Lbwhelity drva Sale- ard
Leszabad - Amendrmarts ta
SLFRS 14

- Suppdler Fingnes Afrangemants
= Amendrmants ta LEAS T ahd
SLFRST

- Lack of Exchangeability -
Ampndmams ta LKAS 2

Fuirehar; the nstiuire of Charensd
Apeountarits of S| Lanks hes issusd
the Ballowing naw S Lasks
Acesurting Standeeds |SLFRS: |
LIASsh whiich will bacoma appdicakl e
Foe fimanctal paeiods baginning on o
aftar 15t Apiil 2025 Accardingly. the
Company has natagplied thase
sandands in praparing thess
Finandal Ststsmantis

~SLFRS 51 - Genaral Raquirsments
far Discdosies of Sunatainakility
valated Finsnclal Information

- SLFRS52 - Chrneaba-Halatad
Disclomires
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il amounts in S Lankan Rupess thousands)

5. Segmental analysis by principal activities

The analysis of the performance by the prindpal activities, is s follows

5.1.1 Revenue streams

Mote Greup Compary
Faf thie year ended 21 Manch 24 i) 034 ma
Revenue Tiom conbracts with custorners-sale of goods 512 B3P0F03  B74B041 4847145 7573818
Total Gross Revenus 8320902 8760041 ABET45 757386
5.1.2 Major products
Group Comparsy
Fot the jear ended 31 March 24 23 2024 M3
Rewanue
Palm all & allied prodiosts &, 866,311 TETA251 &BAT 148 TETRATE
Douilry Ferrmingg 1453992 1,194,790 - =
= - BIMS0: 87404 6867145  TSTIRN
Groas profit / (loss)
Falm oil & allied praducts 33432 3706750 3939811 I T43080
LDairy Famm (144841)  (1£8.474) . —
2154591 3538085 3299811 3743089

A Segmeant = & distinguizshable compoment of the grown that Is engege sither in providing product or sendoes (Business
Sagmenis), or in providing products o sanvdces within a particular economic envwironment (geographical sagments), which is
subdect to risks and rewards that sre different from thoss of other sagmants; Segmant infermation Iz presented in respedt of
the Greup’s business. Thara are no distinguishable components to be identified as geegraphical segments for the group:
The business segments are reported based an the Group managerment and reporting structure,

5.1.3 Performance Obligation

infermation sbout the Groups performence obllgaticrs ate surmmar zed s follows

Type of producy! services  Natue and timing of satisfastion of Revenus recognition under SLFRS 15
paricrmance abligarion

Plantation The Company i selling Green Leafto.  Reévenus from sale of other oops sde recognizad at tha
stomaers after placing a-sales arder  point in time when the control of the goods has bean

5ale of plantation and reverwe from tea bs recogrized a1 trangfarred to the austenc generally upon delivery of

protuice the time of dispatching the respective.  tha gods to the location spedfied by the customr and
ordet, the acceptance of the g by the customas.

Dairy farming Customer obiains: the control of Revvaniss From fresh milk is recognized ot the: paint in
Frash Milk after the customer time whan the ‘cantral ef the goods hes been

Fresh Milk ackrowladgement at the dispatch transferred to the customar genarally upon delivery of
paint, the goods to the location spedfied by the customes

arnd ﬁfn nccaptance of the goods by the customar
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ff wrmcsnts in Sri Lankan Rupses thousands)

5.2 Segmental analysis by principal activities - Group

Pl O Dwiry Cither Inter mmgrment Total
scustmenty

For the year ended 31 Mareh 024 2023 2024 @3 @0p4 023 2024 2023 0x el
Rvanug 6,867,185 7573816 1450992 11M750 . - [E3) (565 AIMS03 E78E0M1
Grots profitTios) WAV _1MI0ET (136891 (184.574) - 81421 134330 RISASH 3533085
Othar cpamting incomafja=pansd 71,530 204477 (5130 (42317) nsrg 17304 313 100.98% {1130
Administraive sxpenses I 149 (1059 (M245 (4063 . 1.200 40 (844, 104) {341,087)
Salfing and distribution expenses {146,338 {66,540 3400 111.-“3 AL
Oipesuting prokiion] 2TIRES0 30400 9138 (V5S4 @esST (1e9TE)  BOAS (115 284074 290745
Heart hinance (oot} £ income 187866 B2230  (52.734) (a0l - s AMS WS XM
Profitfflons) bafors fax 2891726 AT 40652 (FORASH) @esT) |1e97M) 80128 o T
Tax aupenies (236847} (73549 (ITREVE) (124000 (43eB) (15729 - ¢ 211700 621,69)
Frafitfloss) lo_the year LASAOTY 2830150 (139240 [(IME56) ESI0ES) (185453  B0.0ES {40y Z3edTEA 233170
Cithaer Coampirahaeitres Inooms
Actuanial keas on mtiemant (A040) (SRO74 (1948 599 . . - < 5008 11593
banslit cbligation
Tix on actustial kst on e ara ™ 1200 . - r - ANs um
retrrmant bensfa obligation
Tom| arher compeshentig w28 RIS STE (LT = % - - eden (@15
upenee

Tertal gcamipes haraie incoms 2845751 ZTEETHE (1405158 RILEST) (E0025  (HG4AR B35 0y 03 LMNREST
demponss) lor the you

_Segment amsah EAXREFD SAMIN LITTOSY JOOTS0D  43LatR  INLUT . - RO CBAMMP
_Sepment labidites AR A0 RS 4000300  7000eA  4ENDR 41307 . - AATLANE 3330 dsl
e pagiraen igrna

Capital axpanciure W14 I  WWDRT  1ENTe 13751 Bian = = BRAA4ES  H10057
Crpreciabceny e e R LT 17, 1ag SR SEAMN 41206 - = FRAa0s - IYRSSD

Amotizstion 18,084 Ko il 7 L] e . 0 12288
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M.Im i 5e Lanken Rupaas thousands)

5.3 Segmental analysis by principal activities - Company

Palm O Cither Total

Fof the yaar snded 31 March 024 2024 2023 2024 2033
Reverue 8,847,145 75738156 i . 6,887,145 7573816
Gress profit 32BN BTAB0EY - - BIWBN 37089
Other Incomalianpense) 71,530 - [R42317) W4T (V0787 (4743700
Ardministrathve sxpended (431,149  [B47.059 - - L N T
Safling and distribution mxpenses {1454, 332 i, 5400 (4,340} (12417 [(150,472) {TR955
_Operating profitfloss) 2733860 3309490 [PALAST)  [BATHZ) 2487203 2842708
Mat finance incoma 157,666 B2230 . - 157,564 B2230
Profittloss) belore tax ZE91.726 3470 [(R46657) WB&TEZ) ZMM5D69 292938
Tam gxpenses 236847) (73567  (A368) (157300 (241215 [SE9.5)
et profitioss) 2854879 28151 (251025  |SO2517) 2408854  2,3354%
Othesr Comprehenslve Incama

Aotugns mmrmmmﬂgum {13,040 77, 074) - - {13,040 {?‘?ﬂﬂ
Tim oo sctantal loss on nebrement benslit cbligation AT 29722 - . 302 s g
Totsl cahar comprehentive sxpans 19, 1248 469,352 - 9, 128) {5,352
Total comprehensive incomatampens) for the year 2645751 ZWBIO  (251025) (502513 23947286 2245287
Segment assets BAPIZI2 8209400 431692  392MAT 8924904 8402137
_Segmant liabilities 2372424 2007000 45,3728 4,07 2417952 2050207
Orither sagmant items

Capital expenditre 261,617 W20 13,752 14,331 265369 40621
Depredation 261,321 267747 55,582 W08 NNG6H0F LIS

Amartigation 16,004 10,731 %0 814 16, 59 11,547
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fall armsounts in 5 Lanksn Rupaas theusands)
& Other income
Girgup Cosmpamy
Foo the year anded 31 March blatn 2024 2021 204 2033
iLoss) profit on  disposal of proparty, plant and egquipmant (13859 aomor [1383% R
Amcatisation of capital grants ! 2,358 7,338 2,358 4358
[Factory rantal 990 EALLY 9,900 2,000,
Rant income 5.581 3 5a8 5,59 &076
Ingame from incesse in et 2ssets value in the Investment 18 - 16707 - 16,527
Profit on sale of gresn leaf A1 5935 26,426 2,935 FBAZE
Loss from maige projects ¥ : - [M&85T)  (128.741)
Impaiment of leass hold right 151 - {88571} - -
RSP Cradit sales 50.15% - S0.15% *
Impaitmant on investment in subsidiary 191 : - 10125 205715
Income fess} from sundey operations 896 (15405 13150 (14083)
61,000 {34837 (1S5528)  (4BRA5)
ey " Company
Far the yoar enmded 31 Manch 2024 2023 a4 I3
6.1 Net from. leaf
Incorme from green leaf sale 146,500 174,491 144,500 174,491
Less : Costs incurrad ongreen lesl opeeation {140, S45) {146,063 {140, 5565 s, Dad)
5635  mam  sess ;A
6.2 Net loss from maize operation
Incgme from maize operstion - 70,393 26439
Less : Cosls inourred on maize operation (217,050 345, 1801
(146,857)  (128,741)
7 Gain / (loss) on changes in fair value of biological assets
Group Compary
Faif 'Hu_rﬂ ercled 11 March MNota 2024 2023 2024 2023
Fair valus (o35} / gain en produce on bear plants 174 (15,259 14455 (15259 14,455
Fair walue gain on Consumable bislogicsl sssats 171 25817 10,482 & i
Fair value gain / (oss) on lvestod: 172 5,431 (157.435) - .
39989 (1I2494) (15,259 14,455
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fall amewnts in 5rl Lankan Bupsas thousands)
8 Net Finance Expense
Lo Campany
For the year ended 31 March Mote Eﬂ_ﬂ ot | A2 $023
(i} Finance costs
__~Exchange |ogs 3,145 H 3145 2
= Intesaat o long team loars 13,448 &0 - 1,880
+ Interest o bank overdras 2.509 5290 310 1,833
+ Intérest on leass liabilities 28 58,537 40,935 53,507 40,893
TE,439 114,195 &1 e £3 B4
iii] Finamce incorms
Anterest Income on related party loan . = 37 402 2875
Anterest income on short-term bank deposits 183,771 138,938 182 428 123,220
183,771 138,938 219,828 128,114
Net firmocs incorme 108,132 22343 157,866 B2.230
9. Profit before income tax
Profit bafore income tax is statad after charging all the axpenses Induding Following,
Greup Compiny
Fiar the il wnded 11 Manch Hate kil i.023 2024 2073
Auditors’ remuneration
- Audiy 2,744 ‘2480 2.240 2,000
« Bt related o] 154 ] 184
- Mo agdit 150 1431 150 AL
Amortization - Right to use of sssets 13 11,537 j2.281 1é, 85 11,547
Dagraciation
< Immigvable leased assets 3 Tz - -
- Amortization Intangble asels 15 11811 7,703 T0ETE £,403
= Property, plam and equipment 14 203,088 194,725 125,487 118,844
« Biological aspets - bearer 179474 196,742 174,940 180,
Dirmctors' nts 14,120 14,352 12,990 13,063

Sl eons 2.1 L3797 1213311 1275597 L3110
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(el amgunts in S Lankan Ripsss thousands)

9.1 Staff costs
Giaup Compay
For ﬁ-:.irﬁdaﬂ Mach Mote 2024 2023 2024 2023
Wages and salasies 1,065,534 Pda R0 1,008,642 ER0L 518
Dafinad contribution plan 134,453 A0 A0 129,471 132 485
Cefined benefit plan & 82210 45739 71,484 39726
Workers' profit share Bonus A5, 000 B0.000 45,000 £0.000
1347197 120331 1275507 1143110
10 Income tax expenses
Group Compary
Far the year anded 31 March Mote L i 04 3
Incoma Tax charga for the yaat 101 252619 113,537 252,419 108 370
Owvar prevision with respect of prise year {B.713) (13,373 {5.034) 3373
Crafarmed tad recognised In the income statamant 21 177 504 oy e {8300 404 300
Teoxes included in sparemean of profit fleas 421,110 S21 .65 141._21'5 S-E'E'L_Ejli
Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income: (4,305 (F2.7) (2712 (27722
Taxes inclided in 1013l comprehamsae income 4 &, 85 AR TTE 237,303 L8R 51T

Az par the Inland Revanue (Amandment) Act Mo, 45 of 2022, Proficfrom the business of "Agra Farming® will continue to be
eoempt from income fax wp to 202324 under the Infand Rewanua (Bmandment) Act Mo 45 of 2022

A et Indand Revenue (Bmendmient) St Mo 45 of 2002 the Company has calculated ite profits from both “Agro processing®
and "lrvestmant Incorne® for the year ended 318t Meech 2024, applying the tex rate of 30%.

Watzwals Disiry Limited enjoys & tia exemption period of fve years from the year in which the Company commeénces to make
profits o any yesr of astessinent not laler than two years rackoned from the date of commencement of commerdal
opefations whichéver @ eailier, under section 1T} of the Board of Ircestrnent of S Lanks, Lew Moo 4 of 1978 and in

acoos dance with the prosion of the Inland Revenus Act Mo, 28 of 2017,

After the expiration of the 3 exemption period, the profib and income of the Company shall be dharged a1 tha rate of
nwanty parcent (2006) for ary year of axsessrment immediately suctesding the laar date of the e exsmption perod during
which tha profit and Income of the entity s swmpted from incoms tac The Company |5 entitled for tax exemption period
ooly up to 20242024 az par the agreement anterad with Board of rvestmant of 5n Lanka.
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{all amounts in S Lankan Rupsss thousands)

10.1 Reconciliation of accounting profit to income tax

Graup i iy
Fot the year andad 31 Marnch i) i i FaLrs]
Prodit befora taxation 2785886 Z9534EH 26450065 2 M98
Lets : Income from other sources (239,115) CITRNRE  (235.320) {160,385
Add | Disallowable Expanses. 9a3.24% &7E,824 SR 411,791
Leds - Allowable Experaes (59, 147) (552485 {397, 325) (257,130
Acdusted Profit for the year 3050938 2P003Ms ZTRE0Sd 2P19.407
Add ! Income frem other sounces 235,30 174,525 235320 140,385
Total Statutory/ Taxable Income 3286258 307784 216276 3079792
Less; Setoff agsinst taxable incornme {44, 165) [11, 126 » .
Lass: Statutory/ Tawsble i Far BT 40, a7 T4 158
Total Statutary/Taxsble Income-Agio processing B47,063 80 B2 BAZ D63 42 638
Jnoome Tax Expenss
Taw at 145 - I ‘ 30,784
Tax at 24% - 21,776 - 1RATF
T at 0% 2[9 W75 19 5905
52619 113,537 ZE52 519 108,370
10.2 Group Accumulated Tax Losses
GROUP

Az mt 11 March ] 2073
Blatance azar 150 Al 1,413,775 1,423,452
Adgustment in respect of priar year 3299 1,143
Lesses for the year - &5
Losses sat-aff during the year p44, 143} [11,52&)

1,372,909 1413775
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fall amounts in 5 Lanken Rupess thowsends)

11 Earnings per share

Basic sarnings pet share hes been cafoulated by dividing the peofit for the yew stributable to sadinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted moerage number of ordinary shares sutstanding during the yemt.

Group Company
Far the yaar ended 31 Marnch 2024 2023 2024 2073
Caleulation of Earnings per share
Met profit stirbutable to-shateholders 2358770 23442 2403854 2335479
Weighted average number of ordinary
Shares in ssue (thousands) 203,309 303,309 203.309 203,309
Basic eamings per share [LKR) 11.80 11.63 11,82 11,47
11.1 Diluted earnings per share

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares a3 at 31 March 3028 and there hinve been no transactions involing ardinary
shares or patential ardinary shares a3 al the reportng das which would requite ressatemant of sarmngs per shere,

12 Dividends per share
Giraup and Company

For the jear gnaled 31 Manch H_IH 2033
Calculation of dividend per share

Fimal deviciand

Final dividend patd LKR 4.00 (2023-LKR 8} 815232 1526447

Interim dhddend

Intessm dividend paid LER 8.00 (2024-LER &) 1436 472 1,219,852

24N, 704  ZBALIN
Muambrer of ordinary shames (thousand) 203,309 203,305

Ciwvidend padd per share |LER} 12.00 14,00
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[l aumourts in S Lanken Rupseas thowsands)

13 Right to use of assets

g at 31 March Group Comparmy
2024 203 2024 2033
Cost
Balanced asat 1 April 3k, 349 248 807 361,684 M1509
Remeasurarment of leass lishilites 133,511 20,175 133,511 20,175
Adjustmants : (33 : :
SO0, a0 b &05, 195 51684
Accurmulated amortisation
Az at 1 April 123,073 110812 194,411 102 844
Charge for thie year i7.53r 12261 16,896 11,547
140,610 123003 131,307 114411
Carrying valus as at 315t March ISB50 M3 BEIEBE M7 ITD

The leases of JEDB/SLSPC sanates handed over to the Company Tor & perdod of 53 yean have all been executed. The
leasahald rights 1o the land on all thess estates have been tshen Into the books of the Company s at 18- Juna 1952
Immedintaly aftar formation of the Comparny. The bare land has been recorded at the value established for each land
by valuation specialist, Mr, [ B, Widramasinghe, just prior 13 the fermation of the Company,

The Geoup kas applied SLFRS-16 for leasehold astety racorded in the linandal statlerments

14 Property, Plant and Equipment
Az ot 31 karch Hets Giroap Company
= o < S S -}
mmm'ﬂuulmm?nﬂqwmlma[qﬂmﬂuﬂlm 1411 6 - 34 =
14.1.2
Property, plant and equipment W21 & 2555913 2483278 1212638 1135489
a2

2555913 2483318 1,212,638 1,139,489
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fall ameurts in B Lankan Rupaas theussnds)

14.1.1 Immovable estate assets on lease - Group

improvernents Cther Roads and Water Bulldings Minkhydro Machinery Tatal
to land wasted  beidges supply Pt
AvaEy plant
Cost
Az ot 1 Apwil 2052 1,135 1,201 5 Be 25094 1,043 23,28 A2 574
As ot | Apeil 2023 1,135 1,201 ] By 35004 1,42 23208 &2 574
A st 3lat Mandh 302 1,135 1.201 5 ay 35494 1,042 23,208 &2,574
Accurmulated amortisation
Az et Aprl 2022 1,135 43 B a7 35854 1,04z 23208 &1,754
Charge for the yesr 10 72 - a . i Jaz
Azat 31 March 2023 1,135 1,185 5 By 3580 1,042 23208 A25W
As at 1 Apeil 2023 1,135 1,165 & By A58 1.042 23,208 a2, 534
Charge for the year . E" - . - . a4
As at 3t barch 2024 1,135 1.2 ! i 25,074 e J3XdE 62,574
Met Corrying value
A ait 31s0 basch 2004 . s - . . r
Az at 31 March 2023 - £ - - - 24

{8) Aasats in-eeates that are held undar leszehold right te use have baen taken in o boaks of the Compary relrsspactively
from 18 June 1992 For thes punpeoss the Board of Directors of the Company decided st its meating on 8 March 1995 that
those essets would be taken et their book value as they sppesred In the books of the JEOB / 5LSPC, on the day
immadiataly praceding the date of formation of the Company,
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14.1.2 Immovable estate assets on lease - Company

| riprovemants: Oither ‘ater Buldings Madchineny Tatal
o lwnd Bl spply
wseaty

Cost
M5 at 1 Apel 222 1,135 1,088 J392 23163 BREAT
A5 at 1 gl 2023 1,135 1,088 BY. 33392 23163 SEEAT
Az-at 31 March 2024 1,135 1,088 By 3w 2363 5RAST
Accumulsted amartization
B at 1Apal 3 1,125 s L] 3319 23183 57 B85
Charge for the year 1] 12 - - - 782
Agat 31 March 2023 1,135 1,058 L = £3163 58557
A it 1 Apeil 2023 1,135 1,088 BF 33192 #3163 A48T
Charge for tha year - - - - - -
Aacat 31 Warch 2024 1.135 1,088 iy 33awe 23163 BEasT
Nat Carrying value
Ag At 31 March 2024 - .

Mg st 31 March 2053 . ]

lal Assets In estates that are held under leasehold dght to use heve bean taken in to books of the Company retreipacthaly
from 18 Jure 1992, For this purposa the Board of Directors of the Company decided at lts mesting on B March 1995 that
those assets would be taken at their book value as they appeared In the boois of the JECB / SLSPC, on the day
immedistely preceding the date of fermation of the Company,
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(ol avroiants in Sei Lankan Rupass thovsanda)

14.2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment . Group

Land Bulldings Motw ~ Padend Epiomest Compuiles Fientee  Othen Copital Total

wiidm  machinery o weurh in

H: pogEn

Lost

L) Apl HUI2 - 1522 JARE01 1R AM  TMIE 15608 163 XA f2 10928 J9TAH
Agichitions during the year 166,087 8117 11304 451 2082 4792 W0AT AN S0899  3SA 06
Transhars cluring tha yeat 119,087 . . - . . - {119,087} -
: - (4175) = Q85 G4 G40 s LT G5.600h
Az a3 Manch 2023 166,087 1I0AFET 356637 ANEXS 1301 XM 3ATHY FHERY SR TIICAT
s a1 Apil 2023 164047 1700907 JSAATT AJVAZ95  1I3S0Y 20001 JATI0 JMSR3  M9sE  I95RE
Adifigns charing thavent . TEEE IAIS W0 13y s3% S183_ 29.560

A ot} Apil 22 23,337 254316 &A1 6LA11 10406 13438 50384 1,255 893
Charge for the vear MAZe0 do0FE  TAATT 127 8T 4NS 15M - 17K
Dispomals mada during the year : =318 = [t4ss {17 32T x - |
: ZEOAZE JOON50 BT TRI00 13102 14280 8507 1442554
A ar 1 Apil 2003 - JOOATS IO 4ERTS ) 1282 66007 - 1L84p55d
Charge for the year - SA9S a3TEs T061 12306 3938 4T 153 - X8068
Disposals made duingtheysar . (58] [F2,151) - - - - . - 58
A at 31 March 2004 - 3B INTEN 74020 GO60A 14050 17741 EZM 1420504
Nut carrymng vabue

g at 31 March 2064 166047 14TPIFY M0SA4S  4ABDSL B0 943 2607 JOAMS9 42877 JRES 913

Asar 3 Marchg02d  IGA0AY VARIOOR SGATT 3T

¥ L
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Motes to the financial statements [contd)
[l avraimds bn S Larkan Rusass thousamds)

14.2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment - Company

land Beldegs Mot Pasend Eapresd Compuler  Funites  Othes  Capltd ol
vphicks  machingry work

L] "
fungn i ]
Lot
As ) Al 2022 « JELERS JOFOEM 9IHSS4  3R159 1AEA1 1905% SO345 SH4Ad (T EIBJIS
Additions during tha yaar 166042 4060 11004 - 5189 4792 9483 14447 PE08 NSTOS
_Transfar during the year = 119087 - . - - ; - (119,087) -
LDispoaals mads during the yaat - - [L438) - - (M) - - = [RETH
Lo N March 2003 164047 S0G033 11554 IR 2l B -3 LA I < E N A LA

As 31 31 March 2024

_Accumulated depreciation

Az ar 1 Apeil 2007 - BB f 1 ¥ 7 31061 k

Chargs lor the yaar - 12800 43410 G290 03084  2As0 293 0 1583 P ! 1
Dispogals magks dyring tha yoar = S = - (%7 = = BN
L n il March X003 - 1025 247045 SPOTEE PR3 11500 Q0N  32ddd = 10Narr
A et Al 20 = _1d L il 2R OS2kl . 018
Chardgs for the yaac S . R & ARE 2807 e | LT - 125587
Dpcsals madke during the year = ean 2FEIs - = i = : - (25138
A= a1 31 March 204 - NIRSM . s AsS STRNNE 3R 14ATT 127E 42mE « 1104204

14.2.3 The gross ceerying values of fully dapreciatad proparty plant and squipment as at 31 Marcgh 2024 are a5 follows

Gmup Carmpamy
Az at 31 March 2024 2023 2024 2023
Mator vehides 269,892 245 354 259,892 245,354
Plant ared machinary &17.618 41471 &17, 418 ST AT
Eqpupment 31,450 285N 31,450 28531
Compuer 12,825 11,840 12,826 11,640
Fumiturs and fi tings 11,053 10,048 11,053 10,08
Cithars 8,580 580 8,580 8,530

951,419  BASTOE 951,419 845,704

14.2.4 Capital Work in Progress
Tha coat of mosmplatad projects a1 ot 31 March 200 ars mduded in the cspitl work in pesgred incurad Tor Palen ol mill facioey
davalapments and call shed deslopments.
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MNotes to the financial statements (contd)
{8l arnounts i Sr Larkan Rupeas thousands)

15 Intangible assets

Greup Company
i ot 31 March 024 forFi ] 2024 2073
Capital  Sofrests  Leasshold Toal Totdl  Capital Software Tital ol
Work in rigiht Work In
progee progress
Cost
A mr 1 Apeil 42409 44029  BEATY 1710 EREFA 42408 34 T4 TR AED RIAES
Additions during the year 12517 & - 12517 V5535 12517 - 12517 26,064
Transters during the year [5d,628) 54,426 - . - [S4.626) S4.6286 . -
Wiite off during the yese ; - (B8A671) [BE.ATY) - . , :
300 98,455 - GEPSS 175,109 00 93T 91,867 79150
Accurmulated smortization)| mpasrment
A at 1 Api| - 001 BRATY 1EIATZ  NZE - 33382 3338 979
Amartization duln'g e ' esar - 11,81 = 11,81 7,703 - WETs 10378 & 403
Write off dufing the year - - (BEATY) mesTY) BBsTY - - - -
= SO812 - 50812 VX A2 - A3455 435658 33342
Met camying value as at 31 March 300 47,843 . 48143 47437 300 47709 48009 45748

15.1 The Growp has written off leasehold right acquired from Maoragoda Agra Sarvices (Pa) Lid during the yéar ended
a1 Mianch 20,
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Notes to the financial statements (contd)

{all amounts i Sri Lankan Rupeas thousands)
16 Bearer Biological Assets
As st 31 Manch 024 2023
Ol paim  Rubbar Tea Cithers Total Od paim  Pubber Tea Chbars Tatal
Group
O loase (Mote 161} - Bbsd . : - A - kD

trmeaemenmsaher loriaton ol 1957835 S45R3 185709 241387 2409014 213085 SRl 154347 007 25520H
tha CompasTy [Hote 16,3}

1967835 54783 156573 INIW R4T2OT8 21308% 08 160381 250N 256272

Az at 31 Manch fryeF L] 2623

Ol padm  Rubber Tan Others Total Ol palm Rubber Tea Cithars Total
Company
O hesss [Nte 16,1) : . - : 3 = ; 2 i

Erasitmants afer lormabon of 1987 RIS SAPRT 123274 FEAST 2374889 2, T30 s E_'i','ﬂﬁ 12007 H0ITE lﬂ‘lﬁ,?ﬂ
tha Company [Mote 16.2)

1967835 S4EE WR3214 WS 2a3Ta489 L1308m SR MR A0 25153

16.1 On lease
Aa w31 March FEA 203

.ELE‘“‘ Rubler 'I'iji Cithers Total Ol palm  Bubsber Tas bers Tatal
Group
Cost
Asarl Apnd 3 b7 R 3Te 33388 - MaR431 ey 9RO 3R O .
Asat 31 Karch F1667 6374 22388 LI L Jh AT 95 TS SRR L 149431
Amoartization
Ssatl Aprd [31.667) (95.375) {1874 - asann  (3esn @oire) (W0n - [145.245)
Arvaartization for the year . - [150) . {154) : « (173 i (72
B a1 31 March : A 4 : ; E
[l Cantying Arniasnl 3564 3844 # 4,004 4
A st 31 March 20024 2023
Company
Cast
A3 .01 1 Aprd Fb6T  ¥5374  90.1B5 137 128 IAAT 95 3Th B0 18 - 13_1'&_
Az 31 31 March 31687 95378 10,185 - 137338 N7 YEITe 1008 - larza
_Aumortieation .
Asar Aprd [H.44T) 95374 {10,185 . {1z ot T
Al izaticen fofr the year - - - - - - - | LEE - {7
Aa a3t March B1667) §5378 (085 2 - (13720W) (05 (PS37) (10,163) O 1
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{ail amedirts in S Lankamn Rupass thoias neds)

16.2 Investments after Formation of the Company

Gaig Company
Ag g8 31 March 2024 2024 2023
Jmmature plantstions (Mote 152 1) 157 827 140,934 158,758 141,867
Mature plantations (Mote 16.2.2) 22361287 2410049 2215731 2342212
Grewing Crog Nurserias [Nots 14.2.3) 11,173 11,173
ZA19.114 2549959 2374489 22515950

16.2.1 Immature plantations

204 2033
il pabm  Rubber Tea ihers Totsl Od pakm  Rubber Ten Oihers Tatal
Group
Cost
Asan 1Apdd - 29795 11140 140934 AP T B L 1
JAdditona during the year - 4383 43000 47350 17,140 - TERE 1805 S50
Tranglary b maturg: plantatgng - «  [A0AEY  30A5T (10029 (11185 (F1a9  [(1EaE
dufing the yes -
As at 31 March = - 34138 123489 157 A7 WIS 1114 140934
Company
Cost
Az at 1 Ap . POTES  11FOTZ 140 8A7 BLISe  110eS 11900 1091%w 0S40
Adkditora during he xemt e AR 00T 47550 12,140 Bkl FJ
Traradars b0 abure plan o - (30459 (0457 (100354 (11,765 - 89 (116654
dhuring The year
Ap st 31 hiarch - 34,938 1244 15875 - - RIS N2aTE 141857
16.2.2 Mature plantations
204 0E3

Qi paim Rubber Tea Cihem Total t_':ll-l=lm Aubber Ten  Others Total
Group
Cost
Aaar 1 Aprid 3355584 138071 S49ES VEISAT 2915103 J RSB 1R MVBsT 1edsdd . 3 T0aT43
oo - _ . : 708 708
Timrafiar i charinay thas year - - 3hAa8e .59 100294 LA - faew 118,654
Az a3 31 Manch IFEESE 128071 2M081 212046 30M5SE2 IISESEA 128071 M9BA1 181587 AMSH0G
Accumilsted Depredatian
Azat 1 Ap (1. Z24.728) (BAO73) (122.289) (BB.B64) (1.5DAP5H) (10614669 (ST344) [114286) s7.085) [1,308.384)
Charges lor tha yesr 183.021] (5715 (5001} {5584 (1PREDY)  (16%.06T) 4,79 [ro03y @1 (9AS5TH
Az at It March (1307749)  (FLTAE) (128290) (F4A48) (1ABA0E (1234728 (0073 [121209) (O] [1504954)

Mt Carmnng Armaunt 1967835 54243 121,671 117598 2241287

2,130 856 BRNIE  13A5T2  WRTE. LAVONAG
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MNotes to the financial statements (contd)

(il arnedings in Sri Lankan Rupaas thousands)
024 s

Cill paiim  Rubsbar Taa Dikbera Total Ol palm  Hubler Tes Orthars Tistal
Company
Cost
A 6t b Apeil B3SS6R4 WEE0TY 1SAGA3  970R4 ST403ER  JDS5068 116502 15ESM3- BOEN X810
ARttt i 708 &0
Tranghes in during the yesr - 30,459 455  100.3e 11148 = TAEF 110454
Bz at 1 Manch SISS684 126071 1SA043 128193 RI0 O 3FS5504 12BON 1SEM3 ST AMGaR
Azcumulated Dapraciation
As o 1 Apal 224038 (68073 (84714 (20600 [1378,0300 (10416000 (s3.34d) (59528 (134100 (1197940
Chaegs for the year [e3021) B G157 (05T [(Trew40)  (sa00% (473 EAR) (TARE (18417
Aot 31 Mareh (30774 (F3788) {69.067) {3664 50) [1224726) {68073) (sATVe) {2060 (1378120
Pt Carnging Amount 1967 R3S GA D AR0FG PO EIT 221573 2130854 590 WIT O TAN 23 N2
16.2.3 Growing Crop Nurseries

Grown Conmpsarny

#As at 31 March 2024 k] 04 23
Asat 1 Apdl 11,173 11,528 11,173 11928
Tranafes during the year (11,973 [755) (11,173 [F55)
Ag ot 31 Masch - 11,173 - 1,173

) Irvestmants in bearer plants sincs tha formation of the Compary have bebn dassified &3 shown sbove and mainly
ircludfas taa end drmamen plantatiors Boearer plants are steted st cost less accumiudeted depreciation and impairment In
necordance with LIEAS 16 Property, plant & equipmant.

i} The immatwe plants are dessified a8 mature plants whan they afe ready for commesdal hanvesting.
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(o avricunts in Sri Lankan Rupess thoussnds)

17 Biological assets

17.1 Consumable biological assets- Group

LT Rl Hnﬂ; Mature Total
plantations

Cost/Fair value

A3 ot 31 March 2027 33,783 33,783

Gain on tair value less cost to sell 10,484 10,465

As st 31 Maech 2023 44 269 44765

Gain on fait value less cost to sell 25817 25817

As ot 31 March 2024 70,084 70,085

17.1.1 Measuremaent of Fair value

The valuation of consumable biclogice! assets was camied by Mr. Wesrasinghe Chandrasena, an independent
Incorporated Valustion Surseyor, using Discounted Cash Flows [DEF) method. The Valuation Report dated 31st March
2024 has been prepared based on the physically werifiad - timberstatistics provided by the Group:

Tha futura cash fows are determined by refarence 1o current tmber prices

a) Fair Value hierarchy
The fair value measurement for the donsumable biclogical sdsats has been categorized a3 Leval 3 fair value based on the

Empuits 1o the valuation techmigque wed.

b) Level 3 fair Value
Breskcdown of total gairg and losses recognized in respect of Level 3 fair value of comumable biclogics! assns,

Greup
A gt ¥ March 2udd 023
Cain included In Prafit or lesa fer the year 25817 10,484

Tatal Gain ey 10,4845
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{ell ammouets in S Lanksn Rupess thousands)

{t] Vsluation techniques and significant wnobssrvable input
Following table shows the valuation techriques used In measuring Level 3 fair value of comumable Bclogicd asses aswall as
the significant unobsenable inputs wed fod he vialuation a5 ot 31sn March 2024,

Typa Significant Unobesrable npat Intar. relat innahin betwan kay
urobaeruable mpats and {air value
s R E et
Standing imber  Discourded cash flow Datesrnination of Timbar Contant The astimated fal value st the tima
Standing tmber  The valustion medel Timber tress in Inter-crop aess and ﬂ'mm“‘mf“? e g
oldar than 4 corsidary pressnt valus pure orop sfens haee Been identifisd variables,
yEare. of future net cash fows fiald-wize and spices ware |dentitied
expected to be generated  and harvestable tuss - the sstimated Umber contant (The
by the plantation from the wers sepacated, according (o thelr  pigker the wlume, the highet the
tmber content of reanaged  awarage githoand estbmated age. Fair valese)
tmber plation on atres:  Timbér rees thet have not come
per.tree bass - 1 to s harvestable size are valyed - the estimated timber prices per
working out the period that would  Sublcmeter (The higher the price
Bint o i e taka foi thoss rees 1o grow up to & PEr cu. fL, the highes the fair vatus)
discounted using a risk- anestable Hre. - the estimatad selling ralatsd costs
ﬁ;" Eﬁ% Detesminttion of Price of Timber t:::r: ::::ur:;md costs, tha
Following factors bive been  Tigas have baen valued as pes
ek bt o vy et e o
thi rotation padcd, the kighss the
= Th B quid niature of Tha avarage pices logs srwn imber kalr valise)
planiations prior o matunty o5 the populer tmbar fraders In S

- & tmeck; of market evidance
a9 to the valus of biglagicel

assers throunh their |ife cyde

- Risk ralations (o dhsaesey
wnd fire alecting the
bicdogleal assata
sAdoption of conservative
valumtlon approach

Lanka,
in this sxarciss, Bliewing factars
Iive been taloan inlo condderation

a) Cost of ebtaining spproval of
falling

b Cont of falling snd cutting into
Iﬂm:

o) Cont of transpartation,

= the risk- gd|used dissount rals,
(The highes the discount rate, the
lemser the fair volus|

199
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Notes to the financial statements (contd)
fall amawnts in Sri Lankan fupess thousands)

[r " & T e e e e e — mam e

Type ‘Waluation technique used Eqrifimnt Unobsenaible Inputs Intanrefationship betweon key
unabasenabie npuis and fair valus
s L Tl
d] Sewing cost
) Coft of sale

fl Esclusian of trees located
restricted area specialivad in tha
circular Mo, 2001900 dated on &
Navernber 2019 issued by Ministry
of Planiastien industries,

Price range par o ft. is KR 350
te LICR 1000Y- {2023 LKR 350/- to
LER 10005

Risk-adjuated discount rate,

2004 - 17.4% (2021 - 24 5%),

17.1.2 Sensitivity m

Sansitivity varistion on sales price

Values as ing in the statement of fnandal postion are
mldwm :lnglrswllh regard to the mp;iuln prices Az £ i
spplied. Simulations mads for timbser show that an inssate or Tirrikser 3077 70,088 17025
decremse by 10% of the estimated future selling price has the Ttal S3077  T008s TINS5
Following effect on the net present value of biglogical asers:

Sensitivity variation on discount rate

Walues a3 -appearing in the statement of financal positon ae 1%, Eﬁ; 1%
sergitive 1o changes of the discount rate applied. Simulations mads m
for timbar show that an Increase or decressa by 1% of the astimated . :
future discount rate has the following affect on the net prasent value Total 7255 006 oTAL

of biclogical assets:
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Notes to the financial statements (contd)

{all armourts in 5 Lankan Rupsas thousands)

17.2 Biological assets - Livestock Group

Livestock s messured on inital recognition st As at Masch 2024 2023
gach reporting date at its falr valuss less paing of Ax T Apil 893,071 43,200
sale costs. Fair value of lvestock is determined at Cisposal made during the year (&3, 57 BN
the bast avallsble sstimates for Tvastosk with Additions during the yea S0, 205 165,176
similar atbribastos. Ay gain or loss arising on ':"lvll"tﬂﬂ in fair value less cost 1o asll 29,431 (157, 435)
imitral fecognition of hestock ot fair value less

eatimated: polnt of sale costs and from a change Akt 31 March 1,145,580 EEH‘:.U_?.II_

im fair value |ess estimated point of sale costs i

mduded in stetamant of incsme in the pudi:-d in

which it arises,

B at 31 anch 2004 livestods comprised 1732 cattle 023 - 1740 cadtle)

17.2.1 Valustion technigues and shgnificant unobservable input
Following table shaws the valuation technigues wsed in maasuring Level 3 fair value of bearer biolcgical asses livestock as
wall a5 the significant unobservable Inputs Gsed for the valuatien as-at 315t March 2024,

Typs Vakustion technigue uted Signilicans Unabmsaable Inputs I r-relatcrhip beteeman key
uncbserable inputs and Tair
valus s ment

Livestock Cesoounited cash flow Cratermimation of ssling price.

Livestock comprises  The valustion model coraider  Selling price hes been datesrmined Thea esttmated falr valus

cattin present value of futune mat basad on the rarket prices. would Incrowie | (dooease)

cath flows expected tobe - the estimated milkdng
acraied By tha cxtih Beied Datermination of cost per cow plicesini highar ! fowi)
on lactation.wite annual Cost par cow has baen determinad - the astimated yiald par
milkirig averages and costs.  based on the adjusted cost doring the  cow waere higher /
inaurred, YREE (omwer]
Expacted cazh flows are Diatermination of dssaunt factar £ih (eaclliie SR
discounted using o risk- ruts wyes bighte / fovie)
adjusted discount rate of Rigk adjustad discount rage of 18.75%
|a_7“mg3-_3&_|m Wmtﬂﬂ}huhmuuh*h

valuation,

Dratermination af yield

Wield has bean detarminad basad

on the sctusl milk produwsticn in
each lactation,
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fall amsurds in 5o Lankan Rupaas theuisand's)

17.2.2 Sensitivity Analysis
The faif value measurerments af Livestad: have baen catergormsd an Level 3 fais values based an assumplicn,

Sensitivity Analysk

Sensitivity variation on sales price

Values a3 appearing in the statement of financial pasition we semsithee to price changes with regird 1o the avarage sales
prices applied Smulations made for livestodk show that an increxe o deceas by 10% of the estimated fulure sslling prics
has the following affect on the falr walue of biclogical asvets:

0% 2024 +10%

LER LR LER
Livestock SyiSEY 1145569 1807588
Tatal £3589 1165589 1807588

Sensitivity variation on cost

Values as sppearing in the statement of finandal position afe sersitive Lo cost changes with regard 1o the average
cont applied. Simulations made for lvesod: shew that an inceass o dmmh}l 10% of the astimated fure cozt
has the following afect on the falr value of biological sssets:

Sl 2024 +10%

LER LER LER

Livestock 708032 1.185.589 &, 104
Total 1,705,032 1,165.58% digd, 144

Sensitivity variation on discount rate
Values a5 appeating in the Sttement of Financial Positien are sensitve to changes of the disctunt rate applisd, Simulations
rrinde for livesoo show thes an ineme o decresse by 1% of the estimated futwe diacsunt rma hes the BBowing afect on

L e e e LA,

1'% 20 +1%
LER LER LER
Livegtoek L2407 1165580 1139482
Tobal LIF2867 1,185,569 1, 139462

Sensitivity varistion on yield

Valuses 33 sppesing in the Sttement of Financisl Position aresensitive to changes of milk yield rate. Simulations made for
livestodk show that an increase o decrease by 156 -of the estmmed future yield rare has the {ollowing effect on the fair value of
Edological assats:

1% 202 + 15
LER LER LKR
Livestock 10714628 1965589 1,260,156

Totwl 1071638 1165589 1,280,155
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fall amouwnts in Sri Lankan Rupess thousands)

17.3 The Group is exposed to the following risks relating to its agricultural activities.

Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group i sibject to laws and regulations in 5r Lanka. The Group has established environmantal polides and procediures
airned at compliance with |ocal erminonmental and other lews. Management parforms regular reviews to identify emvironmantal
risks and to ensure that the systems In place are adeguate 1o manage those risks

Supply and demand risk

Thie (Geou 18 sxpozad Lo hiaks seising from luctustiong in the pelos and sades valurms af mile Whean pogsible the Graup
marges this rigk by aligring its milk welume to market supply and demand, Managemant pedforms regulas industry trand
anehEis to answe that tha Group pricmg structes i In line with the markst and to ersure that projected melk volumeas are
consEstant with the expacted damand

Climate change and other risks

The Geougp's timber plantations a8 seposad to the risk of demags from eimstic changes, dizesses, forest fses and other
raatursl fosces and lhastock sis eaposed 1o the risk of disegses. The Group has sxtanshis procasses i placs simed st
maonitating snd miligating those i, induding reguler forest heslth imspections, regulsr visit by regional vetetinary
surgecn appointed by government, industry pest and disease sunmeys, in house herd mansger and veleinary senice

17.4 Biological assets
Biological assets-Produce on bearer plants
Ky Campary
Al 31 March 2024 i ] 2024 M
A ot 1Al a6, 124 7141 86,126 THETY
Change in fair valus (15259 14 455 (15,259 14,455
70,867 865,136 70,867 86,126

Thevoluma of preduce growing on baanes plants are measwed using the estimatad cop of the last hanesting cyde of the
e 88 Tallaws,

Tea- Three days oop (50% of & days oyde], Ol palm - five days crop {309 of 10 days opcle)

Froducs that grows on mature bearsr plantations ae messured a3 feir value less cost 1o sell. The value afthe
unharvasted green loaves ismeaswed wsing the Tes commissioner's inmida for bought leaf and the value of
unharvastad frash fngt bunches (FFB} of Cil Palm is messured wsing the sctusl prics usad to purchase FFE from
oul growers,



204 \WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC » ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024
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(d smciuts in Sri Lankan Rupsss thousards)

18. Investment Fund

Groug ard Company
s 31 March ok 2023
Asat 1 Aprl 53,283 72,313
Funds withdraw during the year {9,000 (23,681
Fairvalue gain for the yesr 7110 4,657
31,393 ESL@_E'
The fund  comprises investment made in Hatton Matienal Bank Custody Trustes Serdces, The svarags yield for the yesr was
13,205, (2023 -12.47%),
19 Iinvestments in subsidiaries
Company
W Mo of Share ﬂl E
Watawala Dalry Limited 0% GOE93A 147  ZOEE3R0 2528390
Moragodes Agro Sarvicas (Privets) Limied 100 1040 - 88671
2528390 241705
Provsion for impairment of investment in subsidianas [Mots 17.2) (FREATH 4057191

L3z 2,211,382

19.1 Movements of investment in subsidiary

Aa et 31 Manck Fiare] 2003
Batance as 81 1 April ZHIT.081 2143350
ddditions during the yese - 453 47
White off duting the yes B8.671)

£.528.3M) ZAIT 05
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Motes to the financial statements (contd)
(] &rmounts hﬁ[ﬂﬁrﬁpﬂlm

19.2 Provision for impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Compamy
b o 31 March 2024 2023
Balarice as at 191 Apeil £05,719 =
Provision made during the yaar BO,125 405 T1%
Write off during the year [88.671) :

w773 405,719

The provisien for impslrment on invesiment In subsidisny is 3 5t 31 March 2024 s attributable to'Watswala Dairy Limited:

Carmpay
2024 2073
s
Watawala Dalry LUmited (Meots 19221} WT A3 317,048
Moragoda ﬁ-ﬂ Senvices (Pul) Ltd (Note 19.2.2 : BE.4r1

AT 405,719

19.2.1 Watawala Dairy Limited
The recewverable valus of Watawsls Dairy Limited was estimated based on values In use caloulations

Sigréficant unobsersbls input Yaiue of use input

Horerage growth rate 13%

Disgount rate A%

Tetrni Syems [terminal value thereaifien)

Above assemptions have been detemminred based on the hstorice parformance of the company

19.2.2 Moragoda Agro Services (Private) Limited

The Company hat written off the imvestrent made in Moragoda Agra Serdices [Pa) Lid during the year ended st
March 2004,
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19.2 Summarised financial information of material subsidiary (Watawala Dairy Limited)

2 2023
Mon-current assets 2676906 2385429
Current asseis 498,146 had 178
Total sssets ANTT052 3007403
Men-currant llakdlitias 349, 345 121,978
Current Nabdities 759,964 477, 050
Tosl lighilives 1,109,329 79088
Ranseriue 1453992 11947590
Loss for the year (139243  (320858)
Tatal compeahersioa ncome (1ag 815 {333,857)
20 Inventories
Group Campary
Aa at 11 March 2024 i3 2024 2023
Producs stock wE.218 120,784 BE.218 120,784
Farw rmaterials, spares and corsurmables 54T 832 155,286 143,888 210,718
e, 150 B30.000 242,108 331,502
Less: Provision Tar slow mewving nventodfas {106,337} (A4

SSO813  BIAD 242,106 331 502
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21 Trade and other receivables

Growp Cormpany
A at 31 March 2024 pirrk] 7024 2073
Trade receivalbles 102,497 B804 8158 43,474
Ermplayes adwanicss 30,810 23888 a0 PR
Prepayments and sdvancas 120,783 201940 114,100 9Tl
Tawas racoyarabla-nat &1, 068 Fated ) &0, 708 YIS
Cther receivables 20,294 84,979 20,296 77,857

334,734 457 248 234,758 440,645

i Taxes rocehvable represents Value Added Tax daimable an export inputs and Withholding taxss pald at source on intares
incoma,

i) Ermploves advancas e recovened from payrall withén 10 months.

22 Loan given to related company

Comparny
A at 31 March 2024 2023
As at | Ageil 270,000 -
Loan granted duting the yesr - 270,000
Loan setiled duing the year [10:0,000) -
170,000 270,000

The Comparny has granted short-termy loans whech i3 repayable on demand o Wetswals Dainy Limited &t an interese rate
of ANPLR - 0.25% iﬂﬁg_ﬂﬁﬁhfmﬂl:d 31 March 2023,

23 Amounts due from Related parties

Group Company
Aa st 31 March 24 202 H4 2023
Trade receivables
Pyramid Larka (Pt} Ltd 20828 1490147 20528 149147
Pyrarnid Wilrmae {Pet) Lid 10,922 y 10522 .
Pyramid Wilmar Qils & Fats [Pyt Ltd 297 . 297 -
Dther receivables Z -

Watawiala Ciasey Umitad - 257 I 02308

31,747 149,147 289043 349455
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24 Short term investments

Irnverstirant in Capital Allianes Investment Grade Fund 310,752 4 870 309,591 4870

Ivestrnent in DB Wealth Management Limited 813,278 x 813,278 i
974,030 4870 B2 169 4870

24.1 Shott-term ireaatmant represants irmeestment mede in Capital Allance Imestment Grade Fund and ircestrment in
MDE Wealth Managament Limited Average weld of ivastroents In Capitad Alllande irndastiment was 12% (2023

28,5%) and irvestment in NDB Wealth Management Limited was 11%,

25 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flows statament, the year-end cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Plota Group Company
dis st 11 March 2024 2023 2024 I3
Bark overdralts (B0, ) |5 444) 4 :
Cash and baric balances 251 Teran 854990 174,475 853193

716,781 797, A TT4.475 853,193

25.1 Cash and bank balances
Group Compasny

&g st 31 Masch 2024 k] 2034 friirs]
Cash at bank 80757 357410 58,102 267014
Cogth i Fand 1,804 [ 1,514 A43
Short 1arm bark deposiis 714,858 484 812 714,859 433 734

TRT.A A58 290 TT4 4TS B53 193
26 Stated capital

Group and Company

As at 31 March 2034 2023
203,308,634 ardinary shares induding one [1) golden shars 2003 mmﬁ,m; 511,048 510,848

511,848 511 248




WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC  ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024 209

Notes to the financial statements (contd)
fed] rrmousts in Se Lankan Rupsas thoussnds)

The Golden Shareholder

The Golden Shate is currently held by the Secretary 10 the Traasury and should be owned sither directly by the Govesnment of
Sri Lanka or by & 100% Govermment cwned public compary. In sddition 1o the tights of the narmal ordinary sharehaldai, the
Golden Shareholder has the following rights:

ii The concurrence of the Golden Shaeaholder will be requined for the Compafy to subleass ary of the estete land leased /
b e feased 1o the Compary by the Janstha Estate Development Bossd / S5ri Lankas State Flamtation Corporation: (JECSS
SLSRC)

Il The soncurrence oF the Galden Sharahaldar will e raquired ta amend ey dause in tha Artides of Astodation of the
Compamy which grant spedfic rights to - the Golden Sharaholder

i The Golden Shareholder, or his romines will have the right to axamine the books and acoounts of the Company at any
tima with two weaks written notice.

I The Company will be required to submit a detailed quarterdly accounts report 1o the Golden Shareholder in a specfied
farmat within &0 days of the end of each quarter. Additieral infeemation relating to the Cormpary ine spedifisd foomat
st e submitted 1o the Galden Sharsholder within 90 days of the end of the each fiacal year .

W1 The Golden Sharsholder cary raquest the Board of Directors of the Company to meetwith him / his Nomines, once awery
guiartes to disoss issues related to the Companys aperatioh of inerest 1o the Govennmeant,

27 Interest bearing borrowings
27.1 Movement of borrowings during the year:

A ak 31 March Lssae Terem baam 2024 2093
Tosl Tertal
Group
As at 1 Apeil 25048 = 2,508 F2578
Additions during the year - 154 500 154,500 .
Interest capitefired during tha year - - - 40,134
Repaid during the yesr (1,025 (T T 28800 [#10.201)
1,479 127122 128,401 2,508
Az at 31 March Tarm lown P | FaoFai]
Tatal Totil
Camparny
As at 1 Apel - - 45,500

Rapaid during the year # . {45, 500)
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27.2 Analysis of borrowings by year of repayment

Group Compary
Mz st 31 March R 223 2idd 2023
Rapayable within one yeas
Tarm laans 88233 - - -
Lense 1.278 1,277 -
BR51 37T -
Repavable after one year
Tarm leans 35867 -
Lease 20 1331
0% f.23
Total barrawings 128,601 2,508 =
27.3 Lender-wise Summery
Chitatanding linbibny Crgstanding labiiity
Mote Repayabla abils Eislince s Repayable  Hepaysbls Balsnce an
within ore e one ot 31 March within one afterone &t 31 March
ymar yEar 2024 year yEar 2023
Graup
Peoples Bank 2131 3333 388 T2 - - =
Paoples Bank Imgport Loan 2732 54,90 - 54,900 - - -
Hatton Mational Bank PLC:-Lease 27,33 1,278 201 1.479 1,217 1,231 2,508
o9 511 F7090 128,401 1,277 1,231 2508
27.3.1 Peoples Bank
Purposs
Far working capdtal inanding
Ciutstanding limbity humdqmr,
2T 2024 202X 2023

fimar Original  Intevest Repayabis
arngauny rate % within one

Repayale Balance Repayable Re
afywr gne ay ot 31 withe one

absks Balanze Hepoymant Levmns
Sl oo

Pl AT year March 2034 T year Manch MY
2023724 100,000 AWPLR- 33333 38889 Pl - - - Tobepad 36 equal
GI5% rmanthly instaments
commancireg brom
My U3
Sub 1ol 33333 a8 T3z .

Sacurity Unsaourad
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27.3.2 Paoples Bank

Purposs
For wofking capital finandng

Chimanding labsy Cursanding liaksity
0T3S R4 022 2023
fenr Criginal Interast Repayabls Repapable Balarcs Repaysbis  Rapayable Balance Eapayrmat tarmm
amount  mafte B withinore afferone as et 31 withinons afier one s at 31
12 e oL March 2024 Joor your March 203
22Ee 54,900 1% 54900 - 54,900 - - - To be paid
within &
rrnths
COMTEnEng
from
Decembear 2023
Sulbs tatal B 500 54, 00
27.3.3 Hatton National Bank PLC
Purposs
To purchiase a lormy with chasis
Cuamanding Habiliy Cansarding labilny
20T 0324 20F M3
Yaar Ofiginal  Interesl Repayable Repayeble Balance Ropayable Repaysble lalence Repayrmant barirm
mmaunt rase % withinone  after ons amat 31 withén one  after one et 31
- S D e it Mmch 2053 -
a3 e 1278 201 1.47% P 1231 258 & agual monthily
instalments commencing
from August 2020
1,278 201 1.47% 1277 123 2,508

Lecrity Absolule cwnenbio of the leased '..'el':d-u
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28 Lease Liabilities
Group Company

Az at 31 Masch 2024 2023 2024 2023
Lease linbility

Balance a3 a1 | Apil _ 274,031 256,413 283406 24 75D
Rarneasurerment of lease liabilites 133,511 A0A75 133,511 20,175
Interest charged for the year 58,537 40 535 58,507 40,893
Lessl payrments made dutlng the year i1 317) 14345 a1 317} 2 ALE

&04, 762 274,031 414,107 263,406

Analysis of net lease liabilities - Group

A0t 31 Maech 2024 2023
Cuivert  Non.currsnt Cuvent  Mon-current
Gross Hnkiliy 3,170 401,592 1637 2723
Pdot limbility to lessor 3170 401,592 1.637 272,594
Analysis of net lease liabilities - Company
A at 31 Maseh Campasy i
Fiz4 23
Currgni  Man-currant Curvent  MNon-surrenl
Gress Hablliey 2810 411 297 1,277 EEEE
et liability to lessor 2810 411,297 1,277 252,129

Leasehold rights can be analysed a3 follows:

Group

HAunalysis of Lesse liability 0 1 yeats 2-5years  Maore than 5 Total
yram

Asat 31 March 2024 3170 7,293 I35 404,762

Az st 31 March 2023 1,637 4,020 268,374 274,031
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Company
kﬂ}_d’l.l.—llh.:r 0 1 years 2-Gyasrs Morethan S Total
yRETE
As-at 3t March 2024 2810 &, 053 H0E 244 414,907
As st 31 March 2003 12T i, 0 278,109 283,406
Maturity analysis of contractunl undizcounted cash low
0 1 paars 2.5ye8rs  Mare than 5 Tatal
L ]
Group
A at 31 Warch 2004 52T 231,219 598,390 BARa4
Carmparty _
Aa gt 3t March 2024 BO.075 25 4T 298,30 L i
Group
As at 31 March 2003 41211 164 BAL 05 048,551
Carmpary
As at 31 March 2023 4z 411 149, 644 Ta0.774 33051
Group
2034 2023
Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Imterast an leaze llability 58,537 40,935
Amertization of right to use assels 17,536 12261
Amgunt recognised in staternent of cash flow
Toral cash outflows for lease 81,317 43,4572
Company
Amount recognised in the staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Irgsrest an leaze liability 58,537 40,935
Amortization of right 1o use assets 16,898 11,547

Amgunt recognised in statement of cash flow
Total cash outflows for lease &1,317 42442
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29 Retirement benefit obligations
The movement in the ratirement banafit obligation over the year is a5 Toflows;
Giraup Coarvipany

At 31 Manch 2124 2173 Al 223
Az et 1 Apell 337389 MEs2F 295554 1BAAER
Current servige cost for the yvear B2 AZ0 13845 54,753 11,524
Interest coat for the year 19,790 3150 16,731 26,002
Artusal gain for the year 15,006 115073 13.040 0T
Banefits paid (4,539 (36058  (58.1%4) @RI2E

JF0065 33738y ERREBA  HEYH

Tha charge to the statament of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

Garoup Campany
2024 203 s i
- == == =
Currant sarvics cost AL&20 13,885 M.753 17,722
Interest cost 19,790 g eI 28,002
Total included i the stafl cost E2.210 45739 71,884 I

Actuarial loss recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income 15,005 115073 13,040 L

An actuarnial valuation for defined benefit obligation was caried out.as a1 31 March 2024 by Mr. M. Poopalanathan, of
Mesars, Actuarisl snd Management Consultanis (Private) Limitad, & i of professional scomsriss, The velustion mathod
wsed by the actuaries 1o value the obligation is the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method', a method recommended by the Sei
Lanks Ascaunting Standard LKAS - 19.0n "Emplayes Banafit®

The fellowing asssnptions and dats wets wed invaluing the defined bansfit sbligation by the sctiarial valuer: & long
term Teeasury Bond rate of 11% poa, 2023:18.50%) has been used to disgount futurn liabilities taking inte
eordideration of the remaining working [ife of eligible employess,



WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC © ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024 215

Notes to the financial statements (contd)
fall amounts in Sei Lankan Rupess thousends)

W, Itorest rate - 119 2023 - 1855
(5 year Government borsd rate hes been decreased fram 18.5% 1o 11% 8 at the yédar end. Hence the Group
has taken 17% as the rate of interest)

i)  Rate of salary increase

« Estare staff B3 pon (2003 108 poa),

- Estate management and haad office stalf 15.3% every year
i} Retirement age &l yoars (2023; &0 years)

} The compary will continue its businass for 8 foresesable future.

Mo of employees

Company -~ 1452  (2003- 1363

Graup 1000 (2023 1604
i} Wedghted swarage duration of defined banifit obligation

- Staff 103 (2023- 69

~Workers 103 (2023.7.58)

The fellowing breakdown is expectad to be paid in future years under Retirement benifit obligation plan

Greup Company
e mt 31 March SlE4 2083 Fairs] i
Within tha naxt 12 months 43,895 35764 39534 23,794
Between 1-5 years 115005 104206 103,895 AL
Batwear, 10 yesrs 101,573 105947 89,707 45,780
Beyond 10 years 109,592 PR ASE B9 147 74 803
Total 370065 39 ZER2B3 295954

Sensitivity analysis
In order to llustrate tha signifcance-of the salary / wage escalation rate and the discount rate assumad 0 this valuation a5 at

31 Match 2034, & sensithaly anahads was cared oul for all ermployess sssuming the following salarny/wase escalation rate and
dizsoun rale,

Sensitivity analysis
Group Company
Ag it 37 March 2324 FirE] T4 20a3
1% increase in dizoount rate 345,455 NG73T 384G ZTRA32
1% decresss in discount rate J97B04 30535 345408 315697
1% ncrease in salary Incremant rate 99003 3185 3445448 317115

1% decreass in salary incremant rate 344208 315046 300614 ZTa.A35
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30 Deferred income and capital grants

Gireen/ T ermgarry
A5 a1 31 March Pk o hri]
Cot
Az ar 1 Apl F4,299 Pa259
4, 299 h
Agrumulated amor tization
Azat 1 Apeil 526 52857
Amortizetion during the yase 2,358 2358
57,573 55215
Carryling vadus as at 31 March 36,728 37,084

Funds have bean received from the Plantation Human Developrment Trust (PHDT) and Ministry of Estats Infrastruchre for
workers’ welfare fadlities induding re-roofing of Bnerooma, |atrines, water supply, sanitation, e1c. Grants received from the
Bdinistry of Estate Infrastructure for construction of oréches, farmrosds and community centers are also incduded above, Tha
amounts spent bave been capitalised under the ralevam propesty, plam and sgquipmean categerny: The capital grams ars
amanizad on & straight-ling basie over the usafid lifie of the respecthee ssser

31 Deferred tax liability

Greup Company
B4 ak 71 Masch a4 23 2024 froire)
Az at 1 Agpril BOS,S50 4938 TR 238 241,658
Charge / (Revarsal] In siatement of profit or loss 1772804 5534 63700 494,300
Revarsal in othet comprahersive income (4305 (3292n [@EWH2) £9,. 722

S7B.445 805550 715954 726,238

Ceafermed tas i3 caloulated fod the temporary differances betesen carging value snd tad weitten down valus of ron-
current assets and liabilities as analysed by each taxable activity,
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31.1 The recondliation of taweffect efing from the temporany differances related to carrying amounts of assets and
lighilithes: of the statément of finanaal postion la e follows

et FisFs)
Taapeanary Tay Eflect h'rw: Ty Effact
Group
Property plant and equipment (LO79.784)  (257.552) (10570000 (257066000
Biotogical assat (3.458,653) (POA.37T) (25835700 (F4d.222.00)
Tt Insses carrled forward 477,39 95,480 399418 7988300
Leiasa linkabity A04, 762 121,429 7403 8230500
Right of use ssset EERAS) (107955 4878 (73.162.000
Prenition 106,337 21,247 " .
Retiramant banefit obligations 370,065 106,241 337,389 9707300
Capital grants 38727 11,018 39084 11,726.00
(A703,000)  (9TEA4%)  (@817.354)  {B05550)
Company
Property plant and equipment (21,2600 (128 378) (4550887} {137,048
Bifogical assuts [2.374,489) (712.347) (2335078) {700,523
Leasa linkdhity 414,107 124,232 283,404 BE 22
Right of usa assat (363.888) (10R.168) @477 (1083
Retiramant benafit obligations T2 283 685 5504 B85 s
Copita grants 36,726 1.018 39,084 11,725

2386521) _ (115956) [RA07H) (02623

Bofarred tax assets and llabilities are measured based onthe tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the and of the reparting period. The Group has used afféctive tex rate of 30% for Agri Sector and 209 for Dairy Farming as
st 31 Maorch 2024, (3073 - 3% Agr| and 205% Dairy farmeng)

Thar daferred tax asset on accumulatad tax losses of the subsidian: have been recognizad cenly up o the extent of forcasted futwr
taxable peofits, Tharafore the company has not recognized deferred tax asset on following tax losses,

Giraug
2 2023
Linuseid tax losses for which no defarmed tax assets has been recognised 895513 1014357

Dafarrgd taximpact & 20% 179,103 2nzan
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21.2 Doferrad ta change for the year due 1o change in tax rate and other tempaeary differences

Gmup Compainy
2 2073 ke F0Ed
Dhus 10 ghangs in effactive 1ax moe - 472,055 - 472,085
Due 1o change in temparary difference 172,809 16,557 (10285 (7.475)
172899 483612 (10282 464,50
Group Company
2024 2 2024 lor]
Defarrad tax gaginated / (sharged) to profit or foss . .
Due to change in the effsctive i rate - d%1,304 - 431,374
_Pue 1o change in the temporary differsnces 177204 30,140 15,370 2928
177,204 531,514 {3100 494 307
Defarred 1ax enigineted / [charged) to other comprehersive income
Chue 1o change in the affacthee e rate - (15315 - {15,319
Duie 1o change in the temporany diferénces (4, 305} (H3A05 {3715 {10403
4, 305} (3270 (3915 {23732
32 Trade and other payables
Greup Conpny
Az at 31 March 2024 20 024 2003
Trade payables 283,187 353,617 208,584 257,740
Emnploves ralated dums 78,541 B&. 320G 77649 B4, 389
Advancas received from customens 4,338 - 64,336 -
Frowisorns-and acousts 152 812 163,233 142,510 140, 357
Chiher payables a2y 204 047 3%, 141 200,221
215,493 B0, 178 B10.8E0 Toa Ta7
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33 Amount due to related parties
Group Company
2034 FLrE] 2024 20
Other payables
Surshing Holdings PLC %515 818 Q.51%5 a18
Sunshine Corturmer Lanks Lirmted 17 117
Sunshing Healthcare: Limited ar . 37 .
9,869 818 9,669 818
34 Commitments
Thare sra no material commitments &s atthe reporting deta wihers require disclosures in tha financls statemants
35 Contingent liabilities
== —
Ax st 31 March 004 2023 2024 2033
Bank guarantess £ 000 10,000 Z

5,000 10000 . :
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36 Related party transactions
36.1
Mame of the company Maturs of  Nams aof Drecen Maturs of Transaction ameunt Balarses & at 31
relmicnship Trarwactian March
2034 il 2034 2003
Pyrmenicl Lanks {Put) Lid Allate ke, MLS. Manvzoon Salex JTTAEE  LATOANY 20308 1447
Mr. MLT. Saddiques Satriamsnts (105784  [5657.145) .
R MR, R
PramidWimar P Lid  Affilate 0 o Sales 3.245.708 - 10,52
. MLT. Sddigus Setfiamants (3234784}
b, ML Bty
Pyrmmed ‘Wilmar Qs & Fan - 28las b, B S, htazcon Saley 1057 414 - ¥
vt bad e, M.T. Sidcicse S femanty [2.057.117)
L
Suprshine Corsumar Lesks  ABTate b, Vigh Goandasary  Satfiemseny 1y - v
Limibed 8 M B Weemaselem - -
Eusrahing Holdings PLE Pargny i Wish Gosindasamy — Senvice Cost (117145 (5,151  (9.815) {1
WG Sathasham  Setdaments 102450 101477
4 H.D Abeywickrama
Watawata Dairy Limited Sobeiciary WA .Sund G Wisha  Interest 17402 TEMG F5T a9 220,308
M, Vish Gowindasary  Purchases (195991} (34,403 0000 2T0000
W, WS Mwiioon Loan {sattied] / granted (100,000) 270,000
Saled i Rant TE4TR 538
hanagement loes (1200 (1,200
Rocanse 124,299 817
Swrahing Heglthoag Lanka  AMiliate B W, Groninglaanmy Satiigments 134 = =
Lenited M G, Sathassam Service provided 0]
Healhguasd Pharmacy Aflate ol V. Gonencasarmy Safies during the yaar . 1,148
Lenined b £ G Sathasivam Cash reosipts . 1,408
duriee the ear
Wy, H. . Abeiclyses
Wy, O, A Cabral
M Karae Shishoo

The diecior hava dsdreed tha naturm of their intamests in contracts snd Drocosed contracts with this Company a3 mestinas of Be dascton.



WATAWALA PLANTATIONS PLC © ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 2024 221

Notes to the financial statements (contd)
{aii amounts in Sri Lankan Rupaeas thousands)

36,2 ¥ey management personnel indude the Board of Directors and the Executive Cormmittes of the Group / Company,
The compansation paid or payabile 1o key managarment parsonnel s a3 follows:

Group Campamy
Aa at 31 March 2024 23 2024 203
‘Salaries and othar short tarm bansfit 29,344 375 28,214 32,347

36.3 Major transactions with related parties

The following recurrent relsted pary transactions ware taken placa during the yesr endad 31 March 2024 |n tha eourss of
busingss where the aggregate value of seifes of recurrent transactions exceeh 1% of gross revenue and the non recurrant
trarsactions exceeds 10% of scuity or 5% of total a33213 a3 per the financal statemnents for the yes ended 3131 March
02,

recurrent fransactions party recurrent recument

tramiaction during  tramsstions as % of

the finarcial yesr Qroug revenus

Pyrarmid Larica (Pyt) Lid Adfliate Sales 77,855 14.2%
Pyrarmid Wilrrar (Pt} Lid Affliate Sales 3,245 18 a7
Pyrarrid Wilrmar £l & Fats (Put] Ltd Aftiliate Gabes 2057414 A%

37 Events after the reporting date

o evants have ocourmed after the reporting date, which would require adjustmaents to o disdosurg in the inandal statemeants
athet than the following,

37.1 Final dividend declared
The Board of Directors of the Compary hes dedared a finel  diidend of LER 7.0 par skare for the finandal year anded 31

harch 204,

A tequired by Section 55 of the Companies Act No. OF of 2007, the Board of Directon of the Company satisfied the
sohancy test in accordance with Section 57, prios to dedaning the final  dividand

In aceordance with the LEAS 10, Brants after the reperting period, the finel  vigend has not bean recognized as a liability in
the Finandal Statements a5 a1 31 March 2024

37.2 Revision to the Dﬂy Wage Rate

The Wages Bosed throwgh its Extracrdinary Garette Mo 238514 dated 2131 May 2024 revised the minimum daily waga to
LER 1,700 eompising of o mirimurn daily bass wage of LKR 1,350/ and a daily spedal allowsnes of LEKR 350/ for
workers in tea and rubber growing and manufaciuring trade. Since the Gazette was Bsued subsequent to the finandal
reporting period, the Company did not congider the increased wage rate in detesmining the retitement benafit okbligation
ey 2t 30 Wiarah 2024,
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{afl ameunts m 5 Lankan Rupess thousends)

38 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group Is exposed to a variety af finandal risks; These indude market riik, oedit rigk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
The Group's overall risk management progrmma foasas on the unpredictability of finandal markets and seek to minimise
potential agéetse affects on the Group's inanclal performance. Based on owr aconomic outlock and the Group's axposure
Lo thase risks, the Board of drectors aporovas varlous risk mansgement stratagies from tims to Ume

38.1 (a) Interest rate risk

Iritesest rate i the fiek that Faii valug o fulure cash fows of a Brandal imsrument will udtuste bacsute of changes in market
interest rates, The Group's interest rate risk acies mainly from the borrowings, The fluctuation in the Average Weighted Frime
Lending Rate (AWPLRE) results in the effective interes) rate of the borrowings usually without a corfespanding duhg&iﬁ thie
fair walue. Tha Group anatyses the iterest rate expoiure on a dynamic basis by monitaring AWPLE

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-beating linandal instruments as reported 1o the management of the Group

a5 follows
Group Company
sl 2024 2013 2024 2003
Finmncial assets
Irvestriant fund 51,93 ke ok 51,393 33483
Loan ghven 1o related pary - 1 70,000 270000
Short tarm irvestment 924,030 4870 923 149 4 870
Shott term bank. deposils 714,858 435812 714,859 483736
1650281 Ca4 960 1855421 a11.68%
Finandal Liabiliies
Interast besting borowings 128,601 2,508
Bank overdrafts a0, 4l 5 A4d

209,241 61,954 ; :

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonnbly possible dhange of 100 basis points in interest rates as.et the reporting dete would heve incessed /
[decreaed] profit of loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis atsumes that all other variables, in particdar foreign
CuFTEACY Tales, rarmain constant

Group Compadmy
Basic posnt ik airE] kil 0
Increase  +100 14,8700 [, B304 {18,5%4) 18,119

Eeoease 100 14, 810 4,830 18,594 B9
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{all armounts in 56 Lankan Aupsas thedessnda)

Capital management

The Board's policy iz 1o maintain a stirong capital base so a3 1o maintain sharsholder, oreditor and market confidencs and 1o
sustain future develepment of the business, The Board of Dérectors monitors the return on capits! and level of dividends to
ordniary sharehaoldaers,

The Campany dabt to adjusted caplial ratio at the end of tha reporting perlod was as follows:

Graup Compary
As ot 39 March 2024 2023 2024 2021
Total Liabilities 3033995 2331480 2417954  2osD20T
Less! Cash and Cazh Equivaelents {797.421) (856,900 (774475  (BS3193
Mt Debt 2236574 1474470 643479 1097014
Total Equity 6397327 6302787 6506950 46551530
et Debi e Equity Ratio 35.0% 2T 25.3% 18.3%

38.1 (b) Price risk

The Group i axposed to the cemmodity prlee tsk of mainly milk and palm odl, The Graup monitens commodity price and
irvantory Fevels 1o minimize the Impact. Fusther, forward zales agresments ara antarad Info to minimiza the exposurs,

-10% 2024 +10% 10% 2023 + 1%
Riervanisa 5180431  4BE7 145  75E3AAD 4815434  TE7IANS 8331058
Total 180431 &B67 145 TE5IEBS0 4816434 7573814 B3N

38.2 Credit risk

Credit risk atises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financal institutions and outstanding balances
from customers, Far banks and finandal institutions, only independently rated parties sre accepted, Mo independent risk
ratings are avallable for custormers, Credit control sssess theoedit quality of the customars taldng into account its financial
potition, padt perfarmence and other Iactors. Credit limits are st and the utilisntion of credit limies (@ redulardy monitored.

Cradit sk is the risk of finandal loas to the Group If & customer faifs to mast its contractual obligations, snd arisas
principally from the Group's récaivatdes from costomans,

Company has immested it's cash in the banks which have credit ratings higher than “BBS®
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Thee easrying armount of inancal essen represents the mesdmum  oedt exposure. Tha maxdmum axposure 1o cradt rigk a1
the reporting dats was as follows;

Giroup Company
s @t 31 March 2024 FArrk 1024 2023
Trade receivablea o2, a%7 B7 204 8,155 43,474
Employes advances 30,610 33885 29,409 2575
Oithar receivables 20,296 84579 20,296 77,897
Arnounts due from relsted companies 31.747 149, 147 259,143 359,455
Loan given o related party . - 170,000 270,000
Balances with banks 185415 BEA 433 Pl h B52.TE0

GBOL7AS 102240 1290084 1,634,551

The following table provides information about the sxpesure to credit risk and ECLs for trade recesvables and contract
mzzals from individusl omtomers sz gt 3st barch 2024,

Giraugs Weigited Gross  lmpalrment Cradit

AveregE o carryimg boess impairad
rate % amount alewarce

A1l March 2024

Past due [0-£0 days) 00 Wz 257 ko

Past due (61120 days) Mo

Past due [121-354 daya) Mo

Mora than 1 year Mo

100 102,457

st March 2023

Past due (040 days) 100 87804 Ma

Past due [61-120 days] Ma

Fast dus {121-364 days) Mo

blase than | year Ma

100 87,804
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fall amounts n 50 Lenkan Rupess thousands)

Campatry ‘Weaghied Grasa  Impairment Credit
wenrape losa carrying fors Impaired
rafs % BT LT w1k reCE
F1st March 2024
Past dua (0-40 days} 100 B.155 Ma
Past due (61120 daysl Ma
Past due (121- 364 deys) Mo
Mare than 1 yes Mo
100 8,155
Jist barch 20023
Past due [0-60 days) 100 43,474 M
Peat due (61- 120 daysh o
Pt due (121.364 das) Mo
More tham 1 yesr MHe
100 43474
8.2 Liquidity risk

Cash fiow farecasting Is perfoemed in the Group which monitors roling farecasts of the Group's liquidity regurements to
arsre it b sufficdent cash te mest aperaticosl needs atall tirmes. Such farecasting takes into constdaration, the Group’s
debit Bnancing plans

The tabla below analyses the Group's financial kabilities and Tinancisl essets inta relevant maturity groupings besed on the

fareaining period &t the statemant of Enandal pesition date to the contractusl matunity. date, The smounts dedesad in
the table are the contractual undiscounmed cash flows

The fallewing are the contractual maturities of fimandal liabllitas,
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fall amounts in 5 Lenken Rupass thousand's)

Group Canying  Comtreciual 12 Months or 2.3 Yewrs 45 Years  Mose than §
AETRSURE cash fiawa Len Yaars
[exehiding
irdarest
31 March 2024
Mon-Dervative Finsnda! Liakilities:
Interest bearing borrowings 128,601 128,501 4,611 93,990 -
Trade and othar peyables 16,493 F14.493 Q14 493 . - .
Lawzn Liabdities 404 742 50944 S9.275 115,640 115,640 29839
Amount dusa to ralated companies B, 649 Qa5 9 baT
1459585 1943707 1,020,048 207630 115,640 ave =
3 March 2023
Mon-Desivative Financial Liakilities
Interest bearing borrowings 2,508 2508 .27 1,23 - -
Trade and othes paaldes BB ATE BOBATE BOBATE . . .
Lease Liabilites 274,031 A5 41211 B2.423 B2.423 TO0 5
Amount dus 1o related companiss 818 818 818
1,085,533 1,718,153 B51 482 83,454 g2.423 s
Company Carrying  Cortrectual 12 Months or 2-3 Yoann 4.5 Years Mo than §
ST cazh flows laax Yaars
[eckuding
imerest)
31 barch 2024
Men-Cretivative Finsncsl Liakdlites
Trade and other payables B10.420 B10,420 810,620 . . .
Leaze Liaksditas #4107 BEZ 544 HR2Th 115840 115.640 592389
Amaount due to ralated corrpanies 9,859 9,569 9,669 > ™ :
1.234.386 1,703,233 8749 54 115,440 115,640 592,359
3 March 2023
Men-Diesivative Finsncisl Liskslities
Intarest bearing barowings - - - - - -
Trade and other paalies 708,707 700707 700,07 . . .
Lease Linbdities 23404 933,051 42411 84 B73 84 873 Ta0od
Snount dies 1o ralated companies 818 818 B

GEASI1 1 A3BE7S TAT.93% 84873 84873 79
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38.4 QOperational risk

Ciparational riak s the riek of direct o
indireet |oas arising From o wide vasisty
of cacses assocated with the Group's
processes, personnal, tachnology

and infrestrosture. and from exteensl
factors other than credit, markes and
liquidity risks such as those arising
fram legal snd regulatery reguirements
and genetally ascepted standards

of corporate bohaviow, Oporational
risks arise from all of the Group’s
Bperstions.

The primary respansibility bor the
development and implemantation of
controls to address operational risk

s assigned 1o ssniod management.
This radporaiblity |3 supported by
the developmant of overall Group
standards for the management of
oparatboral sk in the Follawing areas

# Requirements for sppropeiate
segragation of dutles, Induding
tha indepandent authodsation of
ransactions.

& Reguirements for thé reconciliation
wrd mariterng of Uansactions.

» Complisnce with regulatony snd other
legnl requirements,

& Docurmentation of contrels and
procedures,

& Requirementd for the periodic
azsssament of oparational riaks
faced, and the sdequacy of condrals
and procodures [0 addiess the rsls
identified

# Requirements fer the reporting of
oparattonal loses and proposed
ramadial actions

® Development of contingency plans.

# Tralning and professional
development.

% Ethical and business standeds.

#® Rizk mitigation, induding insurance when this is effeciee.

Casnpliance with Geoug standards is supported by a programme of peradie
rendens undertaken by Internal Audit. The results &f internal Audit redews are
disoumsed with the Management and summaries ave submitted to the senior
management of the Group

39 Fair values of financial instrument

Thea Grl;u,p measures air values L:dnE the I:n"nwiﬁg Faar wnluss Bigrae |:|'|3| thot reflacts
thé significance of the inputs ued In making tha messw Emanta

Lewval I Cooted market price (unadjusted) In an-active markat for o identical
instrument,

Level Ii: Valuation technigues based on observabile inputs, either directly — Le, as
prices of indirecily - e desived from prices. This categary indudes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active mackets for similar insbroments;

gquioted peiced {or identics] or simila irmfruments in markeis that are considered

less than active] or other valuation technigques where all significant inputs are
dergcily or indirectly abservabile from market data

Level |l Valuation techniques using significent unobsenvable inputa, This category
indudes all instrumants whaera tha valuation techrique indudes inputs not based
on clhservable dats and the unobsanable nputs havs & significant affect on the
instrument's valuation. This category indudes mstruments that e valued based
on quated prices for similar Instrements whers significant unobsarvabls
sdjisbments of psiurmdtions ahe requited 1o feflect diffef ancas batwsaan the

irs L &
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fal mmounts in S Lanksn Rupaas theusands)

Greap - As at 31 March 2524 Fair valus  Amortised Far i Total Levell  Lewel2  Loveld  Totsl Fair
themiigh tost  troughothes  carrying value
profit or amourt

lpas noome
Finangaf astets measured at tar valug
Inappiengnd fang 51,393 - SR SR ] 8139
51,093 . 51,390 E 51,393 51,398
Firgeial aedets ol mastused al fir
bl
Trade ard ot reoahabies = J34 T ki R - . o] k| 334,754
Ameunts due from related company - S 1 [ E— S L
Short teem imvesmants 28,000 724,030 924,030 924,000
Cash o bl g in band L P SRS F A S ) YA S /T 8
2087532 - 2087.53) « AINAS1T  3esddt 2087000
Tatal hnuncisl ssssts SLI%3 2067932 B e = LIRS JeasS] 137335
Fimancial lsbrikties not measured ot fait sl
Indgrass bgring bormwingg 138401 - 13%.401 =140 -
Trasde snd othes payables +  FlAdEE + Eedod * = WMadS1 9689
Agws Litelibeg SR, - N - AeTeY i = MATe MR
_Amount due to refated companies L) 9660 . . 04 945
» 1540185 1,540,145 S aeady  1ae0%d 158015

Totl inancial_labilibes - 1540965 - 154015 ©  JeMY IO 1540048

Group - & sl 31 Mach 2023 Fair value  Amortissd Fair i Total Level ! Leved 2 Lewel] Total Fair
theugh cont  theoughothe  carrying ks
prafit ar el

‘= —
Firsrgigl seyets mesmrd ol i vifue
Ammstment fund 33,283 33083 .« 53288 53283
53,783 = - 533 - 53283 - 53283

Firaroial assets mot mas umed ak Rir

valus

Tracks and gthar moanables R 57,448 - Ll L

_Amcunts du from related company GO 1. L 149,147 . 143,147 145147
_short grm irveqmenty 4,870 4870 LX:F] AH70
Cash at banks and in hand = 856,990 856,550 - #5499 856,990

1,508,455 1,506,455 -

Total fingncial gesat 53203 1508455 RTTRE: - GG o4AB95 1561738
_Firgrol hiabikies not massured 5T e wbes

Iritrest bearing bomowings 2,508 . 2,508 i 2,508 : 2508
Lose Liphiitag - Imem - I s - gt Jrapat
Trade and othes payables Bogire 0 - BORITS + - B0BA7e  BORVTA
Arant dus 1o ralaled sompsanias 4 15 : L3 + = g1 18
Barik guarcirgin =L . T - B i
=% 1,144 570 - 1144879 - Mgk TDEIGNE 1 1AHY

Toksl finprcial lalitees . ] tadom L144.570 R 1950 10800 1144579
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Comparny - A= ot 31 Manch 2024 Foir vaee  Amoriised Far vnbue Total Lewed1 Level2  Leweld Total Fair
themagh comt  hwoagh other  aarrying vl
Frolft o amaoaint
i L]
_Financigl gesety maanured st fHr wvalis
Invatrant fund 1.3 51,390 » S13E -1 -
51,393 51,353 - 51,355 - 51,393
s - 23758 x = T8 M8
170,000 170,000 170,000 170,000
29,143 - AL i s FERIAY RIS
FE3148 160 F23.140 i L
AT - TIeATS - THars . JHaars.
R i L ] = 2371545 O - - ) e
s I e ] = 2442938 o L74S007  aRaf0n  JA4Z59%8
- 414107 = 414107 - 414 H0T 414907
Amount due 1o ielated campanss i e - b = L s A=
- R - B v = 13 : - 1M 12043
Tiotal francial labeitias - 1% B - - 123430 1204306
Coimparry - A= ot 31 Manch 2073 Far b Amortissd Faie wnlue Total Lewel1 LewiZ  Lewel3  Total Fair
Prolr o cofmprehenave Aot
kom imcome
Firiancial nipets fecnsted ot bt wilus
Jrecgtment fundd EEAC z S R S
bE .-l 3 = S - L3083 SR 1<
e P
Ltin girven to redated Company - 20000 = 2000 : = Arong 270000
Arroynty s from rlbied companny S A AGS -7, 1 = - FRARS ALY
—hort term e simants 2 4,870 . 4870 > 4870 - 4870
Carsh ot barks and in hand . B5:3,193 . EBI1%3 » BS3193 » 853153
- 15383 1,558,363 - FEfes 1080330 1936363
Joand hnpngial pemat e B = L9954 S10346 100000 15906
Financial labilites rof maasuned at i vahis
Lo Liabilites . ZE3A08 = 23 A0e x x
JTrade and other pavables S ¢ S : = TOAPOT T4 70T
Amount dus 1o edated companiss - B14 2 418 - - ] Eig
T = SEAON : «  SA903Y  SERON]

Toml hrancil Liabibies — wasa T T . senen seacel
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Crop & Yields

PRODUCTION - KILOS - "000

m 2022/23 0IVIZ 2020/ I0TWI0 I0WN18 IOTE 2OV 200516 20M/15
TEA
Wk g3 B Iid kS ] ¥
T - TS0 4207 4400
Linchaa = LAashs 2503 LB
Lihgairia a9 a0 6 w2 i0l s W 2% 303 pil]
TEa - TEIEA, ﬂ B £503 L Il 55 B LAarS AL LT
Fitsh 43 i It ' LA L Lol
Py O WM S6O7 TOES 0025 T400  TEM  OU7S  IO6GZ  i0A AESd
YIELD PER HECTARAGE (KILOS)

m 2022/23 20022 2020/ 20120 200819 JOVIE  BVENT 20016 2014/15
TEA
Watawala 1,308 1,708 BOI 1269 1373 1533
Hatton . 1224 1441 1624
Lindula : : : 1152 1444 1523
Udugama  _ IA8F 1512 LOE 1871 NS48 1535 1428 145 BT 198
TEA-TOTAL 1,332 1354 1767 1871 1543 1535 1428 1213 1439 1569
Rubber 999 424 539 B33 4BE &29 825
Palrm il 4853 3274 3Z488 3202 3456 IR 3678 IVBE  32e4 3757
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JM4N5  20MAS 20156 20056 20%A0  I0WENT  20M 20178 20WM
000  RR'000  Re0D0  RE000  RR'D00 ROD0  RR000 RO00 ReS000
INCOME STATEMENT
it GSaedl  BYTLENE ASORIED LIMAOGD  RUOLS 62050  40REIGE  AJGA4ST  LOSUNO
Gt of waldy BOMBALT) [SOTSEST (AASLAOE) (S3TE764) (AE7A5TY) (AGHOSAT (SHUAIST) (15507097 (LMLITE)
Grorss proft ROD(MA  7O77S8 B3 BSLZ3R  LGTA6 LRSS 1OSIEM 40365 LM04ED
Enfus CHprateg o s M 14X LSAMD  MERS)  MGAOE FRUE, ME2I0  pesE
Adrivistintive aspreries (BOSTH  (WIART (PASOY  (TEOGD)  (I0ATIE)  (DMIIT) (RIS (D7I0Mm CD0EE)
[slr dbulion ueperes
Marus vt Tis
Operatng prof 95X SE0ME) GSO0S BGOATD  LASIAY  15ZM006 UMBGTI 1235572 1036464
Nt firanon cost CREETE]  (MROW)  (PAES) (RM3E)  (AJE30) DA 1LGGP BSOS (14,468}
Profit /floss) bafore Tax AEE7ES MGEELE A0S Sodtd  pdAdR0E LRI WERIE MOEY  adanod
e (FR000  (TR0ME)  (FRABE)  (FRAIG) (ZMOMID  (PGIGE) (FMETN (PISEA)  (SARES)
Profit f(kess] for the pesr WOMT B0 SIS0 0 SEI7  LOSESD LDosH AMEEM LOSOSTE  juaon
Proht fom ciacontrued oparions
Proft for the year WOMT  WOSES S0 SEaa  \ZSESY  LZmeh GesR  10505%  JRiOn
Avpikibdo 100 widn Prpmisireere vk 51 Ll
At gainytioss] on gratusy BEGE MESd o274 o7 SOEO4 R4S SSEER TLROE - (M)
Tan on actursd pkylosd) om ety (R0 (TOR  [(SSES)  (RSES) (RBAS) (RBAS) (TEEO)  (LimO)  nomM
Total other comprehendive incoms for
npiedrapmlon e ko WAL WS IR OWRGR BETSS  TREDE LM AT (ZRO00}
E comprebensive incom for the AL S Mg ST S L EAY IR LEDALATH | ACHE 35 L e Lo EA EEn
Alintrdnbds fo
Eepicy haiclers of the Company ADISMD 407307 BEGAT GETE OO0 \NO067 BOMTI.  \0R0ESD  BEHEE
Wil el it 5 CHCH [ b ok L EaT)
;‘:" income ferthe oo gorEdr  GEO42 0 GENE  ASDOAM  I00J67  OMOOM4  LOBGOSS TaGo;
BALANCE SHEET
Mo Cigsmn AL
Rt b s of st JERAT  JOSAT  JOSLON  MOSE0R e4TI  pirM  mOom TLEn T
ST W o Mnee WMZOAY  M20N DMEM DA OTAM noaa
Protmirt, Ml and gouipment LGRS LOJLAS  LBNSAGA  LESAASA  2AZITER  [UMLGIE 2048547 SIEAD 2200460
intangiblo Assats YT LI Jams
Bioare Planits JMAOW)  JMEON FMOEER  2VMMGIE USRI ZEOAR) 24000 2iEDEg  JeTRany
FliohogeCal D5l R o rmakie BEEDG!  GhROG! GOROTS EDADNS  BARAN ROZNY SI0ER mG
Hacdrmyand assart: L ive o 4003 Lo ] Fr ] s 2 544 LB [ Dad g
sttt in Fund ZOJET  MOMP 4360 MO FANO  SATN  BRWS JRESS TN
imarsmanT N sk ) Hha f o s v a1 ]
Iveastmnnd m dobonhen
Aot Sor sale Tnareinl Assets 0SE2 WAEF AGAS JEA5 FGAS UG4S
Total Hon Curment Atosts SASITI SHSRSTO SOSIT0E SAGESE] GEMLIDS GAI08H) SS00GA7  AOGTS08  GOGRUAA
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RR'O00 As000 0 A'000 0 Re'00D 0 RelD00  Fe000 Re000 Rel000  A000  Re00 ReO0D
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130e3eh ST 13GRNER 10056438 LETHOEE BSAIAS 3532435 ASFE0ES 1043060 ISR 0K
Aty TELHAE g ML ik Lt i beky (AR (AERERS) 0P (TAOTHT)
(HLeGH] (FIREL (665D  (FS0ERN)  QIRO0R)  (TRO6D .  (0GNT)  [SALDGFY (340500  (A4a4TRE (ATl
CAsh (NS5 (50NN (067
UGS LEE0ES Lo Lol  IrEdES O LMETTS LMGF  ADATLMG FRAGO6 GO TARTED
ANE  (ITROBEy  (HASOS) (GRAZE)  (BOTER - (45T LR FFEC L] B LAl L3 =
PEOEGH  egoge DGOTET  LSLGRE pELTRT  SERES00 RJGFENl  JaLidER WO ATEREAG  FEARDGET
(BR00D)  (WhSETr (IF56HG)  [BRED) (£1aBE) 0 1Ra0E HEIW  (RAEEEN  EEELMND) DA L)
L 5y HHLEOD QUEORY (OGYELE O LENRATE  LanTrog  LAMRURD  DILLM0  RIEE NG PIARTIE  LACRHSY
TN 5000 SHROEE  LRGRESR  LESTATE 340D SAATHEY RSNTI0. ZIENGAD FurB T30 LS
(LG MY (HaRE) LR ra] S e o G545 (RSO00% (SO0 005y (R
LEEES 64D LA LB LRES) L ] (5AAT LriurEy FLIT NS £
(HGAC) OLARTH (KRR £ [Pt R AT (EEEL (GRS L =T
LI ) BOS1L D Sah LEHATD  1EITGET IEMOD  SaManl  JashEin  JanRAET JERAOEE 2
LB BEAILY  OT0dR LeHATH  LETRSEI 3506540 JATOS0Y  JIRLARD.  FAGEET 2IGATHN - HADRHSD

L) 250 R PO [y
|G S0 BOGINE . SfSad WSE4TS  Q6TSET 0 LSTUDD  DATRS0) RMOERY  OGECRT AL AL
LSl MlAsl  FISARD XIS IS RSO0 JTHEAN FLLL A FLERRL AROES0  SELEEN
BEIPS]  FITEA0F BORTNG 20N RS 2 LAARY GALAD  LAATIM  UADARG  REEROIL | 6N
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Investor Information

L STOCK EXCHAMNGE LISTING

Tre issued shares of Watawala Plantations PLC are listed with the Caolombo Stock Exchange (C5ES in S5n Lanka

As at 31 March

Tabal aumbars af dharakodders

Total numbears of shares

2. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
2.1 Distribution of shareholding as at 31 March 2024

Group

18318

2025
15568

203308634 2035 508634

Tokal
Mumbar of Shareholdars Holdings Holdings
1y 1-1000 sharas B2 TE%N
B252 1,00 - 10,000 shares A5 Do
5] 100D« YO0 OO shsnes 1.97%
45 BOOLCD - 1,000,000 shaas C25%
&4 Crvee 1,000,000 jafinre
18,328 Total 100 OO
2.2  Analysis of shareholders
As at 31 March 3024 As &t Tl March 2023
Catogorise of Shargholdars Haldings Sharaholders Haldings
Shareholdars Humibsar e Humber % Humber % Humbar e
ftmsickants RS R IOALREEE RO Fi ks TR A ARADaE SR05%
Mo Resloienis L] (1,295 LRGT A5 Lo, a1 (aE) ) 10Z 4 A 1.0
Tatal WA  DOO00E IO INSSS 0000 WA 0O 20%I00ETd  10000%
biativicl Lisls ELOHED 0l 50, B 20 Sy (R 1B ASH Crl T SHEIEA T 0%,
Ml oS 50 14Tk W7 0l o B IS 3 OGN IRARBESO0 ROOEN
Total LS 0000  IEP05S 10000 ES 0O A0S 300E34 0000
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.5

2.4

Directors’ shareholding
The numbar of shares held by the Board of Directors are as follows

As at 51 March

| ooz MR

LG Wiletanhs (Chalrman) 1 ]
W Goevindasamy (Acting CED w.al. | Octobar 2023) ]| il
N B Wearasekera (Rezighed wal 18 November 202353 na Ml
M S Mawzoon il Mil
H O Abaywickrama il il
M B Rao Ml Ml
A B Ragiah 10000 10000
L Lo (Albarmate; M T Siddigus) (Resigred wa f 5 Decembar 2025 néa Hil
5 G Sathasam Pl il
A& Herath (Aopointed weal 12 Decamber 2023) Ml M8
B R Mikuibar ( Appointed wel 12 Decernbar 20235 il fifa
M T Siddique (Appointed w.e.f. 12 December 2023) il n/a
Chief Executive Officers’ shareholding
As at 51 March 2023
H N PananwalalResigned w el 30 Seplember 2023) Pl Mil
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDINGS
Fequirement  As at 5 March Comply with Fegquirement As at 51 March h&uﬂu
by CEE 224 CSE Rule by CSE 2003 Rula
EAERTEY] T34 (a)
Dol F A - ¥ A i
b AUl
ol sl e mirkid citalsation LB 250 L A wos LK 25An  LER IS8R Ve
Trub e ag of shares Makd by [res pudlic e 7R i o FEAFS L]
M of shanpholders nepreseming paic
halkdng S0 B35 YiTE 5000 H5ER itk
SHARE TRADING INFORMATION FOR LAST FIVE YEARS (FROM 1 APRIL TO 31 MARCH)
2024 2023 ot 2020 2020
Pighesl price (LEKH) 044 56 [ F s ) bt P ] ¥ FHOO
Loweesl [eice [LEH) 2 K 5100 4000 W 1740
s A 51 Manch (LKR) (Las
Erincde SLUS M4 0 (o R 91 %0 =T ] SL1M
Muruber ol Erameasct lore A (hHL LB ] 1 M ik
Mumber of ghares Fracm R L A%, SN I BRI LA irrRGE 7L 1% OEE O
Walliir Ol Shanes frododd (L Kh) 1.5l S M, LEEL R hhhh a9 4 SO0 LI A HES T AT T D5
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INVESTOR RATIOS AND OTHER INFORMATION AS AT 31 MARCH

T34 2035 i i) 200 2020
Earmuinigs par iha {LEH) 11.60% Ti.49 eET a5 485
Diivichind pew share (L KR 1260 14.00 800 aod .30
Dirvchornd pairy oull (%) 103% 22% 53% A% 5%
Ml pasel per shae (LHR) LET ] LR L] A5, 0 LT 2478
Mismbser of Shares as ai 51 Manch 203308634 203308634 IJ033I08634 203308634 203308534

Market Copstaltsaion [ LHH} 80534 75,747

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

G146 493235 1B268695552 11608 322,001 4,066.172680

S025/ 24 - interim divigend - LKR 800 per share was paid on 8 Decambar 20235

J02252% - Final dividend - LKR 4.00 per shase was paid on 8 July 3023

TWENTY (20) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH (VOTING SHARES)

3 March 2024 31 March 2023

W Mumber of ® Mumbaer of %

sharas hedd shares held
Cunzhins Wilmesr (Privata) Limited 158 207.04% TEAEX 1BL,207 043 TEHEE
Tl Lanks Insurance Corparation LTD-Like Fund 2.418.205 1.1 2418295 1.4
K. C Yignarapah 2331 412 115 + 486108 132
Wyayanthi & Compamy Limited 1,801,674 0.50 101674 050
T. T. T AL Makib {Decoared) T0O.000 034 700,000 034
B Mulis 558,354 28 L5935 038
Deusichs Bank A5G Singaporne A/C 02 553480 Q27 N3.480 035
Jayampathi Divale Banderanayako EOD 250 025 B40. 280 0.3
Jayampathi Divale Bandaranayaske 500,000 025 -
Perera and Sons Bakets {Pvt) Limited S00.000 225 - W
Sugath Weeraratne 372839 018 505, TO0 o5
Mohamed Imtizam Abdul Hamesd 154 085 oz 154 0BE oir
Agsetling Finance Limited 340000 ooy -
dagwan Wassiarmal Kundanrmal 32t 48 (a5 BT 5] o6
Zrl Lanka Insurance Corporation Lid-Ganaral Fund 285 Qa5 3128353 Q15
Upall Amarasinghs 275000 044 -
Alllarca Finance Company PLE 256,165 Qi3 - -
Ealliya Guruge Madeseshan Danchy Gunathdlake 2500000 Q12 -
Aupber Imveltmant Trutl LTD 2ZT 000 o -
Urion Irmyestrments Private Lid 230 881 O =
Jezhindernit Kaurpsara Smgh 220,000 on -
Sub Tatal 168,443,728 8285 166,036,239 BLET
Other Sharaholdars 54 BEd 906 15 A7 X122 3085 IB3F
Grand Total 203,308,634 10000 205308534 W00.00




Glossary

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

THa spacihic Errciples, Baspd
camentions, rules, and practicas
adopied by an Enlerprise N SrEparng
and presenting financial statemants

WATA
C5E identificatiaon code for the
COmpany.

ACCRUAL BASIS

Recording révenues and expeEndes in
thes paricd in which they are sarnad
o inclrred regardleds of wiethsr
cash = nmcalved or disbursed in Shat
eeriad

GSA

The Groae Sakes Avedage, Tha i the
average sales prics obtained [owie o
period of time, for a kilo of produce)
bafore any deductions such az
Brolerags, st

H5A

Tha Met Sales Average. This is the
average sale proe obtained (e a
pertod ol Lime) sher deduclig
Brokerage feas, sic

cop

The Cost of Proguciions. This
ganerally fefers 1o the cost of
producing per iy of preduce (Tea /
Hubber SPatm Oil)

cpo
Crude Paim Oil

AMORTISATION

Thi syitemate slocation of tha
depreciabla amaunt of an intangible
ayset over it useful life

EBITDA
Earning before intenest, las,
depreciation and amortieatien

VALUE ADDITIONS

The gquanium of weakih generated by
thee activibies of the Company and (I5
application
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EARMING PER SHARE - EFS
Prafit altributsble 1o ondinary
sharahobders divided by the murmibar
of ordenary sharas in ranking for
drvidend

ENTERPRISE VALUE - EV

Market capitalisaton ples debs,
rinarily intemast & prefarred shares
rrvinus fodfal cash and cash
Equnalenls

ENTERPRISE MULTIFLE - EM
Enterpring Valus (EY) desided by
Earnings bafore Interest Tax
Depreciation ard Amortitation
(EBITDA)

MARKET VALUE ADDED - MVA

Shamboiders’ fund: divided by the
rmaroel value of shares

PRICE EARNINGS RATIO - PE

Marker price of a share diviced By
sarnings par sham

MARKET CAPITALISATION

Murmniber of Shares ssued midltiplied
By the marke] valse of each share a8
tha yaar and

NET ASSETS

Sum of fized aszets and curment
metaly et hotal Babilities

HWET ASSETS PER SHARE

Mat aziets ol the end of the parod
devidod by the number of ondnary
shares i issues

RETURM CN EQUITY

atiritaitable pralits divided by
average sharsholdery” funds.

INTEREST COVER
Profit before tax plus interest chames
drided by inderedl chargas

DIVIDEND COVER
Prafit attributable to shareholdars
dirvided by gross dividand

DIVIDEND PAYOUT

Profit paid aul 1o shamboldesrs as
dividends as a percantage of profits
b during [hi year

RELATED PARTIES

Padtigd who ctuld corthal o
significanthy infioenoe the financkal
and cpersling policees of the
Company.

CONTIMNGENT LIABILITIES
Comditeons o situations at the
batare cheel dale, the hnancial
effects of which are to be detormined
by Pudburs eeenin, wiech may o may
(s ===

PHDT

Flanfation Human Developmant Trust

WORHKING CAPITAL

Curmarit assats aviclusve of liguid
funcie and interast -baaring financial
recaivables inss oparating kabilities
and ron-interesi-bearng prowisena

TOTAL BORROWINGS

Tots) borrowings condisl of mleresl-
baaring babilities, falr.value
derivatnees, sccrusd interest expenies
and prepaid mtewest incoma, and
tracis receivables with réetourse.

HET BORROWINGS
Total barronwings less ligued fuhds

Ligues irvestrnents with ariginal
maturities of thews months or ess

CURRENT RATIO
Curment assats divided by current
[[E1. 20 0]

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO
Bewrrirey irg diwided by edguily

GEARING RATIO
interest Baanng ceaital devided by
total capital {irtarest bearing and
Aoh-mlaed! Besring)



TURNOWER PER EMPLOYEE
Consohdated turnoves af the
Company for the year deided by the
aurrser of employeas amployed af
e yoar shd.

EXTENT IN BEARING

The extent of land. From which crop
o baing harvested, Also see
“imrmature Plantation”™

CROP
The total produce hareested during &
financial yaar

IMMATURE PLANTATIONS

The extent of plantation that ts under-
deralopmeant and 5 ol baing
haryettad,

MATURE PLANTATIONS

The sxtent of plantation from wihich
crop is being harvested, Also see
“Estant in Baaring”

M FILLING

& mathod of fisid develapment
whmrneby planting of mdividual plants
5 domne i order 1o increass the yield
of o ghon fiald, whilst allowing the
Nl b e harvediad

REFLANTING

A mathod of field development
whang an entire unit of land = token
out of "beanng” arnd ceveloped by
way of uproating the exicting troees/
Bahes and neplanting with new
broe s bushes.

YIELD {¥YPH)

The average crop par unit extent of
Lapdl corer @ given pesisd of tirme
{usually kgs per hectane per yoar)

[}:3e]

international Standargs Crganization
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HACCP

Hazard &nalyia Critical Control Paint
System. internaticnally accepted food
dafely standssd

A apanesa managemant technagua
on the organisation of the workplace.
56 gtandy for Sain (Sortingd, Saitan
(Organising ). Seiso (Cleamnng),
Seiketss [ Slandardicalion ), Shitauke
(Sustenance]

Yoy

Wiar G Year

FFB :

Fresh Fruit Bunchas (Ralm oil)
RODCE -

Raturn on Capital Employed
CAPEX .

Capital Expanditure

MNED

Maon-Exacutiye Dimnpchor
INED

indepandant, Mon-Exscutive Directar
RPTRC

Rulated Party Transsctions and
Rervinw Committes

NRC
Momirations and  Remuneraton
Coammittias

AL
Audit Cormmittes

RSPO
Roondtable on Sustainabie Falm Oil

KMP

Ky Managemaent Personna
TOR

Term of Rafarsnce
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Notes
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Notice of Meeting

Ganeral Mesting (CAGM™) of YWatawala Plantations PLC
[ tha “Company”} will b hald onling win a wirtual platform
en Frday, the 207 day ef June 2024 at 10015 am. and the

“Wihareas the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance
Rules) af the Colombo Stock Eschange reduing

bBurziness fo be brought before tha maeting will be az
follows ;

1. To receive and consider the Arnual Report of tha

Beard of Directors, togethar with the audited financal

statemants of the Company, for the fnancial yanr
anded 5 March 23024 and the mport of the auditors
therssn

2 To declée & final cath dividend af Re 7.00/- per
share 8z recammanded by the Board of Drectors.

I, To propaze the following resolution as an ordinary
ragaiution for the appontment of Me M. B a0 as a
Director, who will retire on 23 Jure 2024 upon the
expiration of ond year since the passing of the

ordinary reseidtion at the annual general mesting hela

o 25 June 20235, re-appointing him as & direchor in
terma of sectian 211 (1) aof the Companies Act Ma. T af
2007

“Ordinary resolution

IT IS HERERY RESOLVED THAT the ape irmit ralerred

to in section 200 of the Compamsas Act Mo, 7 of 2007
whall pot apply 1o Mr, M. R Raco who has attased the

age of seventy two (721 yeert and that he be apponbed

as a diractor af the Company.®

4. To ré-slect M. & Herath Directer of the Company,
wwhio ratires in terms of articks 28023 of tha artiches of
azsociation of the Company.

5. To re-wimct Mr. ML R Mihular, Direcior of the Company,

wha netires (h terma of articls 28(2) of tha articles of
aszociation of the Company.

6 To re-piact Mr. M T, Siddigue. Dvrector of the Compas
Ay, wWha retires in 1arme of article 27807 af the articles
of essocation of the Company

7. To replact M H D, Abeywickrama, Drecior of the
. wiiho retises by rodation in terma of article
I0 of tha articles of association of the Company,

& To propoue the following as Special Resolutong to
amend the Arteles of Anseciafon of the Company 16
b i lines with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange that are currently in force:

certaan provisions o B included into tha Articles of
Agsociation of The Company inrefation o the
appoantrment of Alternate Directors: The folowing
retinluition (s being proposed as & Special Resclution
im accordance tharawith

IT IS HERERY RESOLVED THAT Artscle 28 (4) Lo
article J8 (8] of the Articks of Aszociaton of The
Company be delated in i3 entirety and the following
accordingly;

M4y A& Director may, by nobics in wribing B0 a1 the
Oifice, appaint any perion to be hz Altemate to
act i heg place for puch pericd a5 tha appalntor
rmiay stipulate and such appaintrment shall
become effective upon approval thereof by the
Board, provedod however that:

{al A&n Akermate Dwector shall only be appomied in
exceptional circurnetances and for & mas|mam
penod of one (1) year from the date of apgsint-
rmant

(b} i an Alternate Director i appointed by &
Man-Exscutne Director such Altesnsale shauld
not b an executive of The Company,

(e} If an Alternate Director 5 appainted by &n
indepandent Director, the person to appointed
should mast the criteria of depandence
specified in the Listing Bules and The Company
shall zsatizfy the requinmants relating to the
iR rember of Independent Director
spacified in the Listing Rulis. The NMominaticns
and Governance Committes of the Comparny
shall review and detarmine that the person s
paminated 85 the Alternats would Gualify a2 an
Independent Director bafore such sppointment
1% made

{d}y The Company shall make an immodiate
announcement on the Colombo Stock Exchange
regardng the appointmant of an Altemare
Chrecior. Such annouwncament shall indlude the

following:

| the exceptional circumatances leading to such
DpOinDreng.

it the information on the capacity in wisch such
Alternate Director i apoosntad, Le, whether &5
an Exscutive Non-Executive or indepandent
Dirmctor;

il the time perked for which hefihe 8
sppainted, which shall not exceed one (1) year
trom the date of appointment and

Iv & statermant by The Company ndicating
whather such appointment has besn reviawed
by The Mominatong and Governance Commiiiee
of The Company.
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pressting, including & Board Committes Mesting
shall bo countad for the purpose of guonum.

(5 An Alternate Director shall nof in respect of swch
appointmant be entdled (o recervie iy TETILINEIE-
tian fraem The Company, Ror be requined te hald
any tham gualification, provided that the Board
may repay the Alternate Cirecior sech reasonable
expansss as he may incur in attending and
returning from meetings of the Board which he is
antitled to attend or a3 he may otherwise praperly
incar inoor Abaut The butness of the Company ar
may pay such allowances as the Board may think
ceopar in respect of these sxpance

B} An Alternate Director shad be entitlhed (o récalve
nofices {on hik giving an address {or such notices
o be sorved upon hem) of all mestings of the
Boasd and to sttend and vobe as Direcior 81 arYy
such mesting at which the Director appainting him
iz not personally present and generally at such
rrietimg Do perform all the functions of his
appointor as & Director m the absance of such
appointor

AT it an Alsrnate Dirsctor s atio 8 Dwector in his
own nght ha shall have at any Board meating two
(&0 wotes, ong (1) vote in his own right and one (1)
vobe im bis capacily 83 an Altermate Direstor

B An Alpermare Disecior shad oo facio caase 10 De
an Alternate Director on the happening of any of
tha followng events|

] if ther appointrmant of the Alternate Director &
revoked by hiz appointor

) il his appesntor ceases for any reason to be a
Birector, provided that if any Director ratires
by rotation bt ik re-alactad af the mastng at
which such retirermant took effect, amy appoint-
ment made by him pursuant o this Arficks
which was in foree irmrmeciately prior to his
retirament shall continue to oparate after his
ra- placton a3 if he had not o retired;

1] mewﬂmmay&mm
writing given undar hig hand to The Company,;

(@ i the Board resclves that the appointment of
e Albermate Directer be terminaled; proviced
that such termination shall not take sffect wndsl
trep puperation of thirty (307 daye afier the date
of the redolubon of the Basrd;

(@ if e bacomes subject to any of the provispns
al Artichs 101 of thees Prédants whash, il ks
ware & Dinector of The Company, would render
s office vacated

place of any Executive Director of The
Cormpany shall not by wirtue of sech
appointment agiums the functions of his
Bppaintor ak an acecuttve of the Comipany,
uniess the Board shall otherwize detesmine ©

Special Resolution 02

“Wharsas the Liting Rules (Corparate Govarnanca
Rules) of the Colombo Stock Exchange reguinas the
board of gireciors of a kted entiiy to consint of a
minimum afl five (O8] dreciors. The following
resstution is being progosed ac a Spacial Resgdition In
Accardanse Eherswith

IT 5 HEREBY RESOLVED THAT Article 28 (1) of the
Articikes of Azzocintion of The Company be daleted m
its mntwely and the loliowing new articls be substitut-
od therafar, rembered accordinghy:

B Unless othorwiee Satermined by a Special
Resciution of the sharehoikders of The
thie rumber of Drectors chall be not less than
fivie [05) and not mora than nine (09)."

& Tore-appont Mz KPMG Chartered SAccountonis as
Auditors of the Company until the conclusion of tha
ot Anriial General Mesting to audil the finanaial

statemants af the Company for tha year endng ZIV
Hearch JOTE and 1o authonize the Directors (o
detarmng Thes remunaration theralor

h To authorize the Drectors o dotermine the
contnbutions to charities

8y order of the Board

mm;mm
Sacrgtanes

Oin this Fourth (Qdth) day of June 204
Colamia

Hote!

Ary shampholder antitied (o attend and vole at this
meating i3 entitled to appolnt & proay 19 attand smnd
vote/soeak in hiz/her 2besd and a form of prowy iz sont
haerewiith for this purpose. A proxy need not be a shame-
raldar of the Company. & completad form af procy must
hrﬂlpnlﬂ!dlﬂhlmnd oifice of the Company, a1
o, B0, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo OF or e=mailed to
dhamrmike aksiriBiunshinehoidngs. k of coroprateser-
vicesBcoroprateservices (h not less than 48 hours before
tha time appointed for the holding of the mesting.
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The meeting is to be held in line with the guidelines given
by the Colombo Stock Exchangs and thea health
autharites and ad par the applicable laws

{1} The sharehcigers who wizh to participate af the
rmasting will be abde (o join the maeting through
Buio oF Ao and visual means via Zoom. In order
for us 1o forward the access Information necassary
for partcipation at the mestng, which shal include
the mesting identification nsmber. SC08is Daawornd,
and accals telaphions numbsar, please forsand the
duly exmpleted registration lorm incheing your
e-rail sddreds and contset telaphons numbear ta
the registersd address of the Company not I
than 48 howrs balose the birme appainted for the
halding af the meeting. £o that the logn information
could be forwarded to the e-mail addreazes so

priovided

(i) ¥ the Companiy & unable to post this. Motice due to
any situation beyond its control then this Motce will
be published in one Ezue of a dally neaapapar n
tha Sinhale, Tamil and English Form of Proxy and
FRegstration Form will also be published on the
wabsie of the Colombo Stock Exchange
httpsfcse B/pages/ company-profile/company
-prolie component NiFm T Eyrrbel sWA T A MOOD0
andd the wabsite of the Company (nttesl"
watawalaplantations i/

(i) Prosy farma are forwarded to the sharebolders
bogether wilh the Motice of Mesting and
Registration form Proxy formes have been upicaded
o the Company’s webiibe (hitpsy walaw slaplanta-
teana i) and showld be duly completed a3 per the
inztructions given therem and sent to the registered
address of the Cormpany or g-mailed to
dhammika laksrifsurshinehaldingsk ar
porprateservicasifcorporatesandoes. lk ot kess than
48 howrs beford the time appointed for the holding
of the maeting and the prosy =0 appointed shall
participate at the meating through awdio or awedio
Wizl maans only,

(W} The shareholders who are unable (o participate at

the AGM via Zoom could send their guenes, if any,
to-email address dhammika lpksriisunshinghald-
inge i or corprataservcasicorporaterarvices. lk at
any tima bafore the mesting (ima and (he reseenses
to the zame will be ncluded in the manutes of the
maating,

i) Waling in resgect of the items specified i the

agenda to be patied will ba registened by uwing the
audia or sudio and visual means (Zoom) or a
desgnatesd ancilary onlne agplication, ARl of such
procedurel will be axplained to the sharshaidars
prior o this commencameant of the meeting.

For any ouestions please contact Mr. Dhammika Laksir
of Watewala Plantations PLC on 0114772508 during
office hourm
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Form of Proxy

woar =4

_beng a shareholder/sharsholders of Watawala Plantations PLC,

do herebry appaint
1 M, M R Mihular or failling him,
& M. V. Gowvendaramy o# failing him.
3 Mr. 5.0 Sathasivam o« failing kim,
d. M. k. D Absywickrama o= Tailing him,
5 Mr. M R Raspo o failing him,
& Mr. M 5 HMawzoon o failing him,
A Mr, & Herath o= failing him
B MM T Siddigue o failing him,

a5 it our procy to represent mae/us and to speall ang 1o vote on rmifour cehalf at the anmual genesal meating of the
Company to be held on Ehe Twenty Eighth (287 day of June 2024 a2 1015am. and &l any adipurnment thareol and at
avary poll which majy be taken in conseguence thareof

1 To recelve and conider the annual repart of the board of Diectors togathar with the
sudited Firancial statements of the compary and the Groun for the year ended Bzt
March 2024 and the repart of the auditors theseon.

2. To declame a final cash dividend of Rz 7 par shase a3 recommendaed by the Bosrd of

3, To appint Mr. M. R Bad oz & Direcior who hat attained the age of seventy two (72) years.

4. To re-mect Mr. A Herath s 8 Dweclor who retires s terms of ecticle 28025 of the arfscles
of aszociation of the Company.

5 To re-plect Mre. M, B, Miluwdar as & Director who r.ﬂ-rﬂ.ntlr'rruqf-‘hcl-l!i{.!‘jnl' the
articlas of association of the Comparny

B To re-simct Mr. M, T. Siddigue as & Director who retires terms of arbicle 28023 of the
articles of azsociastion of the Company

7. To re-alect Mr. H D, Abeywickrama az a Director who retires by rotation o termis of article
300f the articles of association of the Company.

8 To pess Special Resoiution 01
in redation (o amending the provisions on the appantment of Alternate Deeclors of the
Company to ba n Ene with the iating rules

To pats Speclal Hesolution 02
in redation (o amending the provision on tha minimum number of directors of the Company
16 b i lime with e ligtineg rules
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For | Agmnst

B To re-sppoint KPMG (Chartenad Accounianit), wha are desmed 1o bé ré-apbonted &3
auditors of the Company until the conclusion of tha naxt &EM of the Cormpany in terms af
wachon 158 (1) of the Cormpanies” Act. to audit the financial staternants of the Company far
the year anding Jlat March 2025 and to autharnze the Direciors (o datesming thair
remuneration therelor

10 Te author2e the Dirsctors 16 deterrmineg he contributions 1o charites.

Tegnatune of Shareholdes

Chareholdes™s NIC

Proxy holder's NiC

{a}) & proxy nead not ba a mamber of the Company
) Instructions reganding completion appear on the cwarisal

Hater Pleate delete the inapohopriate words.

INSTRUCTION ON COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXY

1 Kindly cormpiate the form of proxy after filing in legibly your full name and address and
1ign in the dpace provided. Plesse fill n ihe date of signature

2 A sharehoiger antitled to attend and vote at the meating i= entitled to appolnt & proxy
who nead not be a sharehalder. (o attend and vate instead of him

% in the case of a corporation, the form must be completed under it common seal, wiich
should be alfed and attested b the manner prescribed by the arhcles of assooiation

4. if thi form of prosy iz signed by an Attoeney, the rolevant Powaer of Attarney should alss
ACcompary 1o the compiated form of proxy, in the mannar prescnibed by the arficias of
O] Bl

5 The completed form of promy should be deposited at the registered office of the Compas
ny. Mo B0 Dharreapala Mawstha, Colomba O3 or e-matled to dhammsalakeiiSsun-
shineholdingz & or coroprateservicesfixoroprateserdces |k mot less than 48 hours.
before the time aopoented for the holding of the maesating
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Corporate Information

Mame of the Company

‘Watawala Plantations PLC

Legal form

A public comgpary with frruted
Eability regestensd undar Companss
At Mo 17 of 1982 and ra-regiztersd
undir the Companias Act Mo, O7 af
2007 and guoted o the Colombo
Stk Exthandgs

Date of Incorporation

18 Jurve TR

Registration Mo
PO 65

Accounting Year
31 March

Dirsctors

546 Wieasinha (Chasrman)

W Govindatamy CActing CEO wal. | Detober 20325)
M B ‘Wessrasekera { Rasgred wil 18 November 2023
M S Mawsoon

H D Abaywickrama

MR R

A R Rasiah

C L Les {alternate; M T Sadigus) (Resigned wa f 5 December 3023
5 G Sathasivam

A Herath CAppointed weal 12 Detamber 2023

M B Mihular (appointed woel, 12 Decembar 20251

W T Siddigue (Apoonted w.ak. 13 Decernber 2123 )

Chief Executive Officer
Binesh M Pananwals (Resigned woef 30 Septerriber 20335

Secretaries & Registrars
Corporate Sarvices {Prieata) Limited
o 216, De Saram Flace; Colombg 10
Tel! 494 N& B0O5 WD

Auditors

KPMG (Chartered Accountanis)

Mo T34, Sir Mohomad Macan Markar
Mawatha, Colombo 08

Bankers

Standard Chartored Bank Lid
Hatton Matona! Bank PLC
Commuercial Bank of Caylen PLEC
DFECC Bank BPLC

Zaylan Bank FLC

Shate Bank of ndia

HMatiormal Davelopment Bank PLC
Indean Owersess Bank

Lawyars

FJ 5 G De Saram
{Attorrays-at-Law)

Mo 216, De Saram Place, Colombo 10

Muthya Partners
{attorrmys-at-Law )
Bon @704 Galle Bosd, Colamiba OF

Reglisterad Office
Mo B0, Dharmapala Mawatha.
Colombes 08, Sr Lanks

Tl =04 Thd 702 L0:0
E-mall watmwala@zunshinshaldings &
Web: wwwwatswaiaplaniatonsd
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